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NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 

HAVMOR ICE CREAM PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

Pursuant to the order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“Tribunal”) 
dated August 30, 2024. 
 

MEETING DETAILS 

Day  Saturday 

Date October 12, 2024 

Time 10:00 A.M. (IST) 

Mode of Meeting As per the directions of the Chairperson appointed by the 
Tribunal, the Meeting shall be conducted through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”)  

Venue / Mode Since the Meeting is to be held via VC/OAVM, physical venue is 
inapplicable. Equity Shareholders can join the Meeting by 
logging on to https://www.evoting.nsdl.com and following the 
steps mentioned in this Notice. 

Equity Shareholders means Equity Shareholders, whose name is appearing in the chartered 
accountant’s certificate certifying the list of Equity Shareholders 
as on March 31, 2024 

Remote e-voting start date 
and time 

Wednesday, October 09, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) 

Remote e-voting end date 
and time 

Friday, October 11, 2024 at 05:00 P.M, (IST) 
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The Notice of the Meeting, Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) read with Section 102 and 

other applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules and all annexures thereto 

constitute a single and complete set of documents and should be read together as they form an 

integral part of this document. 

 
 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 10, 2024 

 
Sd/- 

Jaehyun Kim 
Director 

DIN: 10047983 
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FORM NO. CAA. 2 
(Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies 

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016) 
 

BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, AHMEDABAD BENCH 
CA(CAA)/39(AHM)2024 

 
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232  

AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  
 

AND   
 

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN HAVMOR ICE CREAM 
PRIVATE LIMITED AND LOTTE INDIA CORPORATION LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE 

SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS 
 

BETWEEN 

 

Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited  
CIN: U15200GJ2006PTC048016 
A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered 
office situated at 2nd Floor, Commerce House - 4 B/S Shell Petrol Pump, 100 Ft. Road, 
Prahaladnagar, Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 380015. 
Email Id: havmor@havmor.com 

 ------- Applicant Company - 1/ Transferor Company  
 

Lotte India Corporation Limited,  
CIN: U15419GJ1954PLC153704 
A company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913 and having its registered 
office situated at 22b, 2nd Floor Commerce House – 4, Beside Shell Petrol Pump, Prahaladnagar, 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 380015. 
Email Id: compsecy@lotteindia.com   

------- Applicant Company - 2/ Transferee Company  
 

 
NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF HAVMOR ICE CREAM 

PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
 

To 
The Equity Shareholders of  
Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited 
 

1. NOTICE is hereby given that pursuant to the Order dated August 30, 2024 (“Tribunal 
Order”), passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad (“Tribunal”), 
a Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited (“Transferor 
Company” or “Company”), will be held for the purpose of their considering, and if thought 
fit, approving, with or without modification, the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between 
the Transferor Company and Lotte India Corporation Limited (“Transferee Company”) and 
their respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) on October 12, 2024 at 10:00 A.M. 
(IST) at 2nd Floor, Commerce House - 4 B/S Shell Petrol Pump, 100 Ft. Road, Prahaladnagar, 
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Ahmedabad, Gujarat – 380015, registered office of the Company (deemed venue) 
(“Meeting”). A copy of the Tribunal Order is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 2. 
 

2. Pursuant to the said Tribunal Order and as directed therein, the Meeting will be held through 
Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio Visual means (“OAVM”) , in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“SS-2”) to 
consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution for 
approval of the Scheme by requisite majority as prescribed under Sections 230(1) and 230(6) 
read with 232(1) of the Act, as amended: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), applicable circulars and notifications 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), the rules, circulars and notifications made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of 
Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited (“Company”) and subject to the approval of Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“Tribunal”) and subject to such other 
approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be 
necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be deemed appropriate 
by the parties to the Scheme, at any time and for any reason whatsoever, or which may 
otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or as may be prescribed or imposed by the 
Tribunal or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such approvals, permissions 
and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) 
which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more committee(s) constituted/ to 
be constituted by the Board or any other person authorized by it to exercise its powers 
including the powers conferred by this resolution), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme 
of Arrangement between the Company and Lotte India Corporation Limited and their 
respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”), be and is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, 
appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the 
amalgamation embodied in the Scheme and to make any modifications or amendments to 
the Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, and to accept such modifications, 
amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by 
the Tribunal while sanctioning the amalgamation embodied in the Scheme or by any 
authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or 
doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or 
making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect 
to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board may delegate all or any of its powers herein 
conferred to any Director(s) and/or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to this resolution, 
if required, as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit, necessary, or desirable, without any 
further approval from the Equity Shareholders of the Company.”  
 

3. TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT the Equity Shareholders shall have the facility and option 
of voting on the resolution for approval of the Scheme by casting their votes (a) through e-
voting system available at the Meeting to be held virtually on October 12, 2024 at 10:00 A.M. 
(IST) till the conclusion of the Meeting (“E-voting at the Meeting”); or (b) by remote 
electronic voting (“Remote e-voting”) during the period as stated below: 
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E-voting at the Meeting and Remote e-voting shall be hereinafter collectively referred to as 
“E-Voting”. 
 

4. Equity Shareholders, whose name is appearing in the chartered accountant’s certificate 
certifying the list of Equity Shareholders as of March 31, 2024, shall only be entitled to 
exercise his/ her/ its voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the 
Meeting.  
 

5. A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement under Section 230 (3) read with Section 102 
and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“CAA Rules”) along with all annexures to 
such statement are enclosed herewith. 
 

6. The Tribunal has appointed Mr. S.B. Gautam, Ex. Member, NCLT, (Email Id: 
sbgautam04@gmail.com, Mobile No.- 9871998639) as the Chairperson and Kamil 
Lokhandwala, Advocate (Email Id: kamil.lokhandwala@gmail.com, Mobile No.- 9925192212) 
as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting. The above-mentioned Scheme, if approved at the Meeting, 
will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.  
 

7. The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent sanction 
of the Tribunal and such other approvals, permissions, and sanctions of regulatory or other 
authorities, as may be necessary. 
 

8. The Transferor Company has appointed MAS Services Limited [through National Securities 
Depository Limited (“NSDL”)], for the purposes of providing e-voting facility for the Meeting 
so as to enable the Equity Shareholders of Company to consider and approve the Scheme 
by way of the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly, voting by Equity Shareholders on the 
proposed resolution shall be carried out through e-voting facility made available for the 
Meeting, as stated in the notes herein below.  
 

9. If so desired, Equity Shareholders may obtain a physical copy of the Notice and the 
accompanying documents, i.e., Scheme and the statement under Section 230 (3) read with 
Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules, free of 
charge. A request in this regard, may be sent at sonam.jain@havmor.com. 

 
  

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 10, 2024 
 

Sd/- 
Jaehyun Kim 

Director 
DIN: 10047983 

 

 

Notes for the Meeting: 

1. Pursuant to the directions of the Tribunal vide the Tribunal Order, the Meeting is being 
conducted through VC/ OAVM facility to transact the business set out in this Notice. The 
deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the registered office of the Company.  

Remote e-voting period 

Commencement of voting Wednesday, October 09, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) 

End of voting Friday, October 11, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST) 
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2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sections 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) and 102 of the Act 

read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) 
Rules, 2016 (“Rules”) (“Explanatory Statement”) in respect of the business set out in the 
Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto. The Meeting will be conducted in compliance with 
the applicable provisions of the Tribunal Order, Act, SS-2, and other applicable laws. 
 

3. In terms of the Tribunal Order, the Notice, Explanatory Statement under Section 230 (3) read 
with Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and all annexures thereto are 
being sent through electronic mode to Equity Shareholders whose e-mail IDs are registered 
with the Company. For those Equity Shareholders whose e-mail IDs are not registered with 
the Company, the Notice, Explanatory Statement under Section 230 (3) read with Section 
102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and all annexures thereto are being  
dispatched physically. 
 

4. Since, the Meeting is being held through VC/ OAVM, physical attendance of the Equity 
Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies 
by the Equity Shareholders will not be available for the Meeting and hence the route map, 
proxy form and attendance slip are not annexed hereto. Further, a body corporate which is 
an Equity Shareholders of the Company is entitled to appoint a representative for the 
purposes of participating and or voting during the Meeting.The provisions of MCA General 
Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020,  General Circular  No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, General Circular  No. 33/2020 
dated September 28, 2020,  General Circular  No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, 
General Circular  No. 10/2021 dated June 21, 2021, General Circular  No. 20/2021 dated 
December 08, 2021, 03/2022 dated May 05, 2022, 11/2022 dated December 28, 2022 and 
General Circular 09/ 2023 dated September 25, 2023, as amended  and other applicable 
circulars issued by MCA and any other regulatory authority, as applicable, from time to time 
shall apply mutatis mutandis. 
 

5. The authorized representative of a body corporate which is an Equity Shareholders of the 
Company may attend and vote at the Meeting provided a copy of the resolution of the Board 
of Directors or other governing body of the body corporate authorizes such representative 
to attend and vote at the Meeting, duly certified to be a true copy by a director, manager, 
secretary or other officer of such body corporate, is e-mailed to the Scrutinizer through email 
at the registered email address kamil.lokhandwala@gmail.com before the VC/ OAVM 
Meeting or before the Remote e-voting, as the case may be. 
 

6. MAS Services Limited (through NSDL), the e-voting service provider will provide the facility 
for voting to the Equity Shareholders through Remote e-voting, for participation in the 
Meeting through VC/ OAVM and E-voting at the Meeting. 
 

7. Equity Shareholders attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the 
purpose of quorum. In terms of the Tribunal Order, the quorum for the Meeting shall be 2 in 
number of the Equity Shareholders of the Company. Further, in terms of the Tribunal Order 
in case the aforesaid quorum for the Meeting is not present at the commencement of the 
Meeting, then the Meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter, if the aforesaid 
quorum is still not present, the persons present and voting at the Meeting shall be deemed 
to constitute the quorum.   
 

8. Voting rights of the Equity Shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up  
share capital of the Transferor Company as on March 31, 2024. 
 

9. The Equity Shareholders of the Transferor Company can join the Meeting in the VC/ OAVM 
mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by 
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following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The detailed instructions for joining the 
Meeting through VC/ OAVM forms part of the notes to this Notice. 
 

10. All the documents referred to in the accompanying statement, shall be available for 
inspection through electronic mode during the proceedings of the Meeting. The Equity 
Shareholders seeking to inspect copies of the said documents may send an email at 
sonam.jain@havmor.com. Further, all the documents referred to in the accompanying 
Explanatory Statement shall also be open for inspection to the Equity Shareholders at the 
registered office of the Company between 10:00 A.M. to 05:00 P.M., on all working days up 
to the date of the Meeting. In addition to the above, all the documents referred to in the 
accompanying Explanatory Statement, shall also be placed on the website of the Company 
at https://www.havmor.com/news-updates..     
 

11. Subject to receipt of requisite majority of votes as per Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the 
resolution proposed in the Notice shall be deemed to have been passed on the date of the 
Meeting (specified in the Notice). 
 

12. It is clarified that casting of votes by Remote e-voting (prior to the Meeting) does not disentitle 
Equity Shareholders from attending the Meeting. However, after exercising right to vote 
through Remote e-voting prior to the Meeting, Equity Shareholders shall not vote again at 
the Meeting. In case the Equity Shareholders cast their vote via both the modes i.e., Remote 
e-voting prior to the Meeting as well as E-voting at the Meeting, then voting done through 
Remote e-voting before the Meeting shall prevail once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
Equity Shareholders, whether partially or otherwise. The Equity Shareholders shall not be 
allowed to change it subsequently. 
 

13. As directed by the Tribunal, Kamil Lokhandwala, Advocate (Email Id: 
kamil.lokhandwala@gmail.com, Mobile No.- 9925192212), has been appointed as 
Scrutinizer for the said Tribunal convened meeting of the Equity Shareholders for conducting 
voting by Remote e-Voting and e-voting during the Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. 
The scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairperson after completion of the scrutiny of 
the votes casted by the Equity Shareholders through e-voting (both prior to and during the 
Meeting). The scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall be final. The results of 
votes casted through Remote e-voting and E-voting at the Meeting, shall be announced by 
the Chairperson not later than three (3) days of the conclusion of the Meeting upon receipt 
of scrutinizer’s report and the same shall be displayed on the website of the Company i.e. 
https://www.havmor.com/news-updates and on the website of NSDL i.e. 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/. 
 

14. As per the Tribunal Order, the Chairperson shall report the result of the Meeting to the 
Tribunal within three (3) days from the date of holding of the meeting with regard to Scheme. 
 

15. Remote e-voting: 
The Remote e-voting period shall commence on Wednesday, October 09, 2024, at 09:00 
A.M. (IST) and ends on Friday, October 11, 2024 at 05.00 P.M. (IST). During this period, 
Equity Shareholders of the Company, may cast their vote by Remote e-voting. The said 
Remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting immediately thereafter. Equity 
Shareholders who have not casted their votes through Remote e-voting will be able to cast 
their votes through e-voting during the meeting on Saturday, October 12, 2024 from 10:00 
A.M. (IST) till the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

16. Equity Shareholders of the Company who have not registered their email address with the 
Company, may complete the email registration process as under to vote on the resolution(s) 
mentioned therein:  
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(i) The Equity Shareholders of the Company who have not registered their e-mail addresses 
may temporarily get their e-mail addresses registered with the Company by sending email 
at sonam.jain@havmor.com. The Equity Shareholders are requested to provide details such 
as name, PAN, mobile number and e-mail ID.  
 

(ii) It is clarified that for permanent registration of email address, Equity Shareholders are 
requested to register their email addresses, with the Transferor Company. 
 

17. In case of any difficulty in e-voting or attending the Meeting through VC/ OAVM, etc., the 
following persons may be contacted: 
 

Name Sharwan Mangla 

Contact Number 9811742828 

E-mail ID info@masserv.com  

 

18. The instructions for Equity Shareholders for Remote e-voting and joining Meeting are 
as under:  
 
The Remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, October 09, 2024 at 9:00 A.M.(IST) and 
ends on Friday, October 11, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. (IST). The Remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Equity Shareholders who have not casted their votes 
through Remote e-voting will be able to cast their votes through e-voting during the meeting 
on Saturday, October 12, 2024 from 10:00 A.M. (IST) till the conclusion of the meeting. The 
Equity Shareholders as per the list (as of March 31, 2024) filed with the Tribunal, may cast 
their vote electronically. The voting rights of the Equity Shareholders shall be in proportion 
to their proportion to their share in the paid-up share capital on the Company as on March 
31, 2024. 
 
Login method for Equity Shareholders:  
 

1. Visit the e-voting website of NSDL Open web browser by typing the following URL:  
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/  either on a Personal Computer/laptop or on a mobile.  
 

2. Once the home page of e-voting system is launched, click on the icon ‘Login’ available under 
the ‘Shareholder/ Member/ Creditor’ section.  
 

3. A new screen will open.  
 

4. Enter User ID as given in email.  
 

5. Enter Password as given in email.  
 

6. Enter Verification Code/ Captcha.  
 

7. Agree to the terms and conditions by clicking on check box next to ‘I hereby agree to all 
Terms and Conditions’.  
 

8. Click on the ‘Login’ button.  
 

9. After successful login, EVEN of the Company will be visible. Select EVEN of the Transferor 
Company to cast your vote. 
 

10. Now, the voting page will open.   
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11. Cast vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, and click on ‘Submit’. 

Click on ‘Confirm’ when prompted.  
 

12. Upon confirmation, the message ‘Vote casted successfully’ will be displayed.  
 

13. Printout of the vote casted may be taken by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 
 

14. Once vote is cast, it cannot be modified. 
 

Instructions for Equity Shareholders for attending the meeting through VC/OAVM:  
 

1. Equity Shareholders will be provided with a facility to attend the meeting through Video 
Conferencing through the NSDL e-voting system.  

 
2. Login to NSDL e-voting system (by following the steps mentioned above). Thereafter, link of 

VC/OAVM link’ will be visible under ‘Join General Meeting’ menu against the name of 
Transferor Company.  
 

3. Click on ‘VC/OAVM link’ placed under ‘Join General Meeting’ menu. The link for VC/OAVM 
will be available in ‘Shareholder/ Member/ Creditor’ login where the EVEN of the Transferor 
Company will be displayed.  

 
4. After clicking on the link, the system will be redirected to Cisco website.  
 
5. Enter first name.  
 
6. Enter last name.  
 
7. Enter email ID.  
 
8. Click on ‘Join Now’.  
 
9. If Cisco driver is not available in the system, please click on ‘run temporary driver’.  
 

10. Equity Shareholders are encouraged to join the meeting through laptops or personal 
computer for better experience.  

 
11. Further, Equity Shareholders will be required to allow Camera and Microphone and use 

Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.   
 
12. Please note that Equity Shareholders connecting from mobile devices or tablets, or using 

internet via mobile hotspot, may experience audio/ video disturbances due to fluctuations in 
their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection 
to mitigate any kind of the aforesaid glitches.   

 
13. Equity Shareholders who would like to express their views/ have questions may send their 

questions in advance (up to 7 days before the meeting) mentioning their name, email ID, 
and mobile number at sonam.jain@havmor.com. The same will be suitably addressed by 
the Company.  
 

19. Declaration of voting results: The scrutinizer will, after the conclusion of E-voting at the 
Meeting, scrutinize the votes casted at the Meeting and votes cast through Remote e-voting, 
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make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairperson of the 
Meeting. The result of voting for the Meeting will be declared within 3 (three) days of the 
conclusion of the Meeting and the same, along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s report will 
be displayed on the website of the Company at https://www.havmor.com/news-updates and 
at the registered office of the Company. 
 

20. Procedure for inspection of documents: 
 

(i) Documents for inspection as referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for 
inspection without any payment of fee by the Equity Shareholders of the Company from the 
date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of Meeting. The Equity Shareholders of the 
Company seeking to inspect such documents can write to the Company at 
sonam.jain@havmor.com.  
 

(ii) The Equity Shareholders of the Company seeking any information with regard to the 
Scheme, or the matter proposed to be considered at the Meeting, are requested to write to 
the Company at least 7 (seven) days before the date of the Meeting through email on 
sonam.jain@havmor.com. The same will be replied to by the Company, suitably.  
 

(iii) The Equity Shareholders are requested to carefully read all the notes set out herein and in 
particular, instructions for joining the Meeting and manner of casting vote through Remote 
e-voting and E-voting at the Meeting. 
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FORM NO. CAA. 2 
(Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies 

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016) 
 

BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, AHMEDABAD BENCH 
CA (CAA) /39 (AHM) 2024  

 
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232  

AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  
 

AND   
 

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN HAVMOR ICE CREAM 
PRIVATE LIMITED AND LOTTE INDIA CORPORATION LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE 

SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS 
 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230 (3) READ WITH SECTION 102 AND 

OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT”) AND RULE 6 OF 

THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 

(“CAA RULES”) TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 

HAVMOR ICE CREAM PRIVATE LIMITED CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER OF THE 

HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, AHMEDABAD BENCH (“TRIBUNAL”) 

DATED AUGUST 30, 2024 (“TRIBUNAL ORDER”)  

 

1. Meeting for the Scheme: 

 

This is a statement accompanying the Notice convening the Meeting of the Equity 
Shareholders of Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited (“Transferor Company” or “Company”), 
for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), 
the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Transferor Company and Lotte India 
Corporation Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and 
creditors (“Scheme”). The Scheme provides for the amalgamation of the Transferor 
Company with the Transferee Company and reduction of share capital of the Transferee 
Company in the manner specified in the Scheme and various other matters consequential 
thereto or otherwise integrally connected therewith. 
 
Capital terms not defined herein and used in the Notice and this Statement shall have the 
same meaning as ascribed to them in the Scheme. 

 
The salient features of the Scheme are given in Paragraph 3 of this Statement. A copy of the 
Scheme is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure 1. 
 

2. Rationale and benefits of the Scheme: 

Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company 
would inter alia have the following benefits: 

1.1 The Transferor Company and Transferee Company are part of the same group i.e. 

“Lotte Group” based at South Korea and the management of the Lotte Group is 

contemplating consolidation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. 

Post the above-mentioned business restructuring, the proposed consolidation is 

expected to realize the benefits of greater business synergies through supply chain 
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optimisation, operational improvements, go-to-market strategies, distribution network 

optimization, scale efficiencies in cost areas such as marketing and optimization of 

overlapping infrastructure, reduced administrative and other costs. More particularly, 

the reasons and circumstances leading to and justifying the proposed Amalgamation 

(as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, 

which make it beneficial for all the concerned stakeholders, including the shareholders 

of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, are as follows: 

(i) It will provide synergistic integration of the business operations of the Transferee 

Company and the Transferor Company, thus enabling better operational 

management and greater focus. 

 

(ii) Consolidation of the business and simplification of the group structure. It would 

result in a simple corporate structure, greater efficiency in cash management of 

the Transferee Company, access to cash flow generated by the combined 

business thus enabling focus on core competencies. 

 

(iii) The Amalgamation will bring about simplicity in working, reduce various statutory 

and regulatory compliances (including accounting, reporting requirements, 

statutory and internal audit requirements, tax filings, etc) and related costs, which 

presently have to be duplicated in different entities, reduction in operational and 

administrative expenses and overheads, better cost and operational efficiencies 

and it would also result in coordinated optimum utilization of resources thus leading 

to operational effectiveness and cost optimization. 

 

(iv) It will result not only in consolidating and improving the internal systems, 

procedures and controls but will also bring greater management and operational 

efficiency due to integration of various similar functions presently being carried out 

in each individual entity within the group such as information technology, human 

resources, finance, legal and general management, and this will lead to the 

organization becoming more efficient and capable of responding swiftly to volatile 

and rapidly changing market scenarios. 

 

(v) The scheme envisages transfer of the entire Undertaking of the Transferor 

Company as a going concern to the Transferee Company and creation of greater 

value for shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders. 

 

(vi) The Amalgamation shall result in enhancing the brand awareness of “Lotte” on 

account of widening of customer base and consolidation of resources resulting in 

a wider market reach. It shall also lead to economies of scale, allowing for more 

efficient use of resources and lower costs per unit. The increased efficiency can 

be reinvested in brand-building activities, further enhancing brand awareness. 

1.2 In view of the aforesaid, the Board (as defined hereinafter) of the Companies have 

considered and proposed the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into 

the Transferee Company in order to benefit the stakeholders of both the Companies. 

Accordingly, the Scheme has been formulated pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
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230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Act the rules and regulations framed 

thereunder and also read with Section 2(1B) read with Section 72A of the Income Tax 

Act, 1961, as applicable, for the Amalgamation. 

Reduction of share capital of the Transferee Company will, inter-alia, result in the 

following benefits: 

1.3 The Transferee Company was delisted in the year 2009. Post delisting, the equity 

shares of the Transferee Company cannot be traded on any of the stock exchanges in 

India and hence, the Relevant Shareholders do not have much avenues to monetize 

or liquidate their shareholding. The Scheme provides liquidity and exit route to these 

Relevant Shareholders in a fair and transparent manner by way of capital reduction. 

1.4 The Transferee Company is having sufficient reserves and cash, and intends to reduce 

its paid-up share capital, by paying off to the Relevant Shareholders (as defined 

hereinafter), in order to maximize the value of such shareholders. 

1.5 The proposed reduction of paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company shall also 

entail the following additional benefits of the Transferee Company: 

i. Savings in administrative and other costs associated with servicing a very small 

percentage of the shareholding held by the Relevant Shareholders. 

ii. Ease of management in undertaking statutory and regulatory compliances related 

to Relevant Shareholders. 

This Scheme would be in the interest of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, 

and their respective shareholders, creditors, employees, vendors and other stakeholders and 

will not be prejudicial to the interests of any concerned shareholders or creditors or general 

public at large. 

Background of the companies: 

Transferor Company: is a private company which was incorporated on 27th March 2006 

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having CIN U15200GJ2006PTC048016, 

PAN AABCH6766L and e-mail ID havmor@havmor.com. Presently, the registered office of 

the Transferor Company is situated at 2nd Floor, Commerce House - 4 B/S Shell Petrol Pump, 

100 Ft. Road, Prahaladnagar, Ahmedabad - 380015, Gujarat. Transferor Company is 

primarily engaged in manufacturing various flavors of ice creams sold in different forms of 

consumer packs like bulk packs, party packs, family packs, sundaes, cups, cones, candies, 

bars, roll cut slices, etc. The Transferor Company has not changed its name, registered office 

and objects in last five years. 

The objects for which the Transferor Company has been established are set out in its 

Memorandum of Association. The main objects of the Transferor Company as per its 

Memorandum of Association are as follows: 

a. To carry on the business in India or elsewhere the business to manufacture, produce, 
process, convert, commercialize, extract, cool, boil, collect, raise, pack, repack, grade, 

13

mailto:havmor@havmor.com


 

                                             

 

prepare, supply, market, import, export, buy, sell, distribute, store and to act as an agent, 
broker, concessionaires, consultants, consignors or otherwise in all types of milk, cream, 
butter, dry fruits etc and its derivatives, products, by products, residues including ice 
creams, milk creams, condensed milk yogurt, curd, confectioneries, cakes, biscuits, 
pastries, Ice Cream cones, promotional material and protein food including the Raw 
Material, packing material, semifinished goods related to Ice Cream and related products 
and Deep Freezes, push cart, tricycles incidental to the Ice Cream Business 

To provide franchisees and support services related to Ice Cream Business. 

Further, Clause 7 of the Memorandum of Association of Transferor Company, permits it “to 
acquire or amalgamate, absorb or merge with any other company or companies or to form, 
promote subsidiaries having objects altogether or in part similar to those of this company.” 

The share capital structure of the Transferor Company as on 31st March 2024, was as follows:  

Particulars INR 

Authorised Share Capital 

1,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 10,00,00,000 

Total 10,00,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

 1,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up 10,00,00,000 

Total 10,00,00,000 

 
Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, 
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company until the date of approval 
of the Scheme by the Board of the Transferor Company. 
 
The details of Promoters of the Transferor Company is as follows:  

Sl.no. Name of Promoter Address 

1. (a) Lotte Wellfood Co. Ltd.  
(b) 10 Yangpyung-Lo 21-Gil, Youngdeungpo-Gu, 

Seoul, Korea 

 
The details of Directors of the Transferor Company as on date is mentioned herein below:  

Sl.no. Name of Director DIN Address 

1.  Youngdong Jin 08948380 
201-Ho, 22, Subyeon-Ro, 107Beon-Gil, 
Bupyeong-gu, Incheon, Metropolitan, 
21398 

2.  
Duraiswamy 
Gunaseela Rajan 

00303060 
"Chitra" No. 110, Chamiers Road, Chennai 
– 600028, Tamil Nadu 

3.  Kyungwoon Cho 09048060 

301, Third Floor, Tower “V” at Door No.174, 
Satyadev Avenue Extension, MRC Nagar 
Main Road, Raja Annamalai Puram, 
Chennai – 600028, Tamil Nadu  

4.  Komal Anand 06693454 
352, Mount Kailash Tower-1, 9th Floor East 
of kailash, New Delhi, South Delhi 110065, 
India 

5.  Jaehyun Kim 10047983 
Gangseo Hillstate 134-201, 67, Uhyeon-ro, 
Gangseo-gu, Seoul Metropolitan, Korea 
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6.  Jun Yeon Kim 10519756 
103-1001, 37, Dokseodang-ro, 40-gil, 
Seongdong-gu, Seoul, Korea (Oksu-dong, 
Eoullim Apt.) 

 
The copy of audited financial results as at 31st March 2023 and provisional financial results 
as at 31st March 2024 of the Transferor Company are annexed hereto and marked as 
Annexure 3 and Annexure 4 respectively. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Transferor 
Company, has adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their 
respective shareholders and key managerial personnel among others. A copy of the report 
adopted by the Board of Transferor Company is enclosed as Annexure 7A. 

Transferee Company: is a public company incorporated on 26th March, 1954 under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1913 having CIN U15419GJ1954PLC153704, PAN 
AAACP1916F and e-mail ID compsecy@lotteindia.com. Presently, the registered office of 
the Transferee Company is situated at 22b, 2nd Floor Commerce House – 4, Beside Shell 
Petrol Pump, Prahaladnagar, Ahmedabad – 380015, Gujarat. The Transferee Company is 
engaged in the business of manufacturing and marketing of cakes, pies and other 
confectionery products. The Transferee Company has neither changed its name nor its 
objects in last five years. However, the Transferee Company had shifted its registered office 
from the State of Tamil Nadu to the State of Gujarat w.e.f. 23rd July, 2024. 

The objects for which the Transferee Company has been established are set out in its 
Memorandum of Association. The main objects of the Transferee Company as per its 
Memorandum of Association are as follows: 

1. To carry on the business in India and elsewhere of manufacturers, buyers, sellers, 
importers and exporters of and dealers in sweets, chocolates, toffees, caramels, 
confectionery, sugar molasses, gur, saccharine and all sugar and saccharine products 
and by-products of every description and in bread, flour, biscuits and farinaceous 
compounds and materials of every description.  
 

2. To carry on and work the business of manufactures, fabricators, processors, producers, 
makers, importers, exporters of cakes, pastry, biscuits, chocolates, confectionery, 
sweets, chewing gums, milk cream, ice creams and all kinds of process foods as well as 
materials required or used for preparation of food products. 
 

3. To carry on the business of producers of and dealers in dairy farm and garden produce 
of all kinds and in particular milk, cream, butter, cheese, poultry and eggs and to carry on 
business as cow-keepers, goat-keepers, farmers, millers and market gardeners and 
manufacturers of all kinds of condensed milk, jam, pickles and preserved provisions of 
all kinds. 
  

4. To carry on the manufacture of ice cream, frozen foods, snack foods, processed foods, 
beverages of all kinds, natural / artificial fruit juices, water portable and potable and all 
other related activities thereto. 
 

5. To carry on the business of manufactures, develop, import, export and dealers in sugar 
free chocolates, toffees, chewing gum, bubble gum and other sugar free products of all 
kinds. 

 

Further, Clause 17 of the Ancillary Objects in the Memorandum of Association of the 
Transferee Company, permits it “to amalgamate with any Company or Companies having 
objects altogether or in part similar to those of this Company”.  
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The share capital structure of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2024 is as follows:  
 

Particulars INR 

Authorised Share Capital 

37,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 3,70,00,00,000 

Total 3,70,00,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

1,41,02,363 equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up 14,10,23,630 

Total  14,10,23,630 

 
Subsequent to the aforesaid date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, 
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company until the date of approval 
of the Scheme by the Board of the Transferee Company. 
 
The details of Promoters of the Transferee Company is as follows:  

Sl.no. Name of Promoter Address 

1. Lotte Wellfood Co. Ltd.  
10 Yangpyung-Lo 21-Gil, Youngdeungpo-Gu, 
Seoul, Korea 

 
The details of Directors of the Transferee Company as on date is mentioned herein below: 

Sl.no. 
Name of 
Director 

DIN Address 

1.  Kyungwoon Cho 09048060 

301, Third Floor, Tower “V” at Door No.174, 
Satyadev Avenue Extension, MRC Nagar 
Main Road, Raja Annamalai Puram, Chennai 
– 600028, Tamil Nadu 

2.  Milan Wahi 
05242884
  

Flat No 603, Bridgewood B Block, House of 
Hiranandani, 5/63, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR 
Road), Kelambakkam, Chengelpattu - 
603103  

3.  Jeehye You 07817025 23, Sultanpur Farms, New Delhi – 110074 

4.  Jun Yeon Kim 10519756 

103-1001, 37, Dokseodang-ro, 40-gil, 

Seongdong-gu, Seoul, Korea (Oksu-dong, 

Eoullim Apt.) 

5.  N. Ramesh Rajan 01628318 
No.12, Tarapore Avenue, Harrington Road, 

Chetpet, Chennai – 600 031 

 
The copy of audited financial results for the year ended 31st March 2023 and provisional 
financial results as on 31st March 2024 of the Transferee Company are annexed hereto and 
marked as Annexure 5 and Annexure 6 respectively. 
 
In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Transferee 
Company, has adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their 
respective shareholders and key managerial personnel among others. A copy of the report 
adopted by the Board of Transferee Company is enclosed as Annexure 7B. 

Both the Transferor Company and Transferee Company are the part of same group and are 
fellow subsidiaries. 
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3. SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME 

 
The salient features of the Scheme are, inter alia, as stated below. The capitalized terms 
used herein shall have the same meaning as ascribed to them in the Scheme: 

 
a) The Scheme provides for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee 

Company and reduction of share capital of Transferee Company and is presented under 
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act. 

b) Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of 
all the said assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company to the Transferee Company, 
1,679 equity share of the Transferee Company of face value INR 10 each, fully paid-up, 
at par, for every 1,000 equity share of the Transferor Company, shall be issued to the 
shareholders of the Transferor Company whose name is recorded in the register of 
members of the Transferor Company as equity shareholder. 

c) Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Relevant Shareholders of the Transferee 
Company shall be paid for the equity shares held by them in lieu of cancellation and 
extinguishment of such shares, a sum of INR 882.29 per such equity share. 

d) The Appointed Date for the purpose of this Scheme and for IT Act means April 01, 2024. 

e) The Effective Date means the later of the dates on which certified copy of the order of 
the jurisdictional NCLT sanctioning this Scheme is filed with the jurisdictional Registrar 
of Companies by the Transferor Company and by the Transferee Company, as required 
under the provisions of the Act. Any references in the Scheme to "upon the Scheme 
becoming effective" or "effectiveness of the Scheme" or "Scheme coming into effect" 
shall mean the "Effective Date”. 

f) The Part III of the Scheme shall become effective from the Appointed Date but shall be 
operative on and from the Effective Date. Part IV of the Scheme shall become operative 
and effective on and from the Effective Date. 

g) Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall stand 
dissolved without winding-up and without any further act or deed. 

h) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Transferor 
Company shall be added to and shall form part of the authorized share capital of the 
Transferee Company. Accordingly, the authorized share capital of the Transferee 
Company shall stand increased to the extent of the aggregate authorized share capital 
of the Transferor Company as on the effective date.  

i) The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to conditions precedent as mentioned in 
Clause 29 of the Scheme. 

Note: The above are the salient features of the Scheme. The Equity Shareholders of the 
Transferor Company are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme annexed hereto to 
get fully acquainted with the provisions thereof. 
 

4. BOARD APPROVALS 

 
4.1 The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at its Meeting held on 29th July, 2024, 

approved the Scheme as given below: 
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Name of Director 
Voted in favour/ against/ did not 

participate or vote 

Youngdong Jin Voted in favour 

Duraiswamy Gunaseela Rajan Voted in favour 

Kyungwoon Cho Voted in favour 

Komal Anand Voted in favour 

Jaehyun Kim Voted in favour 

Jun Yeon Kim Voted in favour 

 
4.2 The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at its Meeting held on 29th July, 2024, 

approved the Scheme as given below,  

Name of Director 
Voted in favour/ against/ did not 

participate or vote 

Kyungwoon Cho Voted in favour 

Milan Wahi Voted in favour 

Duraiswamy Gunaseela Rajan Voted in favour 

Jeehye You Voted in favour 

Jun Yeon Kim Voted in favour 

 
5. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”) 

AND THEIR RELATIVES: 

 
None of the Directors, KMPs, if any (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder), 
as applicable, of the Transferor Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the 
Act and rules framed thereunder), has any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Transferor Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors 
or the KMPs, as applicable, or their respective relatives has any material interest in the 
Scheme.  

None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the 
Transferee Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules 
framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding 
in the Transferee Company, if any. Save as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the KMPs 
or their respective relatives have any material interest in the Scheme.  

Since there are nil debenture holders in Transferor Company and Transferee Company there 
is no requirement to appoint any debenture trustees. 

6. EFFECT OF SCHEME ON STAKEHOLDERS 

 
The effect of Scheme on various stakeholders is summarized below: 
 

a) Equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter shareholders)  

Transferor Company: 

• Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue equity shares 
to the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company in the ratio mentioned in the 
Scheme. Post amalgamation, shareholders (promoters and non-promoters) of the 
Transferor Company will become the shareholders of the Transferee Company. 
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• The effectiveness of the Scheme shall have no adverse impact on the equity 
shareholders of the Company. 

 

Transferee Company: 

• The effectiveness of the Scheme shall have no adverse impact on the equity 
shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, the equity shareholders of the Company shall 
continue to be the shareholders of the Company, even after the effectiveness of the 
Scheme. 

 
b) Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMPs’) and Board of Directors  

Transferor Company: 

• Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without 
winding up and accordingly, its KMPs, if any, shall cease to be the KMPs of the Transferor 
Company. 

• Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without 
winding up and accordingly, its Board of Directors shall cease to exist.  

 
Transferee Company: 

• The effectiveness of the Scheme will have no impact on the KMP’s of the Transferee 
Company. The KMP’s of the Transferee Company shall continue to be the KMP’s, even 
after the effectiveness of the Scheme.  

• The effectiveness of the Scheme will have no impact on the Board of Directors of the 
Transferee Company. The Board of the Company shall continue to be the Board of the 
Transferee Company, even after the effectiveness of the Scheme.   

 
c) Employees  

Transferor Company: 

• All employees of the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have become the 
employees and staff of the Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date, and 
shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company without any interruption of service and 
on terms and conditions no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the 
Transferor Company as on the Effective Date, including in relation to the level of 
remuneration and contractual and statutory benefit, incentive plans, terminal benefits, 
gratuity plans, provident fund plans and any other retirement benefits 

 
Transferee Company: 

• The Scheme will have no effect on the existing employees of the Transferee Company. 
 

d) Creditors, Debenture holders and Debenture Trustees 

Transferor Company: 

• On the Scheme becoming effective, the creditors of the Transferor Company will become 
creditors of the Transferee Company and there will be no reduction in the claims of the 
creditors of the Transferor Company on account of the Scheme and will be paid in the 
ordinary course of business as and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood 
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that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as a result of the Scheme being 
sanctioned.  

  
Transferee Company: 

• The proposed Scheme does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the 
creditors. Creditors of the Transferee Company will continue to be creditors on the same 
terms and conditions, as before. The rights of the creditors of the Transferee Company 
shall not be adversely affected by the Scheme.  

 
Neither there are any debenture holders nor there are any debenture trustees of the 
Transferor Company or the Transferee Company. 

e) Depositors and Deposit Trustees 

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have not taken any term deposits 
from depositors therefore, no deposit trustees have been appointed. 

 
7. DEBT RESTRUCTURING 

 
The Scheme does not contain or provide for debt restructuring. The Scheme does not in any 
manner adversely or prejudicially affect the rights of any creditors of the Transferor Company 
and the Transferee Company or contemplate any compromise or arrangement with the 
creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. 
 

8. REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL  

 

The issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company as held by the 

Relevant Shareholders shall be cancelled and extinguished to the extent of 1,55,328 equity 

shares, by paying a sum of INR 882.29 per such equity share. 

 
9. NO INVESTIGATION PROCEEDINGS 

 
There are no proceedings pending under Sections 210 to 227 of the Act against the 
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. 
 

10. AMOUNTS DUE TO CREDITORS 

 
The amount due to Secured Creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee 
Company, as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows: 
 

Sl. no. Name of the company Amount in INR 

1. Transferor Company 15,34,79,342.84 

2. Transferee Company Nil 

 
The amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee 
Company, as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows: 
 

Sl. no. Name of the company Amount in INR 

1. Transferor Company 51,84,96,141 

2. Transferee Company 1,11,67,43,001 

 
The Scheme embodies the amalgamation between the Transferor Company and Transferee 
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Company, and their respective shareholders and creditors. No change in value or terms or 
any compromise or arrangement is proposed under the Scheme with any of the creditors of 
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. 
 

11. PRE-ARRANGEMENT AND POST ARRANGEMENT SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 

 
The pre-Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company as on 31st March, 2024 is 
as follows: 
 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Shareholder No. of shares 
% of 

Holding 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter 
Group   

1 Indian - - 

 Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family - - 

(b) Central Government/ State Government(s) - - 

(c) Bodies Corporate - - 

(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks - - 

(e) Any Others - - 

  Sub Total(A)(1) - - 

2 Foreign   

(a) Individuals (Non-Residents Individuals/ 
Foreign Individuals) 

- - 

(b) Bodies Corporate 99,99,998 99.99998 

(c)  Institutions - - 

(d) Any Others - - 

  Sub Total(A)(2) 99,99,998 99.99998 

  Total Shareholding of Promoter     and 
Promoter Group (A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 

99,99,998 99.99998 

(B) Public shareholding   

1 Institutions   

(a) Mutual Funds/ UTI - - 

(b) Financial Institutions / Banks - - 

(c) Central Government/ State Government(s) - - 

(d)  Venture Capital Funds  - - 

(e) Insurance Companies - - 

(f) 
Foreign Portfolio Investors (Individual & 
Corporate) 

- - 

(g) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - 

(h) Any Other (AIF) - - 

  Sub-Total (B)(1) - - 

2 Non-institutions   

(a) Bodies Corporate - - 

(b) Individuals 2 0.00002 

I 
Individuals -i. Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital up to Rs 2 lakh 

- - 

II 
ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal   
share capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh. 

- - 

(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - - 

(d) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) - - 

(e) Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) - - 

(f) 
Any Other (Trusts, HUF, LLPs, and Clearing 
Members) 

- - 
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Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Shareholder No. of shares 
% of 

Holding 

  Sub-Total (B)(2) 2 0.00002 

(B) Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1) + (B)(2) 2 0.00002 

  TOTAL (A)+(B) 1,00,00,000 100% 

 
Upon effectiveness of the Scheme the Transferor Company will be dissolved without winding 
up. 
 
The pre-Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company as on 31st March 2024 is 
as follows: 
 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Shareholder 
No. of 
shares 

% of 
Holding 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group   

1 Indian   

 Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family - - 

(b) Central Government/ State Government(s) - - 

(c) Bodies Corporate - - 

(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks - - 

(e) Any Others - - 

  Sub Total(A)(1) - - 

2 Foreign   

(a) Individuals (Non-Residents Individuals/ 
Foreign Individuals) 

- - 

(b) Bodies Corporate 1,39,47,035 98.90 

(c)  Institutions - - 

(d) Any Others - - 

  Sub Total(A)(2) 1,39,47,035 98.90 

  Total Shareholding of Promoter     and Promoter 
Group (A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 

1,39,47,035 98.90 

(B) Public shareholding   

1 Institutions   

(a) Mutual Funds/ UTI - - 

(b) Financial Institutions / Banks 1,567 0.01 

(c) Central Government/ State Government(s) - - 

(d)  Venture Capital Funds  - - 

(e) Insurance Companies - - 

(f) Foreign Portfolio Investors (Individual & Corporate) - - 

(g) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - 

(h) Any Other (AIF/Provident Fund/NBFC/FDI) - - 

  Sub-Total (B)(1) 1,567 0.01 

2 Non-institutions - - 

(a) Bodies Corporate 7,634 0.05 

(b) Individuals - - 

I Individuals -i. Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital up to Rs 2 lakh 

1,42,139 1.01 

II ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal   share 
capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh. 

- - 

(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - - 

(d) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) - - 

(e) Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) 1,723 0.01 
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(f) Directors and their relatives (excluding independent 
directors and nominee directors) 

- - 

(g) Any Other (Trusts, HUF, LLPs and Clearing 
Members 

2,265 0.02 

  Sub-Total (B)(2) 1,53,761 1.09 

 Total Public Shareholding (B)= (B)(1) + (B)(2) 1,55,328 1.10 

  TOTAL (A)+(B) 1,41,02,363 100 

 
 
The post-Scheme shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company will be as follows: 
 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Shareholder 
No. of 
shares 

% of Holding 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter 
Group 

  

1 Indian   

 Individuals/ Hindu Undivided Family - - 

(b) Central Government/ State Government(s) - - 

(c) Bodies Corporate - - 

(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks - - 

(e) Any Others - - 

  Sub Total(A)(1) - - 

2 Foreign   

(a) Individuals (Non-Residents Individuals/ 
Foreign Individuals) 

- - 

(b) Bodies Corporate 3,07,37,032 99.99999 

(c)  Institutions - - 

(d) Any Others   

  Sub Total(A)(2) 3,07,37,032 99.99999 

  Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter 
Group (A) = (A)(1) + (A)(2) 

3,07,37,032 99.99999 

(B) Public shareholding   

1 Institutions - - 

(a) Mutual Funds/ UTI - - 

(b) Financial Institutions / Banks - - 

(c) Central Government/ State Government(s) - - 

(d)  Venture Capital Funds  - - 

(e) Insurance Companies - - 

(f) Foreign Portfolio Investors (Individual & 
Corporate) 

- - 

(g) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - 

(h) Any Other(AIF/Provident Fund/NBFC/FDI)   

  Sub-Total (B)(1)   

2 Non-institutions - - 

(a) Bodies Corporate   

(b) Individuals 4 0.00001 

I Individuals -i. Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital up to Rs 2 lakh 

- - 

II ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal   share 
capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh. 

- - 

(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) - - 

(d) Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) - - 

(e) Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) - - 

23



 

                                             

 

(f) Directors and their relatives (excluding 
independent directors and nominee directors) 

- - 

(g) Any Other (Trusts, HUF, LLPs and Clearing 
Members 

  

  Sub-Total (B)(2) 4 0.00001 

 Total Public Shareholding (B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2) 4 0.00001 

  TOTAL (A)+(B) 3,07,37,036 100 

 
12. AUDITORS CERTIFICATE OF CONFORMITY OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE 

SCHEME WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

 
The Auditors of the Transferee Company, respectively, have confirmed that the accounting 
treatment specified in the said Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

 
13. FILING OF SCHEME WITH REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES  

The Companies undertake to intimate jurisdictional Registrar of Companies by filing e-forms. 

 

14. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS 

 
In addition to the documents annexed hereto, the electronic copy of following documents will 
be available for inspection by sending an email to the Transferor Company at 
sonam.jain@havmor.com.  
 
a) Certified copy of the Tribunal Order; 
b) Audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023 and provisional 

financial results as on 31st March 2024 of the Transferor Company; 
c) Audited financial results for the year ended 31st March 2023 and provisional financial 

results as on 31st March 2024 of the Transferee Company; 
d) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company; 
e) Copy of the Scheme; and 
f) Certificate of the Statutory Auditor of the Transferor Company confirming that the 

accounting treatment prescribed under the Scheme is in compliance with Section 133 
of the Act and applicable accounting standards. 

 
Based on the above and considering the rationale of the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the 
Transferor Company recommend the Scheme for approval of the Equity Shareholders. 
 
The Directors and KMPs, as applicable, of the Transferor Company and of the Transferee Company, 
and their relatives do not have any concern or interest, financially or otherwise, in the Scheme except 
as shareholders in general, if any. 
 
 
 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: September 10, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Jaehyun Kim 

Director 
DIN: 10047983 
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equit>' and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summarv of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformitv* with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes
in equitv' and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
"Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have hilfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.e nothi^j

T
Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 1701,17th Floor, Shapath V, 0pp. Karnavati Club, S G Highway
Ahmedabad - 380 051, Gujarat, India

T; +91 (79) 6924 7000. F; +91 (79) 6924 7082

Registered office and Hood office: 11-A, Vishnu OigafT^Mr Marg. Sucheta &wwan. Gate No 2, Ist Floor, New Delhi -110002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnerehip Firm} converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP {a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001)
witheHect from July 25, 2014. Post Its conversion to Price WatertwHise Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAI registration number is 012754N/N500016 (ICAi registration
number before conversion was 0127&4N) 72
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 of 5

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit cNidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
raisrepresenLations, outhe override of internal control.
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

IXDKFRNDENT AUDI TOR S REPOR'l

1 o the Members of Hav-mor Ice Cream Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 3 of 5

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section i43(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify' during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10.-As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (n) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure

B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A".
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 4 of 5

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 33 (i) to the financial statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under the
applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable
losses on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2023.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person's or entities, including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 50 (ix) to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 50 (ix) to the financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which
provides for maintaining books of account in accounting software having a feature of
recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change
made in books of account along with the date when such changes were made and
ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled, is applicable to the Company only with
effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule
II of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currentlv not
applicable.
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INDF.PENDKNT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

RepHjrt on Audit of the Financial Statements
Page 5 of 5

12. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number; 012754N/N500016

'

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 046521

UDIN; 23()4652iBGVDEC3236
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: September 26. 2023
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph ii(0 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Havmor Ice
Cream Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Page 1 of 2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Havmor

Ice Cream Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31. 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit cNidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph u(0 of the Independent Auditor s Report of even date to the members of Havmor Ice
Cream Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2023
Page 2 of 2

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial

statements

7  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 046521

UDIN : 2304652iBGYDF:C3236

Place: .\hmedabad

Date: September 26, 2023
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.Aiincxure B to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph lo of the Independent Auditors" Report of even date to the members of Havmor Ice
Cream Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31. 2023
Page 1 of 6

i. (a) (A) The Compaity is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property. Plant and Equipment (including Freezers, Deep Freezers. Push Carts, Canopy
and F'reezer on wheels amounting to Rs. 6,086.75 lakhs King with third parties) are physically
verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property,
Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in
Note 4 and 5 on Property. Plant and Equipment and Right-of -Use assets respectively to the
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description
of property

Gross

carrying
value

Held in the

name of

Whether

promoter,
director or

their

relative or

employee

Period held

- indicate

range,

where

appropriate

Reason for

not being
held in the

name of the

Company

Building 130.89 Havmor Ice

Cream

Limited

No 16 Years Held in the

name of the

erstwhile

name of the

company

Building 27.23 No 17 Years

Right of Use
asset

1054.16 No 4-11 Years

Right of Use
asset

130.22 No 11 Years The company
has filed an

application for
name change

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the
amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrv ing value of
each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets does not arise.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report
Referred to in paragraph lo of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Havmor Ice
Cream Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Page 2 of 6

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory l>ing
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has
filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account (Also refer Note 50 (x) to the financial statements).

iii. (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans, to its 52 employees during the year. The company
has not made any investments in, nor granted any other secured/unsecured loans or advance in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided securit>' to any parties to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were
granted are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated,
and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety
days.

(e) There were no loans which fell due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further, no
fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans/advances in nature
of loan.

(0 There were no loans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including
to promoters/related parties.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under
clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

V, The Compan> has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73. 74^ 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report
Referred to in paragraph lo of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Havmor Ice
Cream Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Page 3 of 6

VI. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

\i\. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us. in our opivnion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax, goods and serNices tax, though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident
fund, employees' state insurance, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Companv
examined by us. there are no statutorv' dues of provident fund, employee state insurance, dutv
of customs, cess, goods and services tax and professional tax which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as
at March 31, 2023 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of

the

statute

Nature of

dues

Amount

Involved

(Rs. in

Lakhs)

Amount

unpaid (Rs.
in Lakhs)

Period to

which

the

amount

relates

Forum where

the dispute is
pending

Income

Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax 206.44 206.44 2016-17 Commissioner of

Income Tax

(Appeals)

Income

Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax 261.91 261.91 2017-18 Commissioner of

Income Tax

(Appeals)

Income

Tax Act,
1961

Income Tax 311.69 311.69 2015-16 Commissioner of

Income Tax

(Appeals)

Income

Tax Act,

1961

Income Tax 418.23 418.23 2020-21 Commissioner of

Income Tax

(Appeals)

Vlll. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
that has not been recorded in the books of account.

ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable
to the company.

(0 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(b()(0 of the Order is not applicable
to the company.

X. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our e.xamination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has received whistle-blower complaints
during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on our audit and reporting
under this clause.
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xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
"Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, this party being
holding company, Section 188 shall not apply as the company is a private company, as per
Ministry of Corporate Affairs "Notification number G.S.R. 464 (E) dated June 05, 2015 and the
Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and,
accordingly, to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

xiv. (b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance vrith the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

-xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3{xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated
whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.
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xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 48 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 046521

L'DIN : 2304652iBG\'DEC3236
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: September 26. 2023
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Balance Sheet

Asar M March 2023

{All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Assets

NoiKurrent assets

(a) Prupcny. plant and equipment
(b) Righi-flf-uscasstis

(c) Capital work-in-progress
(d) Goodwill

(e) Other intangible assets

(0

(g)

(h)

(i)

Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets

Non Current tax assets (net)
Deferred lax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Current assets

(a) Inventones

(b) Rnancial assets

(!) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalotts
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Ixians

(V) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

(a) Equity share capital
(bl Other equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(ai Financial liabilities

(i) Uase liabilities

Total Non- current assets

Total Current assets

Total Equity

Total Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

(aj Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities

(ii) Trade payables - total outstanding dues of
(a) micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) creditors other than micro enterfMrises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions

(dl Current tax liabilities (net)

Total Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

S-re accompanying notes forming pan of the financial statements

Ir terms of our report attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: OI2754N/N5()OOI6

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership No: 046521

As at As at

Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

4 1U73.99 10.899.70
5 12379.58 5399.75
6 2,496.28 35.49
7 421.40 421.40
8 116.73 217.87

to 428.05 341.84

428.05 341,84

14 2I.S.20 108.21
11 668.41 598.87
12 953.13 26.79

29.052.77 18.049.92

13 12.566.44 5.538.53

15 905.15 795.61
16A 1.962.79 6,779.82
168 6.90 257.15
9 22.21 32.01
10 9382.08 10.948.95

12379.13 18.813.54

12 2.968.42 983.78

27.813.99 25335.8.5

56.866.76 43,385.77

17 1.000.00 1.000.00
18 30.173.28 22.927.44

31.173.28 23.927.44

19 6.537.40 4315.87

6337.40

00

19 2385.02 1327.42
23

1,787.19 1,695.31

5,190.95 3,270.03
20 8.697.24 6.784.00

18.060.40 13,076.76

22 875.15 1,490.84
21 220.26 577.64
24 037 97.22

19.156.08 15.242.46

25.693.48 19.458.33

56.866.76 43.385.77

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
CJN: UI5200GJ2006PTC0480I6

\

rccior

DIN:06693454

Jaehyiin Kim

M7»o/e Time Director

DIN: 10047983

Atimedabad

St ptember 26.2023

nin Tnredl

Head • /'inance

Ahmcdabad. September 26.2023

Sonam Jain

Companx Secretan'

ICSI Memb. No.: A37095
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Statemem of Profit and Loss

For the ye n- ended 5! March 2023

(Ail amoums in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Lxpenses
Cost 01 materials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods, semi finished goods and stock-
in-trade

Emplovee benefits expense
Finance costs

Deprec lation and amonisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax

Tax expense:

Curren tax

Excess provision of tax relating to earlier years
Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclasslfled to profit or loss
Re-me;.surements of defined benefit plan
Income tax relating to above

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (Face value Rs. 10 per share)
Basic and Diluted (INR) per share

Year ended Year ended

Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

25 97,290.47 67,364.09
26 1,412.10 830.94

98,702.57 68.195.03

27 58,506.08 33,949.54

817.24 320.14

28 (2,368.49) (73.33)

29 6,145.29 5,646.83
30 578.21 626.29

31 4,733.92 4,742.40
32 20.588.97 14,787.18

89,001.22 59,999.05

9,70IJ5 8,195.98

11 2,579.98 2,365.04
II (3.17) (9.66)
11 (82.57) (257.19)

2,494.24 2,098.19

7,207.11 6,097.79

38 51.76 (80.72)
11 (13.03) 20,32

38.73 (60.40)

7,245.84 6.037.39

37

72,07 60.98

Sec accompanying notes forming part of the financial stat^ents

In terms of our report attached

For Price aterhousc Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Regisiiation Number: 0I2754N/N500016

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership No; 046521

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

CIN : UI5200GJ2006PTC048016

Komal .^knd
MafiagiiigT)irector
DIN; 06693454

Jaehyun Kim
Whole Time Director

DIN; 10047983

Ahmedabad

September 26. 2023

Thy"-'.>Wimin Tflvedi
Head - Finance

Ahmedabad. September 26, 2023

5ham Jain

Company Secretaiy
ICSI Memb. No,: A37095
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Havnior Ice Cream Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the \ ear ended J / March 2023

(All arTKunts in INR lakhs unless othmvise stated)

{A] Equity share capital

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital
Equity sh.tres of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Balance as at 1 April 2021
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance MS at 31 March 2022

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Note

17

Number of shares

10,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

Amount

1,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

|BI Uther equity (Refer Note 18) Reserves and surplus Total

General reserve Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2021
Profit for the year

Other coniprehcnsi\ e income for the year, net of tax of Rs. 20.32 lakhs
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 March 2022

Profit for l ie year
Other comprehensue income for the year, net of tax of R,s. (13.03) lakhs
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance ai 31 March 2023

73.47 16,816.58 16,890.05

- 6.097.79

(60.40)

6.097.79

(60.40)

- 6,037.39 6,037.39

73.47 22,853.97 22,927.44

- 7,207.11

38.73

7,207.11

38.73

- 7,245.84 7,245.84

73.47 30,099.81 30,173.28

Sec accompanying notes lorming part of the financial statements
in terms of our report attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Regisiration Number: OI2754N/N5(M)0|6

Viren Shah

Partner

Membershiii No: 046521

and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

\: \\ CIN : U15200GJ2()06PTC048016

Jaehyun Kim
Whole Time Director

DIN: I00479X?

Komal Adi|kd
Managing Director

DIN: 06693454

Ahmedabad

September 26. 2023

imin Triv^i

Head - Finance

Ahmedabad. September 26. 2023

^onarn Jain
Company Secretary

ICSI Memb. No.; A37095
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the war ended 3! March 2023
(All ani'iunts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for;

D^reciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs

Pro\ ision for expected credit loss
Excess Provision written back for doubtful debts and advances
Interest irKome on unwinding of discount on security deposits
Interest income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Gain on cancellation of lease

Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment
Liabilities no longer payable written back
Sundry balances wntten off

Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net)
Operating profit before working capiui changes
Movement in working capital;
Adjustments for decrease / (increase) in operating assets;

Inveniories

Trade receivables

Loan;

Other Financial and Current assets
Adjustments for increase (decrease) in op«uting liabilities:

Trade payables
Other Financial and Current liabilities
Provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income ta-ces paid (net)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Cash flow s from investing activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
(Investments) / redemption in deposits with bank and financial institutions (net)
Interes received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow s from financing activities
Proceeils / (Rq)aymenl) of current borrowings (net)
Repayment of lease liability (including interest)
Interest paid

Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and rash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

31

30

32

26

26

26

26

32

26

32

26

(A)

(B)

(C)

(A + B + C)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

9,701.35 8,195.98

4,733.92 4,742.40
578.21 626.29

- 22.35

(42.45) -

(9.65) (5.25)
(1,037.74) (599.35)

(86.51) (54.35)
(33J1) (16.31)
16.97 68.73

- (18.01)
4.17

(4.61) 2.02

13.820.35 12,964.50

(7,027.91) 438.73

(95.93) 267.61

9.80 (12.23)
(2,062.15) (70.33)

2,012.80 677.43

286.94 803.14

(305.62) 89.21

6,638.28 15,158.06

(2.780.75) (2.489.01)

3.857.53 12,669.05

(9,741.90) (2,273.43)
184.44 244.64

1,943.25 (2.900.91)
918.42 537.85

(6,695.79) (4,391.85)

- (1,512.33)
(1,954.40) (1,864.59)

(24.37) (47.48)

(1,978.77) (3,424.40)

(4,817.03) 4,852,80
6,779.82 1,927.02

1.962.79 6.779.82
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

Statemeni of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the v« or ended JI March 2023

(All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

1. The above Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the
/•■/oM > .

2. Non-< ash financing and investing activities

Acquisition of Right of use assets

3. Cash and cash equivalents include:
Cash in Hand

Balances with banks:

III current accounts

hxed Demand with Original maturity less than 3 months

Fixed deposits with financial institutions:
Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
(Onginal maturity less than 3 months)

See accompanying notes forming part of the fi naiKial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: OI2754N/N5()OOl6

'Indirect Method" set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 - Statement of Cash

Viren Shah
Partner

Membership No: 046521

Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

4,972.92 414.19

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Match 2022

10.63 12.15

439.62 656.48

- 4,102.77

1,512.54 2,008.42

L962.79 6.779.82

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

CIN : UI5200GJ2006PTC0480I6

Anant^
^ing Director

1:06693454

Jaehyun Kim
fVhole Time Director

DIN: 10047983

Ahmedabad

September 26. 2023

Irlvedi
Head - Finance

Ahmedabad, September 26, 2023

lonam Jain
Company Secretary

ICSI Memb. No.: A37095
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Havmor Icc Cream Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements

tor ihc year ended SI March 2023

1. Reporting entity

Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited (Formerly, Havmor Ice Cream Limited) ('the Company') is a

privately held limited Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at 2"'' floor.
Commerce House 4, besides shell petrol pump, Prahladnagar Anandnagar road. Ahmedabad-
380051. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956

(earlier Act of 2013). The Company manufactures various flavors of ice creams sold in different

forms of consumer packs like bulk packs, party packs, family packs, sundaes, cups, cones, candies,

bars, roll cut slices, etc.

With effect from 18 September 2018, on conversion of public limited company to private limited

company, the name of the Company has been changed from Havmor Ice Cream Limited to Havmor
Ice Cream Private Limited.

1(A). New standards or interpretations adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2022. which amended certain accounting standards,
and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

1(B). New standards or interpretations issued but not yet effective

The Company will apply the following standard for the first time for its annual reporting period
commencing April 01. 2023:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies
(Indian .Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the 'Rules'), which amend certain
accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.
The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12. Income Taxes and Ind AS I, Presentation of Financial
Statements. The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of
clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary
as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the group's accounting policy already
complies with the now mandatory treatment.

2. Basis of preparation

a. Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are in compliance, in all material aspects, with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with
the [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of
the Act and rules made thereunder.

As prescribed by the Ind AS, if the particular Ind AS is not in conformity with the applicable

laws, the provisions of the said law shall prevail and financial statements shall be prepared in

conformity with such laws. Consequently, the Company has applied this nomi while preparing
the financial statements.

>0—
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)
for the yi ar ended 31 March 2023

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's

functional currency. All amounts in the financial statements and notes have been presented in

INR Lakhs (except for share data) rounded to two decimals as per the requirement of Schedule

III of the Companies Act, 2013, unless otherwise staled.

c. Basis ofmeasurement

The Financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost

convention except for following:

Items Measurement basis

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value
of defined benefit obligations

d. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of

assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of

resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following

notes;

Note 4 and 8

Note 15

Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets

Allowance for doubtful debts / expected credit losses

Note 11 Current / Deferred tax expense and evaluation of recoverability of deferred
tax assets

Note 38 Measurement of employee defined benefit obligations; key actuarial
assumptions

Note 33 (i)

Note 35

Contingent Liabilities

Lease Liabilities

e. Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)
for the year endeJ 31 March 2023

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their best economic interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

•  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

•  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
following notes:

Note 38 I Employee benefits

f. Operating cycte

AH the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of the products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.
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3. Significant accounting polices

a. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i  Recognition and initial measurement

A financial asset is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Company measures a

financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs tliat are directly attributable to the

acquisition (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the

fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cost that

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediate in profit or loss. These includes trade and other
receivables, loans, cash and cash equivalents and bank balances.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities measured at

fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost as

appropriate

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loan and
borrowings including bank overdrafts.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets

and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

a Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets: classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

Amortized cost;

FVTPL (fair value through profit or loss); and

FVOC! (fair value through other comprehensive income).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in

the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions

and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding.
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3. Significant accounting polices (Continued)

a. Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of

the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and

The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPl.

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which

are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative

gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassifled from equity to profit or loss and

recognised in other gains / (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included

in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses

are presented in other gains and losses and impairment expenses in other expenses.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described

above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably

designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

At present, the Company does not have any financial asset accounted at FVTPL or FVOCI.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial

liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative

or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured

at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit

or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss.

Hi. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows

from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.
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3. Significant accounting polices (Continued)

a. Financial instruments (Continued)

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its Balance

Sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred

assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are

discharged or cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the
cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial

liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the

carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with

modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the

Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right

to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent

on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event

of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the counterparty.

b. Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or

services, or for administrative purposes, are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing

the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and

removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located but after deducting trade

discounts and rebates.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of

materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to

working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the

item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and

equipment.
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Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in

profit or loss.

a Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs relating to day to day servicing of the item are not recognised in the

carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment; rather, these costs are

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Hi Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation is

provided on a pro rata basis on the straight line method over the useful life of the assets

based on technical evaluation done by management's expert which are different than those

prescribed by Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage

of assets.

The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed at least at each

financial year end. If the expectation differs from previous estimates, the changes are

accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of assets Management estimate of useful Useful life as per Schedule II

life of (he Companies Act, 2013

Buildings 30 to 50 years 30 to 60 years

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years 15 years

Office equipm^i 5 years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 4 years 10 years

Vehicles 4 to 5 years 8 to 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 to 6 years

The useful life of following class of property, plant and equipment is based on internal
technical reassessment from I January 2018:

Description of the asset Estimated life Useful life as per Schedule II
of the Companies Act, 2013

Office building 50 years 60 years

Furniture 4 vears 10 \'e^

Plant and machineries tOvears 15 years

Cars 4 vears 8 to 10 vears

iv Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The consequential
gain or loss is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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c. Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative

purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes purchase price,
taxes and duties, labour cost and other directly attributable costs incurred upto the date the asset

is ready for its intended use. Such property, plant and equipment are classified to the appropriate

categories when completed and ready for intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of

property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as other

non-current assets.

d. Intangible assets

i. Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost.
Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and

any accumulated impairment losses. Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets

which are not ready to use at the reporting date is disclosed under "Intangible assets under

development".

a. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when It increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Hi. Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life as follows:

A.<iSCt Management estimate of
useful life

Patent and trademark 10 years

Software 5 years

The useful life of computer software have been reassessed from 1 January 2018 as 5 years

from 10 years.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each

financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

iv. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
Derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.
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e. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of the acquired businesses in excess of the fair value of identifiable

tangible and intangible net assets purchased. Goodwill is not amortised; however it is tested

annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

/ Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition

Initial recognition of foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign
currency amount at the exchange rale between the reporting currency and the foreign currency

at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent recognition

As at the reporting date, monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the

transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation

denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the

values were determined.

Exchange differences on restatement of all monetary items are recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

g. Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, packing material, semi-finished goods, finished

goods, stock-in-trade and Store, spares and consumables are canied at the lower of cost and net

realizable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred

in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

For determining cost, weighted average cost method is used. Cost of raw materials comprises

cost of purchases. The cost of finished goods and work in progress includes raw materials, direct

labour, other direct costs and appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure
computed on normal capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

h. Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with

its financial assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
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For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assd that

result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 only, the Company follows
'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss and always measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance of trade

receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the

expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analyzed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the Balance Sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

ii Impairment of non-fmancial assets

Non-financial assets of the Company, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are

reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CCDs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of

assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other

assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use

and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company's corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to

various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a

corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the

carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying

amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,

the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in

the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the

extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
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been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

iii. Goodwill:

Goodwill is tested for impairment, at least annually and whenever circumstances indicate

that it may be impaired. For the purpose of impaimient testing, the Goodwill is allocated to

a CGU or group of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the

business combination in which the said Goodwill arose. If the estimated recoverable amount

of the CGU including the Goodwill is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then

to the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each asset in

the unit.

i. Employee benefits

\  Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are

expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised forthe amount expected

to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount

as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be

estimated reliably.

ii Defined contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plans for post-employment benefits n^ely

Provident Fund and Employees state insurance scheme. Under the Provident Fund Plan and

Employees state insurance scheme, the Company contributes to a Government administered

itind on behalf of its employees and has no further obligation beyond making its
contribution.

The Company's contributions to the above funds are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss

every year.

iii Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution

plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated

separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have

earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value

of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary

using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits

available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions

to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any minimum funding requirements.

9, ̂
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The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the

defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets. This cost is included in the

employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the changes to the

asset ceiling (if applicable), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or

credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and
consequently recognised in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in

benefit that relates to past service ('past service cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or

loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes

gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

iv Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits such as sick leave and leave encashment is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets

is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurements gains or losses are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The said obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

j. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Contingent liability

Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may. but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible

101



Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)
lor the year ended 31 March 2023

obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in Financial
statements. However, the same is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

k. Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are

transferred to the customer net of discounts and other similar allowances. The Company

assesses promises in the contract to identify separate performance obligations to which a portion
of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred

to the customer i.e. generally on the delivery of the goods.

Revenue for sale of services is recognised when the services are rendered and there are no

uncertainties involved to its ultimate realization.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
customer discounts and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. In
determining the transaction price, the Company estimates the variable consideration to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue

recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the level of discount varies with increases in levels of revenue transactions, the Company

recognizes the liability based on its estimate of the customer's future purchases. If it is probable
that the criteria for the discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated

reliably, then discount is not recognised until the payment is probable and the amount can be
estimated reliably. The Company recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for
discounts in the period in which the change occurs.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e.
unbilled revenue is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract
assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs

when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer.
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Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional

i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

1. Leases

Company as a lessee:

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is. or contains, a lease ifthe contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. It sets out principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases,
except short-term leases and leases for low-value items, under a single on-balance sheet lease
accounting model. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,

plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the

underlying asset or to restore the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of

the lease term.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the

commencement dale to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the

end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the

same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any. and adjusted for certain re-measurements of
the lease liabilic>'.

The lease liabilit>' is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using incremental borrowing rate. For leases with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the
portfolio as a whole.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments,
including in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value

guarantee and the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain

to exercise an extension option.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. Lease
payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period-

Lease liability and the right of use asset have been separately presented in the balance sheet and

lease payments have been classified as financing activities.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term

leases that have a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and
assets with low value leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these

leases as an expense in statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The related cash flows

are classified as operating activities.

Company as a lessor:

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever

the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,

the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on

a straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance

Sheet based on their nature.

m. Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset: or

the amortized cost of the financial liability.

n. Income tax

i. Current lax

Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss

for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or

received after considering the uncertainty, if any. related to income taxes. It is measured using

tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted under the Indian tax law.
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable

right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the

liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

iL Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used

for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses

and tax credits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary

differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused

tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be

available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax

assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is

probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset

current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle

current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized

simultaneously.

Hi. Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in OCI, in which case, the

current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in OCI.

o. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the

cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss In the period in which they are incurred. Income earned on the temporary investment

of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Ind AS financial statements (Continued)
lor fhe year ended SI March 2023

p. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) by the weighted average
number of equit>' shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by adjusting the figures used in the determination of

basic EPS to take into account;

- After tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares.

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q. Segments reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to

the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

r. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise of cash. Bank

overdrafts and cheques in hand, bank balances, unencumbered demand deposits with banks
where the original maturity is three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows.

s. Events occurring after the reporting dale

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the Balance Sheet date)

occurring after the Balance Sheet date are recognized in the Financial statements. Material non

adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions tliat arose subsequent to the Balance Sheet

date) occurring after the Balance Sheet date that represents material change and commitment

affecting the financial position are disclosed in the Directors" Report.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March >023

(All anu'iuiil;> ui IN'R uiiltn.-. uiiici w isc >iaictl|

4  Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Building Plant and

Machinery
Office

Equipment
Furniture and

Fixture

Vehicles Computers Total

Gross Block (At cost)

Balance as at 1 April 2021
Additions

Deductions

1,484.11 I8,054J3

2,735.87

(1,038.69)

333.54

4.73

(11.29)

492.14

(24.31)

1,502.66

148.18

(136.83)

315.86

36.69

(20.21)

22,182.64

2,925.47

(1,231.33)Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions

Deductions

Balance as at31 March 2023

1,484.11 19.751.51 326.98 467.83 1,514.01 332J4 23,876.78
1,484.1 1

17.99

19,751.5!

3,364.00

(632.14)

326.98

25.29

467.83

7.70

1,514.01

204.59

(61.56)

332.34

112.92

(43.19)

23,876.78

3,732.49

(736.89)
1,502.10 22,483.37 352.27 475,53 1,657.04 402.07 26,872.38

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2021
Depreciation for the year
Deductions

235.61

59.27

8,739,25

2,762.27

(798.62)

205.07

47.99

(11.16)

403.96

55.37

(15.84)

881.06

278.30

(126.24)

210.19

70.81

(20.21)

10,675.14

3,274.01

(972.07)Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Depreciation for the year
Deductions

Balance as at 31 March 2023

294.88 10,702.90 241.90 443.49 1,033.12 260.79 12,977 08
294.88

59.61

10,702.90

2,760.82

(521.12)

241.90

41.23

443.49

20.16

1,033.12

198.74

(59.1 1)

260.79

64.14

(43.16)

12,977.08

3,144.70

(623.39)
354.49 12.942.60 283.13 463.65 1,172.75 281.77 15.498.39

Carrying amounts (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at3l March 2023
1,189.23 9,048.61 85.08 24.34 480.89 71.55 10,899.70
1,147.61 9.540.77 69.14 11.88 484.29 120.30 11,373.99

Footnotes :

(i) The above property, plant and equipment have been mortgaged to secure borrowings of the company (Refer Note 50(x)).
(li) Capital Commitments - Refer Note 33(ii) for disclosure of contractual commitment for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
(Ill) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the current or previous year as it follows cost model.
(iv) Refer note 49 for title deeds of immovable property not held in the name of the company.

r
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Notes to the tlnancial statements (continued)

For the year > nded 31 March 2023

(All amounts m fNR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

5  Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Leasehold Land Building Plant and Total

Machinery

Gross Block (At cost)

Balance as at 1 April 2021 130.22 4,411.51 4,601.84 9,143.57

.Additions - 285.42 128.77 414.19

(Deduciions) - (458.73) - (458.73)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 130.22 4,238.20 4,730.61 9,099.03

Balance as at 1 April 2022 130.22 4,238.20 4,730.61 9,099.03

Additio)is 3,619.62 1,545.50 3.427.42 8,592.54

(Deductions) - (646.91) - (646.91)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,749.84 5,136.79 8,158.03 17,044.66

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 9.32 1,460.38 1,187.22 2,656.92

Depreciation for the year 2.33 782.73 575.24 1,360.30

(Deductions) - (317.94) . (317.94)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 11.65 1,925.17 1,762.46 3,699.28

Balance as at 1 April 2022 11.65 1,925.17 1,762.46 3,699.28

Depreci.ation for the year 24.46 822.17 . 663.58 1,510.21

(Deductions) - (544.41) - (544.41)

Balanct as at 31 March 2023 36.11 2,202.93 2,426.04 4,665.08

C'arrving amounts (net)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 118.57 2.313.03 2,968.15 5,399.75

Balanct- as at 31 March 2023 3,713.73 2,933.86 5,731.99 12,379.58

Footnotes:

(!) Refer note 49 for Title Deeds of Right of Use assets not held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The company has not re\alued its Right of Use assets during the current or previous year as it follows cost model.

6  Capital work-in-progress

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Amount

Cost (gross carrying amount)
Balanct as at I April 2021

Additio IS

Assets c apitalised during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Addilio IS

Assets capitalised during the year

Balanct as at 31 March 2023

Carrying amounts*

Balance as at .^1 March 2022

Balance as at 31 March 2023

1,140.22

1,820.74

(2,925.47)

35.49

35.49

6,193.28

(3,732.49)

2,496.28

35.49

2,496.28

* It ma| >rly pertains to Building and Plant and Machinery.

Footnoics :

(i) Refe note 40 for Aging Schedule of Capital work-in-progress.

(ii) .Additions to capital work in progress itKludes capitalisation of directly attributable cost incurred by the company under various headings.

<>a.n p
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Notes to the financial statemenU (continued)
For the \\ ar ended 3 / March 2023

(All amounts jti INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)
7  Goodwill

Recnncitlation of carrying amount

Amount

421.40

Balance as at 1 April 2021
Additions

Dediictions

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at I April 2022
Addiiions

Deductions

Balance as at 31 March 2023

8  Other Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

421.40

421.40

421.40

Patents and Software Total

trademark

5.72 636.88 642.60

- 14.50 14.50

- (29.231 (29.23)
5.72 622.15 627.87
5.72 622.15 627.87

5.72 622.15 627.87

3.18 327.92 331.10
0.67 107.42 108.09

- (29.19) (29,19)
3.85 406.15 410.00

3.85 406.15 410.00
0.67 100.47 101.14

4.52 506.62 511.14

Gross Block (At cost)
Balance as at 1 April 2021
Additions

Deductions

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at I April 2022
Additions

Dedui tions

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2021
Amortisation for the year
Deductions

Balance as at 31 March 2022
Balanc e as at I April 2022

Anwnisation for the year
Deductions

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Carrying amounts (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at 31 March 2023
1.87

1.20

216.00 217.87

Footn«>les;

(i) The company has not revalued its intangible assets during the current or previous year as it follows cost model.
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Notes to (he fiaancial statements (eontinuet!}
Forrhe yvaremdedJI March 2023

(All amounis in tNR lakhs unless otherwise staled)

9  Loans*

(Unsecmred cvnsidered good)

Partk^rs

CnrretM

Loans to employees

As at

31 March 2023

22.21

As at

* No lomis are credit impaired and there is no significant inciease in credit risk ofloens.
10 Odier financial assets

31 March 2022

32.01

32.01

Particinars

Noa-ciHTcnt

Security deposits
428.0S 341.84

Fixed Deposit with financial institutions •
Housing Devclopmenl Finance Corporation Limited (Deposit
amount Rs. 7.901 Ukhs (31 March 2022 - Rs. 9,300 Lakhs)
PNB Housing Finance Limited (Deposit amount Rs 1000 Lakhs
(31 March 2022 - Rs. 500 Lakhs)
LIT Housing Finance Limited (Deposit amount Rs. 200 takh^ n ]
Nfareh 2022 - Rs. 1.000 Lakhs)

8,065.80

1.048.63

205.42

341.84

9J74.00

500.00

1.028.22

Security deposits
Intcreg accrued on depositi

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

■Including accrued mterest of Rs 218 85 Lakhs (31 March 2022 - Rs. 102.22 lakhs).
! I Deferretl tax Assets (net)

9JI9.8S

44.54

17.69

9J82.08

10.902.22

37.73
9.00

10,948.95

Partkalars As at

31 March 202231 March
hiefemd lax assets:

Difference between WDV of properly, plant and equipment and intangible
income tax ®

Expenses allowable for tax purpose on payment basis
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances
Others

assets as per books and

539.12
15.47

39.53

74.29
668.41 598.87

330.89
58.98

133.33
75.67

( > Income tax expense recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss

Particoiars Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 2022

C nrrcnt lax
Current tax on profit for the year
Excess provision of tax rebting to earlier years

Deferred lax (Other than that disclosed under OCI)
(Increase) in Deferred Tax Assets
(Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities

2,579.98
(3.17)

2,365.04
(9.66)

(82.57) (257.19)

2,494.24 2.098.19(Ml Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive

Particulars Year ended
31 March

Year ended
31 March 2022

Deferred tax (refcf note 11(1) abovel
Pcfen^tl lax (Credit) Charge on rcmcasurcments of defined benefi. pl»n

(13.03)
(13.03)
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Noie5 (0 th« financial stalements (continued)
Foi the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise slated)

1 i Deferred lax Assets (net) (continued)

(Hi) Reconcliialion of tax expenses and the accounting profit muitiplied by India's statutory tax rate:

Tax using the Company-g statutory tax rate of 25.168% (Previous Year - 2S I68V0I
Effect of I

Non deductible expenses

Tax holiday incentive
Change in lax rate
Excess provisions of earlier years
Others

Tax expense at effective tax rate

Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31 March 31 March 2022

8,195.98

Profit before tax

9,701.35

2,494.24 2.098.19
The tax rate used for the reconciliations given above is the actual / enacted

(iv) Movements In deferred Ux assets / (liabilities) (net)

farticuiars

corporate tax rate payable by coiporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax la

Balance as at Recognised in profit Recognised i
I April 2022 or loss OCI Balance as at

31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets

Difference between WDV of property, plant and equipment and inungible assets
as per books and income tax

Expenses allowable for lax purpose on payment basis
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances
Others

330.89

58.98

133.33

75.67

208.23

(30.48)

(93.80)

(1.38)

(13.03)

598.87
(13.03) 668.41

Particulars
Balance as at Recognised in profit Recognised in
1 April 2021 or loss OCI

539.12

15.47

39.53

74.29

Balance as at

31 March 2022

Deferred tax assets

Difference between WDV of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
as per books and income tax

Expettses allowable for tax purpose on payment basis
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances
Others

306.16

(51.39)

5.62

(3.20)

127.71

321J6 257.19 598.17

12 Other assets

( Jnsecured considered good, unless sated otherwise)
Particulars

Non-current

P'epaid expenses
( apital advances

balance with government authorities

C urrent

Bilance with government authorities

As at

19.92

933.06

0.15

953.13

450.84

As at

1.42

23.99

1.38

26.79

134.33

137.09

587.93
158.93

293.26

Advances to employees
AdvatKcs to vendors 8.72 8.15

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful 2371.77 682.37

Less : Provision for expected credit losses 2371.77

2371.77

2.968.42

1,041.45

(359.08)

682.37

983.78

330.89

58.98

133.33

75.67

>9—
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Notes u> Ike flaaacial stalemcnu (continued)

For the ear ended SI March 2023

(All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise staled)

13 Inventories

(I allied at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Tartkalars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Riw materials
7,236.95 3.130.79

P.icking materials 812.80 647.96
Scmi finished goods

129.24 121.23
finished goods 3.486.46 U96.94
S>uck-in-trade 197.14 26.18
Stores, spares and consumables

703.85 315.43

12^66.44 5.538.53

Notes:

(i' Canying amount of inventories (included above) have been mortgaged to secure borrowings of the company.

(ioWritc-downsofinventones to net realisable value amounted to INR 54.36 lakhs (31 March 2022 - Nil). These were recognised as an
expense tkjring the year and included in 'changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods' in
st-tietneni of profii and loss

14 Nod Current tax assets (net)

Partkalan 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Nun Current tax assets (net) (Net of Provision for taxation of Rs

6.^96 95 Lakhs (31 March 2022 - Rs. 4.2)6.97 Lakhs)
215.20 108,21

215.20 108.21

T rade receivables

As at

Partkuian Note
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured. Credit impaired

905.15

157.08

795.61

170.69

Less Provision for cxi>ecled credit losses 44

1,062.23

(157.08)

966.30

(170.69)

905.15 795.61

Notes:

I The Company's exposure to credit risk and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 44.
1 Trade Receivables have been mcnlgaged to secure borrowings of the company.
1 Refer note 41 for aging of trade receivables.

Cash and other bank balances

As at

Partkaiars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A| Cash aad cash equivakats
Cash on Hand

Balance with banks:

In current accounts

Fixed deposit with originat maturity of less than 3 months*

10.63

439.62

12.15

656.48

4.102.77

Fixed deposit with flnarKial institutions:

Housing Developmeni Finance Corporation Limited
(Original maturity less than 3 months)**

1,512.54 2.008.42

1,962.79 6.779,82

•Ircluding accrued intercsi of Rs NIL (31 March 2022 Rs. 2.77 Lakhs)
"Including accrued interest ofRs 12 54 Lakhs (31 March 2022 Rs 8.42 Lakhs)

B| Bank balances other Ihan (A)

Fixed deposits with remaining maiurity less than 12 Months"
6.90 257.15

6.90 257.15

4 Rs 5 43 Lakhs (As at 3) March 2022 Rs 50.30 Lakhs) pledged with bank as seciuity against non fund based facilities obtained
from Bankers. Including accrued interest of Rs. 0.10 Lakhs (31 March 2022-Rs. 5.92 Lakhs).

'Tie
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Nmci In the flaasdml sutemenis Icoaiinutt)
For the ear ended M March 21123

(All am uats m INR lakhs unless othmvise staled)

17 CqMity sbare capital

hutkalan

Aalhaiiaul Share capital
!< .000.000 (31 March 3022 10,000.000) e(|uity shares ofRs. 10 each

tawed, Sabscribed and Paid ap capital
l'.000.000(3l March 2022 I 0.000.000)eqiutysharesofRs. lOeach

As at

t.000.00

1,000.00

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 20??

1.000.00

1.000.00

or share oatstaadiaii at the bcfiaaiac aad at the cad of the vear
Partkalars

31 March 2023

No, of Shares Aatouol
31 March 2022

No. ofShares Amouai

1.000,00

1.000,00

At the begninini; aitd at the end oflhe year
Issued durmg (he year

fXitstanding at the end of (he year

i 0.000.000

10.000,000

1,000.00

1,000.00

10.000.000

10.000,000

N< le There is no movement in equity share durnii: the vear.

Rifha. preferences and restrktiou aiuched lo cqnily shares

company declares and pay, drvtdead in

^ r ■ ^ shareholders m the ensumg Annual Get^al Meeting, eccep. m case of mienm dividend. In

Dctaib of shares held hv the HnMing Comoaav

PaiTkalan 31 March 2023

% holdlae Amouoi
3! March 2022

«-«.W8 shares (31 March 2021 : 99,90.998) held by
Lc ie Confectionery Co Ltd., Korea

99.99% 1.000.00 99,99% 1.000.00

Detaib of Share bolders hoMinr more than 5% of Shares

Name of shareholder

Loue CoofeclKinerv Co I.id Korea

3! hUrch 2023

■No. OfShares %hohliae
31 March 2022

No ofSfaarcs %holdiiig

Aggrt^le anmher of shares bsoed for considcntioo other than cash daring the period of five year. immednteh preceding the reporting dale

9,999.998 99.995^

Thvrc arc nv shares aJioited enher as fiiDy paid up by way ofbonus shares or under any contract without payment received in cash during 5 year, bnraediaieh Freceding 31 March 2023,
Dctaiis of shorefaoUinc of Promoters fo the Comoaav

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particiilars

No. of shares
*/• of total

shares
% changes
during the No. of shares

% of total % change
diare during the

99.99% 9 999 90S 99,99%

Other equity

Reserves and sorphis
General reserve Retained enntings

Balance ns at I April 2021
Profit forihevear

Other coraprchensive income for the yem. net of tax ofRs. 20.32 lakhs
Total coBprehcasive income for the year
Bihince at 31 March 2022

Profit for the year
father comjwehensiw- income fo r the year, net of tax ofRs, {13,03) lakhs

Total comprehensive Income for the vear
Balance at 31 March 2023

73.47 I6.8I6.SS 16.890.05
• 6.097 79 6.097 79

• (60.40) (60.40)
- 6.037.39 6.037.39

73.47 22,853.97 22,927.44
7.207 11 7.207,11

38.73 38,73
• 7.245.84 7,245.84

73.47 30.099.81 30.173.28

Noll,-; Remeasuremeni of Defined Benefit Plant

Balance ns at 1 April 2021
Re-i leasuremsits of defined benefit plans
liKome tax efieci

Babnce as at 31 March 2022

Re-i «asurcmenct of defined benefit plans
liK> ric tax effect

Bnbnce as at 31 March 2023

Amonat

(40.M)
(80.72)
20.32

(IM.4S)
51.76

(13.03)

General resnne;

(ien.Tal reserv e ts created from time lo (nne by way of transfet of profits from reiamed earnings. General reserve is created \yy a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an hem
iifoiner comprehensive income.

Retained carnines:
The etamed earnings refiect the profit of the conqany earned till dale The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividend to its equity shareholders is drc^ined t»^ on the lalance
m m-A resene. after consKknng ihc rtqurooems of chc Companies Aa. 201.^

^—
7;e :
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N»te CO ckc financUt suieaents (coMiHueii
For il:r \far rnded U Mairh 2023

(AU STXiuias in INR takhs unkss otherwise siacd)

19 l.««M liabUiHes

f*articulan Asal

31 March 2023
As at As ai

31 March 2022

6.537.<0

0.537.40

2J05.02 4.215.87

_ Ciargil
1.327.42

20 Other rinancial liabilities

faitkalan As it
31 March 2022

< aimi

I iqwsiis from customer and others

5«unty deposR from vendors
( taatal credilors

Fmpio>ec benefits pavaMe
Dacoum pavabie

5.225.05

1.70

1,862.07

939.41

669.01

4.79IJ0

1.00

911.07

SI8.I]

562.32

6.784.00

21 Provisions

Particahrs As al
31 March 2023

As at

Curroit

Pt tvssion fw etnployee benefits
ProvBioo for leave entnlemeni

Provision for graiuitv
Pr.'visioii for coniimeiicies (Refer note below)

59.96

52.85

107.45

233.40

236.79

107.45

Not*:

Mot sum in provision for coatinecactes:

^fttflars
As at I nfnK of the year

Vear ended Year ended

AdddioiB diinni; the year
L'ti isation during' the vcai

Payment dunng the \car

ProvBpn uTincn back dtinng the yeir
As al omI of the year

107.45

22 Other iiabllitiea

Panknlan As at As at

Carront

Cusi >iner advances

inter3t payable to MSME Vendors
SuUbtory bataihy
Payable towards Corporate Soriiii B*eiy«»ea'.i«v

47

46

67.27

127.23

680.65

875.15

23 Trade payabies

.^rrtnlari As at
31 March 2023

31 Match 2022

71.79

69 02

1.279.75

70J8

1.490.84

As at

Micro oiterprises and small enietprisa
Creditors othg than micro enterprises and small entcprises 1,787.19

5.190.95
1.695.31

3.270.03

FootBotes;

(0 The Coii^Mny-s esposure to liquidity nsks reined to trade payabies is disclosed in Note 44.
(ii) RetCT note 42 for attiiiy of trade payaUes.

24 CuToBt tai liability (Net)

Partinhn As at As at

Provision for taaation (Net of advance tax of Rs. 2.956 801 .khs 131 March 2022 ■ Rs. 2.862.03 Lakhsi
31 March 2022

97.22
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Notes to tfie flaanciol statements (continued)

For the year enac-d 31 March 2023

(All amounts in INR lakhs unless othensise stated)

25 Revenue from operations
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from contract with customers

Sale of finished goods

Sale of traded goods

Sale of services (Net)

96.667.01

522.74

100.72

66,996.82

297,55

69.72

97,290.47 67,364.09

I'ootnotes:

< ) Refer Note 47 for disclosure under Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with customers.

(OTiming of revenue recognition (from contract with customers): Revenue from Sale of finished goods, traded goods and services is recognised at a point in
1 me.

26 Other Income
N ear ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest income:

on deposits with banks

from others

1,026.85

10.89

586.81

12.54

unwinding of discount on seciuity deposits
Sale of Scrap

I'rofrt on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net)

l.xcess Provision written back for doubtful debts and advances

(iam on Cancellation of leases (Net)

Kent concession

insurance Claim

Rent income

1 jabilities no longer payable written back

Dthers

1,037.74

9.65

144.14

86.51

42.45

33.31

23.98

16.82

2.27

15.23

59935

5.25

63.97

54.35

16.31

49.69

6.87

18.01

17.14

1,412.10 830.94

27 Cost of materials consumed
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

tCaw material consumed

''acking: material consumed
52,055.97

6,450.11

29,371.34

4.578.20

58,506.08 33,949.54

rhe Value of consumption disclosed is on the basts of dcnv ed figures.

28 Changes in inventories of Tinished goods, semi finished goods and stock-in-trade
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Inventory at the beginning of the year

imshed goods

^emi finished goods

Stock-in-trade

1,296.94

121.23

26.18

1,135.39

190.40

45.23

1,444.35 1,371.02

Inventory at the end of the year 13
inished goods

Semi finished goods

Stock-in-trade

3,486.46

129.24

197.14

1396.94

121.23

26.18

3312.84 1,444.35

(2368.49) (73.33)

29 Employee benefits expense
> car ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus

C'ontribution to gratuity, provident and other funds 38

5,729.54

311.74

I09J8

5,312.7!

283.99

50.13

6,150.66 5,646.83 1

Less: Allocated to capital work in progress SJ7
-

\ \
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to tbe fiBancial statements (cona'nued)

For the year t nded.?/ March 2023

(All amounts n INR lakhs unless otherwise staled)

30 Fioance costs

\ ear ended Year ended

Particulars .Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest on borrowings 1.23 5.06
Interest on lease liability 35 495.63 545.76

Interest to others 72.53 62.19

Other borrowine costs 8.82 13.28

578.21 626.29

31 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note 31 .March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4 3.144.70 3.274.01
Depreciation ofnght of use assets 5 1,510.21 1360.30
.Amortisation of intangible assets 8 101.14 108.09

4.756.05 4,742.40
Less: -Allocated to capital work in progress 22.13 .

4,733.92 4,742.40

32 Other expenses
^'ear ended Year ended

Partkulart Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Consumption of stores, spares and consumables 441.94 308.16

Power and fuel 2364.65 1,6063!
Rent 35 128.97 190.44

Repairs - Buildings 76.89 54.88

- Plant & Machinery 358.70 271.55

- Others 1,650.79 895.34
Rates and taxes 29.78 67.92

insurance 206.70 181.80

rravelling expense 787.12 593.05
1 ontract labour charges 1,820.73 1,451.24
i-rcighi and handling expenses 5,402.17 3,769.20
Vdverlisemeni expenses 4321.21 2,858.60
selling and distribution expenses 1,900.09 I.4I1.21
I egal and professional fees 273.19 210.12

Management Consultancy Charges 100.00 100.00
Royalty 140.28 43.57
Printing, stationery and communications expenses 68.55 62.33
Auditors' remuneration (refer note (i) below) 21.85 20.95
Provision for expected credit loss 44 . 22.35
Ihrector Sitting Fees 39 1.20 0.80
1 xpenditurc towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note (ii) below) 88.47 79.51
1 OSS on Retirement of property, plant and equipment 16.97 68.73
I OSS on foreign currency transaction and translation (net) 18.64 4.39
Sundry balances written off 4.17 .

Advances w-ritien ofT

Less: Provision for expected credit losses

Miscellaneous expenses

Less: Allocated to capital work m progress

330.23

(330.23)

494.08

20.717.14

128.17

514.73

14,787.18

20,588.97 14,787.18
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to the nnancial statements (continued)

Forlhe year emled 31 March 2023

4 All amounts m INR lakhs unless othemise stated)

32 Other expenses (continued)

Note

I I'avmeni to Statutory Auditors Year ended

(b) Unspent at the end of the year pertaining to other than ongoing projects

I). Amount of expenditure incurred for the year pertaining to shortfall in eariier years not provided earlier

Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Payment to auditors (exclusive of goods and service tax)
as auditor

- Statutory audit 10.80 10.80

• Tax audit 1.20 1.20

- Certificate - 0.50

• Other services 9.60 820

Reimbursement of expenses 0.25 025

Total 21.85 20.95

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) actiyitles Year ended Year ended

Partkuiars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

V Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 88J7 79.51

It .Amount of expenditure incurred 88.47 9.23

I a) (^onstniction/accquisition of an asset
- -

(b) On purposes other than (a) above 88.47 923

' Unspent at the end of the year 22

(a) Unspent at the end of the year pertaining to ongoing projects
- 70.28

. Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Nature ofCSR activities-

88.47

Environmental

sustainability

Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section I3S{6) of the Act

79.51

Environmental

sustainability and

eradicating hunger

Balance as at i April 2022 Amount required to be spent during the year Amount Spent during the year Balance as at 31 March 2023

With the

Company

In separate

' SR Unspent

account

From the

Company's

account

From separate CSR

Unspent account

With the Company in separate CSR Unspent

account

- 70.28 88,37 88.47 7028 - -
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year • nded 31 March 2023

(Alt amounts m INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

33 Contingent liabilities and Commitments

(i) C<>ntingent liabilities As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
- Income tax matters in dispute

- Labour law matters in dispute

- Disputed demand of Rajasthan Commercial Tax Department (VAT)

1,239.04

29.21

502.01

24.67

3.00

1,268.25 529.68

Notes

Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in
respect of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of Judgments/decisions pending with various forums/authorities. The Company has
rev iewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent
liabilities where applicable, in its Financial Statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially
adverse effect on its financial position.

(il) Capital commitments As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

E.' timated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and 8.789.73 694.34

nc I provided for (net of advances)

34 Segment reporting

A. Basis for segmentation

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, the Company primarily operates in the segment of manufacturing and
sale of Ice cream and related products. The Board of Director of the Company allocate resources and assess the performance of the Company,
thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence
nc separate segment needs to be disclosed.

B. Information about geographical areas

A-; the Company operates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed.

C. Information about major customers

None of the customers account for more than 10% of the revenue of the Company.

35 Leases

(I) Lease Liability

As at As at

Lease liabilities included In Balance Sheet 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- Current

- Non-current

2,385.02

6,537.40

1,327.42

4,215.87

Total 8,922.42 5,543.29

(ii) Moxement of Lease Liability

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening Balance

Finance costs incurred during the year

Payment of lease liabilities

Addition on account of new lease agreements

Cancellation of lease

Closing Balance

5,543.29

495.63

(1,954.40)

4,972.94

(135.04)

6,598,80

545.76

(1,864.59)

411.77

(148.45)

8,922.42 5,543.29

(iii) Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Maturity Analysis - Undlscounted

Less than one year

One to five years

More than five years \ ̂

3,141.83

^ 7,341.31
138.55

1,828.29

4,935.72

238.85
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to tbe financial statements (continued)

For the year ended JI March 2023

(All amounts m INR lakhs unless otherwise staled)

35 Leases (Continued)

(iv) Amounts recognised in the statemenl of profit and loss:
Year ended Year ended

Particulars 1 Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation of right of use assets 31 1,510.21 1,360.30

Interest cn Lease Liability 30 495.63 545.76

Expense relating to short-term leases 32 113.97 176.83

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 32 15.00 13.61

Total 2,134.81 2,096.50

(v) The total cash outflow for leases:

Year ended Y ear ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Principal elements of lease payments (disclosed in Cash flow statement) 1,954.40 1,864.59

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 32 15.00 13.61

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets that are not shown above as short-term 32 113.97 176.83

leases (include! in other expenses)

Net debt reconciliation: (reconciliation of movements of cash flows arising from financing activities)

Other Assets Liabilities Total

Fixed deposits Current Lease Liability
with financial borrowings
institutions and

Cash & Cash other bank

Equivalents balances

Net balance as on April 01, 2021 1,927.02 8,149.84 (1,512.33) (6,598.80) 1,965.73

Cash flows (net) 4,852.80 2,900.91 1,512.33 1,864.59 11,130.63

Acjustmenl 0.48 - -
0.48

New Lease - - (411.77) (411.77)

Interest expenses -
(47.48) (545.76) (593.24)

Interest paid • 47.48 - 47.48

Deletion of liability - - 148.45 148.45

Closing balance as on March 31, 2022 6,779.82 11,051.23 - (5,543.29) 12,287.76

Net balance as on April 01. 2022 6,779.82 1 1,051.23 (5,543.29) 12,287.76

Cash flows (net) (4,817,03) (1,943.24) - 1,954.40 (4,805.87)

Adjustment (0.19) - -
(0.19)

New Lease - - (4,972.94) (4,972.94)

Interest expenses -
(24.37) (495.63) (520.00)

Interest paid -
24.37

-
24.37

Deletion of liability - - 135.04 135.04

Closing balance as on March 31, 2023 1,962.79 9,107.80 - (8,922.42) 2,148.17

Earnings per share
Year ended Year ended

Partknlars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Face value per equity share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00

(a) Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (Rs in Lakhs) 7,207.11 6,097.79

(b) Number of equity shares at the beginning and end of the year 10,000,000 10,000,000

(c) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 10,000,000 10,000,000

Earnings per share (in Rs.);

Basic and Diluted earnings per share 72.07 60.98

36

The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares Wherefore diluted earnings per share is the
dp /i

^e^iyngs per share.
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Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amountf m INR laichs unless otherwise stated)

38 Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plan
1 he Company makes defined contribution to provident and pension fund and employee state insurance scheme.

Amount recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Fmployer's contribution to Provident fund and pension scheme 29 184.84 175.48
Employer s contribution to Employees state insurance scheme 29 28.35 24.65

213.19 200,13

Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity

Tne Company has defined benefit plans for Gratuity to eligible employees. Valuation in respect of gratuity has been carried out by an
independent actuary, as at Balance sheet date. The Plan Assets are administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India ("LIC") and Aditya
Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited as per Investment Pattern stipulated for Pension and Group Schemes Fund by Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority regulations.

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements :

Year ended Y ear ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation
Benefit obligations at the beginning 733.00 573.45

Current service cost 82.93 76.29
Interest cost 48.34 35.53
Benefits paid (68.06) (37.22)
N 2t actuarial loss / (gain) recognised (44.54) 84.95

Benefit obligations at the end 751.67 733.00

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 496.21 451.24

Expected return on plan assets 32.72 27.96

C'lntributions by the employer 230.74 50.00
Benefit paid (68.06) (37.22)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 7.21 4.23

Pian assets at the end of the Year 698.82 496.21

Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligation
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 751.67 733.00
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 698.82 496.21

(Liability) recognised in balance sheet (52.85) (236.79)
Current 21 (52.85) (236.79)

Expense recognised in profit or loss
Current service cost 82.93 76.29

Interest cost 48.34 35.53
Expected return on plan assets (32.72) (27.96)

29 98.55 83.86

Rcmeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Due to change in Demographic assumptions 13.29 .

Due to change in financial assumptions (11.89) 43.22
Due to experience adjustments (45.94) 41.73
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (7.21) (4.23)

J51J51 80.72

The expected rate of return on assets is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return on investment of the fund, during the
estimated term of obligation.

The obligations are measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows by using a discount rate that is determined with reference to
the market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds which is consistent with the estimated terms of the obligation.
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38 Employee benefits (continued)
Drfiiwd Benefit plan (Continued)

(I) (iia(uit> (Continued)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Expected contribution during the next financial year
A erage outstanding tetrn of the obligations (Years)
Funds managed by insurer

139.82

7.42

100%

320.13

6.13

100%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
fa-tors, such as supply and demand and the employment market.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Actuarial assumptions
|Aj Financial assumptions
D scoutit Rate (per annum)
Siiiary growth rate (per annum)
|B| Demographic assumptions
Withdrawal rates (per annum)
Mortalitv

7.30%

9.00%

10.00%

lALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

6.60%

8.50%

13.00%
lALM (2012-14)

Ultimate

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined beneflt obligation / asset by the amount shown below;

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) 704.39 804.99 693.44 777,07

Salary growth rate (1% movemCTt) 802.39 705.55 774.17 695.01

Attrition rate (0.50% movement) 731.24 784.73 709.74 773.74

The sensitivity analyses presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the
above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the
etid of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance
Sheet.

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounied basis): 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1 year 96.34 126.86

2 to 5 years 378.87 369.05

6 to 10 years 334.94 305.59

More than 10 years 562.41 349.61
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38 Employee benefits (Continued)
B, Deflned Benefit plan (Continued)

Gr4luit> (Continued)

(it) Risk exposure to defined benefit plans

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus, the
Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows;

interest Rate Risk

The plan exposes the Company to the risk off all in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the

above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.

Liquidity Risk:

This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/cash
equivale u to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the
rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a
bearing on the plan's liability-

Demographic Risk:

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual
experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions.

Regulatory Risk:

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of
change i:i regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts.

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk:

The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Investment Risk:

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

(ii) Other long term employee benefits

Leave benefits

The Leave obligation covers the Company's liability for sick and earned leave. The Company has long term employee benefit plans for leave
encashment and compensated absences to eligible employees. Valuation in respect of leave encashment and compensated absences have been

carried out by an independent actuary, as at Balance sheet date. The Plan Assets are administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India
("LiC") and Aditya Biria Sun Life Insurance Company Limited as per Investment Pattern stipulated for Pension and Group Schemes Fund by
Ittsurance Regulatory and Development Authority regulations. Refer Note 22 for the leave encashment provision in the balance sheet. Charge
to Profit and Loss Account is Rs. 26.56 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2023 and Rs. 122.90 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

ea... P
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39 Related party transactions

A. List of related parties

(i) Holding Company

L<'tte Confectionery Co. Ltd., Korea

(Ui)

D.

Key management personnel

Mr. Park ByungChan

Mr Myeongrim Choi

Mr. Youngdong Jin

Whole Time Director

Non Executive Director

Executive Director

(W.e.fOS January 2018 to 15 February 2023)

Mr. Kyungwoon Cho Chairman & Non Executive Director
Mr. Komal Anand Managing Director

Mr. D.G. Rajan Non Executive Director

Mr. Jaehyun Kim Whole Time Director (W.e.f. 02 March 2023)

Transactions with related parties

Year ended Year ended

Nature of Transaction 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Lotte Confectionery Co. Ltd., Korea

Purchase of materials

Management consultancy charges

Royalty for brand usage

Lotte India Corporation Limited

Purchase of Trading Goods (including taxes)

453.70

100.00

140.28

146.13

100.00

43.56

39,04

C ompensation to Key managerial personnel Year ended Year ended

Particuiars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus#

Director Sitting Fees

361.68

1.20

240.86

0.80

# Key Managerial Personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits and other long term
employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19. Employee Benefits in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum
amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.

Balances with related parties As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other Financial Liability

L'ltte India Corporation Limited

T rade payables

Lotte Confectionery Co. Ltd., Korea 453.22 150.33

E. Note

The Company has carried out an independent review for assessing compliance up to March 31, 2022 with the "Transfer Pricing Rules. 2001"
Issued by the Central Board of Direct Taxes of India and no deviations were observed from the requirements of the aforesaid Transfer Pricing
Rules. The Company is yet to commission an independent review for assessing compliance for the year April I, 2022 to March 31, 2023 with
the aforesaid Transfer Pricing Rules. However, on the basis of self-assessment of the operations during the year, and the conclusion drawn on
independent review of its operations in the previous financial year, the Management does not expect any significant deviations from the
requirements of the aforesaid Transfer Pricing Rules.

123



Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the car ended 3! March 2023

(All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated)

40 Aging Schedule for Capital Work-in-Progress (CWiP)

As :it March 31, 2023

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

years

Total

Proiects in progress

Protects temporarily suspended

2.496.28
• -

-

2,496.28

Gross Total 2,496.28 - - - 2,496.28

As It March 31, 2022

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

years

Total

Proiects in progress

Protects temporarily suspended

35.49 - - -
35.49

Gross Total 35.49 - - - 35.49

Note:

There is no capital work in progress whose cost has exceeded or completion is overdue as compared to its original plan as at

March 31, 2023 and March 31. 2022.

41 Aging schedule of trade receivables

As at March 31, 2023 - Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Not due

Less than

6 months

6 months -1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More

than 3

years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables

- C onsidered good 768.11 131.94 4.60 - - - 904.65

- Credit impaired 0.03 -
10.56 31.44 21.47 21.51 85.01

Disputed Trade receivables

- Considered good - - - - - 0.50 0.50

- Credit impaired - - 0.99 4.31 9.17 57.60 72.07

Total 768.14 131.94 16.15 35.75 30.64 79.61 1,062.23

As at March 31, 2022 - Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Not due

Less than

6 months

6 months -1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More

than 3

years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables
- Considered good 743.40 51.76 - - - - 795.16

- Credit impaired
- -

20.56 54.40 13.81 11.57 100.34

Disputed Trade receivables

- Considered good - - - 0.25 0.20 - 0.45

- Credit impaired - 4.30 2.02 7.38 3.13 53.52 70.35

Tot.il 743.40 56.06 22.58 62.03 17.14 65.09 966.30
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d  Aging schedule of trade payables:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not due
Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More

than 3

years

Total

Undisputed dues

- MSME

- Others

Disputed dues

-MSME

- Others

629.96

2,121.33

245.64

1,030.94

888.44

1,995.05

23.15

4.94

-

38.69

1,787.19

5,190.95

Total 2,751.29 1,276.58 2,883.49 28.09 - 38.69 6,978.14

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not due
Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More

than 3

years

Total

Undisputed dues

-MSME

- Others

Disputed dues

-MSME

- Others

485.01

1,684.73

1,053.26

1,254.32

157.04

277.54 11.57 6.23 35.64

1,695.31

3,270.03

Total 2,169.74 2,307.58 434.58 11.57 6.23 35.64 4,965.34

(T
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43 Fhir Value Measurements

A. Fltuacial iutraiMits b> raieeoi^ and their fair valae

AaatJl hUrch 2023

Particabars Carrying amoual Fair value

FNTPL FX'OCI .Amortised Toul Level 1 - Quoted Level 2- Level 3 - Total

Coal price in active Sigaificant SIgoifican

nurkets observable 1

Inputs UDobserva

ble inputs

Fiaancial assets

Loans 22.21 22.21 -

Trade receivables - 905,15 905.15 - . .

( ash and > ash equivalents 1.962.79 1.962.79 - -

Oilier hank balances 6.90 6.90 -

Oilier financial assets 9.810.13 9.810.13 - .

Total fiaancial sssets - - 12.707.18 12.707.18 . . - -

Fiaancial liabUMet

Trade pav<:bles - 6.978.14 6.978.14 - -

Other fmancial liabilfltes - 8.697.24 8.697,24 - -

Total fiaaacial liabilMics - - IS.675J8 IS.67S38 - - . .

As at 31 March 2022

Partkatars Camiag amoual Fair value

F\TPL FVOCi AnMrtiaed Total Level 1 - Quoted LevH2- Uvel 3 - Total

Cost price in active SigaifKant Signlfican

nurkets observable 1

inputs unubserva

ble Inputs

Fiaancial aasets

Loans - 32.01 32.01 -

Trade receivables - 795.61 795.61

Cash and cash equivalems - 6.779,82 6.779.82

Other bank balances . 257.15 257.15 -

Other financial assets . 11.290.79 11,290.79 .

Total fiaaaeial asaets . . I9.I55J8 19.15538 - - - .

Fiaaacial liaMiities

Trade pav.ibles 4,')65 34 4.965.14 - -

Other financial liabilities 6,784.00 6.784.00 . .

Total fiaaacial Babttdes - • 11,74934 11,74934 • • • •

8.

Fair value of flnancial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost is not materially difTeferu Further, impact of time value of money is i>ot significatu for the financial instrumeius

classified is cunett- Accordingly, the fair value has not been disclosed separately. The carrying amounis of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash cquivalcnts. trade payables. other
finaiKial assets and Utilities, arc considered to be the same as tlieir fair values, due to their short-term nalure.

Measnreoieiit of fair values

Types of inpats for ttetenniaiag fair value are as under:

Level i; Level I hieiaichy iiKludes finatKial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Levd 2:1he fair value of financial inslrumenis ihai arc not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely

as little as possible on entity-specific csliinales. If all significant inputs requited to fair value an instrument ore observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Levd 3 ; ~hese instruments are valued based on sigmficani unobscrvabic inputs whereby future cash flows air discouraed using appropriate discouoi rale.

The Company's principal finaiKial liabililies. comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to flnaiKe the Con^iany's operations, routine
and coital expenditure The Coti^any's principal fuiancial assets includes loans, trade and other receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalems. bank balances thai derive directly
from its operations. The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from fmaiKial instruments:

• Foreign • uirency nsk . and

• Credit n>k . and

• LiquidiP nsk

(i) Foreiga carreacy risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from various currency exposures, primarily wiih respect to the USD Foreign currency risks arise from future commercial
iransactiois and recognized assets and liabilities, when they ate denominated in a currency other than Indian Rupee.

The C ompany 's exposure with regards to foreign currency risk which ate i»i hedged arc given below. However, these risks are not significant to the company's operation and accordingly
sensitivity analysis is not given.

126



Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited
Notes to Ibe fiooiicbl stalemeots (atniinued)

For ihe year endr / // March 202i

(All amoutus in T R lakhs unless otherwise stated)

44 Financial instruments risk manaeement objectives and policies (Continued)
Uahedged foreigB currency exposures:

Rs. in Laklis Rs. in Lakhs

Nttnre of irauactioBs Cnrrencv 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Capital credhon USD 44.96

Trade Payables USD 453.22

ForMga Curreacy Sensitivity Analysts

I'he following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs

Nnlnrc of iraasnctions Currency 3l lMarcb 2023 31 March2022

Impact on Frofh before Tax - Rupee depreciate by Re. I against
USD

Impact on Profit before Tax - Rupee appreciate by Re. I agairtsi
USD

(5.62)

5.62

(0.64)

0.64

(li) Credit risk

Cicdh ti^ IS the risk that a customer or countetptuty to a financial instrument will fail to petfonn or fail to pay amounts due causing flnaiKial loss to the Company. Tire potential activities
where ctedil risks may arise iiKlude from cash and cash equivalents, security dqwsits or other deposits, loans and advances to employees and customer receivables. Tlte maximum credit
exposure assocised with financial assets is equal to the carrying amount. Details of the ctedil risk ̂ ecific to tlie Company along with relevant mitigation procedures adopted have been
enumerwer: below:

Trade and other receivables

The Comp-my's exposure to credit Risk is the exposure that Company has on account of goods supplied to a contractual courUerparty or coimteiparties. whether with collateral or otherwise
for which i)k contracted coasideration is yet to be received. All receivables are reviewed and assessed for default onaquailerly basis. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the

fact that the customer base is large and unrelated. None of the customers accounted for more llian 10% of the receivables and levenue forihe year ended March 31. 2023 and March 31.
2022. The 'ompany is dependent on the domestic market for its business and revenues.

1~he Comp.my s credit policies and practices are designed to limit exposure by collecting security deposits.

The Conqtany provides for allowaiKe for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables. In case any specific instance is identified
which requires a provision, the company also provides for the same.The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix.(Refer note 41 for .Ageing schedule for Trade Receivables)

Movcmeau In Expected Credit Loss aUowance

PaHlcalan 31 March 2023 31 Match 2022

Balance n (he beginning of the year 170.69 148.34

Movemem.^ in allowance (13.61) 22.35

Closing balance 157.08 170.69

Aging of keeeivibles

Not Due

0 to 90 das

9] 10 182 ciays

More than i 82 days past due

Expected Credit Loss */•

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

13.00% 21.00%

3.00% 2.00%

1.00% 7.00%

83.00% 70.00%

Other financial assets

Other fmancial assets includes investments, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits or other deposits, loans and advances to employees etc.

• Cash and cash equivalents. Bank deposits and Investments are placed with banks and financial institutions having good reputation and past track record with adequate credit rating.
• Loan and advances to employees are unsecured in nature. Based on historical tcinds. the management does not forsee any credit risk.
• The Company has given security deposits to various govemmenl authorities aiKl other parties. Based on historical trends, the management does not foresee any credit risk.

(Ui) Uqniility risk

Financfaig arraagcmcDt

The Company had access lo the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the er>d of the reporting period:

Pirticulara 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

FlontlBg rale

Expiring w thin one year (bank overdrafl and other facilities) 3.900.00 3.900.00

Total 3,900.00 3,900.00

Fuither, the Company has also lied-up additional sources of liquidity to meet the liabilities during the respective annual yeais which has ensured thai the Company has a clean tiack record
with no adv erse cvcms pertaining to liquidity risk.
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44 Fuiancial instruments risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
ExpoMire to Uqntdit) risk

The folloving are the remaining contracttial maturities of fitiancial liabilities at the n^rting date. The amounts arc gross and undiscounted. The contractual maturity is based on the

earliest da'c on wliicli lite Company may be required to pay.

As at 31 March 2023 Carrying amouni Contractual maturities

Leas than i 2 UMnths More than 12

months

Total

Non-derivative financial UabUMes

Lease liabilities 10.621.69 3.141.83 7.479.86 10.621.69

Trade payables 6.978.14 6.978 14 - 6.978-14

Other finiiciai liabilities 8.697.24 8.697.24 8.697.24

Tout 26J97.07 18.817.21 7.47936 26397.07

As at 31 March 2022 Carrying amonnt Contractual maturities

Less than 12 months More than 12

months

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowin^.s
- - -

l.easc liab:li[ies 7.002.86 1.828.29 5,174.57 7,002.86

Trade pay.ibles 4.965.34 4.965.34 - 4.965.34

Otha fina'Kial liabililtcs 6.784.00 6.784.00 - 6.784.00

Total 18.752.20 13377.63 5.17437 18.75230

45 Capital maaagemeat
The Coinpany defiites coital as total equity iiKludii^ issued equity share capital and all other acuity reserves of the Company (which is the Company's net asset value). The primaiy

objective < f the Company's Tinancial rrameworlc is to stqrpoil the pursuit of value growth for shareholders, while ensuring a secure Tmancial base

The Company monitors capital using a naio of 'net d^' to 'total equity'. For this purpose, net debt it is defined as total liabilities, comprising inlciesl-bearing loans aitd borrowings and
obligaiiom under fmance leases, less cash and cash equivaknls. Total equity cotnprises all components of equity.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio was as follows.

Partknlars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total bortowmgs 19 8,922.42 5.543.29

Less cash and bank balances 16 1.969.69 7.036.97

LessiFixec deposits with financial 10 9319.85 10.902.22

insimitioit

Adjnrtcd aet delM (2367.12) (12.395.90)

EquKv share capital 17 1.000.00 1.000-00

Other equiiv 18 30.17338 22.927.44

Total eqnitv 31.17338 23.927.44

Adhuted net debt to adjusted eanitv ratio (0.08) (0.52)

46 Details of Dues (o Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defmed under MSMED Act, 2006

Partiralars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade payables
Capital

creditors

Trade Capita]

ccedhois

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

The iiKefeJ due theteon remaining inpaid to any s;a>plier8t the end of each accounting year:

The atnouia of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Dcvcloptitent
Act. 2006 127 of 2006). along with the amount of the paymeia made to the supplier beyond the appotraed day during each

accountii^ year.

Principal atiKHmis paid to the suppliets beyond the appointed day during the year

IneRsi paid uniler section 16 of the MSMED Act. to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year

1,787.19

8.71

8452J8

145^0

IJA

I.69S.3I

3.17

47.62

0.02

540.84 SJ22.68 429J2

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paymctu (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day durii^ the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro. Small and Medium Enieiprises
Development Act. 2006;

The amouTii of interest accmed and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year and

The amount of futther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding yeare. until such date when the interest dues

above arc Ktually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of

the Mian Small and Medium Fiacrpriscs Development .Act. 2006.

41J9

50.60

60.09

4J7

7.61

8.93

24.66

27.83

32.26

5.20

5.22

3.71

The disck'surc in respect of the amouni payable to cntcipriscs which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small
entetpriscs. as defined under Mkro. Small and Medium Enterprises Developmetu Act. 2006 has been made in the PinarKial statement as at the reponing date based on the information
received and available with the Company.
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47 Disclosures under lad AS 115, Revenuefrom contracts with customers

(i) Reconcillaiioo the amount of revenue recognisetl in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price:
Vearended Yearcnded

Pankufairi 3t March2023 .31 March 2022

Revenue a- per contracted price

Less: Disci unis given to customers

101.620.19

(4329.72)

70,018-66

(2,654.57)

Revenue from contract with customen 97.290.47 67,364.09

Contract balances

The follow ng table provides information aboia receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers.
As at As at

ParUcidan 3t March 2023 .31 Maid>2022

Trade mceivables 905.15

Contract liabilities • deferred revenue / customer advances

CuneiU 22 67J7

795.61

71.79

The comnvi liabilities primarily rel^c to the advance consideration received from the customers. Revenue recognised (hat was included in (he contract liability balance at the beginning of
the period are Rs. 71.79 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs. 120.06 laklis).

(ili) DhraxxrcgatioH of revenue

Oisclosine given above presents disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers. Tlie Company believes that this disaggregation besi depicts how the naiuic, amount, liming and
uneertaimv of revenue and cash flows are affected by market and other econotnic factors.

48 Accountine Ratios:

fhc follow .ng table sets forth key fmancial ratios based on flnancials:

Partkntei^ Nnmeralor Denominator FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 Difference Explanation in case of deviation of

> 25%

Current Ratio Cunem assets Current liabilities 1.45 1.66 -12.65% Not applicable

Debi-Equitv Ratio Total debt Total Eqtiity
- -

0.00% Not applicable

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings Available for Debt Service (IrAerest 731 3.94 90.47% Due to no repayment of bonowit^

Debt Service - (EBIT+Loss + Lease during the year

on Sale of PPE-Proftt on paymenlS'''Principal

Return on i:quity Ratio Profii for the year Average shareliolder's 26% 29% -11.13% Not applicable

equity

Inventory 1 umover Ratio Revenue from operations Average Inventories 10.75 11.70 -8.14% Not applicable

Trade Receivtrtilcs Turnover Ratio Revenie from operations Average Trade 114.41 71.62 59.75% Due to increase In operations as
Receivables compared to pervious year.

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Cost of materials Average Trade 934 7.39 29.04% Due to iiKiease in operations as

consumed-^Purchase of Payables compared to pervious year.

stock-in-trade+Changes in

inventories of finished

goods, semi finished goods

attd stock-in-trade

Net Caphal Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Curreu assets - IU4 6.67 68.37% Increase in revenue during the current

Cunem liabilities year.

Net Profit Ratio Profit after tax Revenue from 7% 9% -18.16% Not applicable

operations

Reniin on < 4q)ital En^loyed Profit before tax + FinaiKe Total Equity 33% 37% -10.56% Not applicable

costs

Return on Investment Profit before tax + Finance Average Total assets 031 0.21 -4.52% Not applicable

co^
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49 Title Deeds not held in the Name of the Companv

As at March 31. MU

Relevan hoc

item in tha

Batanre sheet

Dcscriplioa

of item of

property

Gran

carrying

value (INK io

Ukhs)

Title deeds held

in the name of

Title deed holder It a

promoter, directttr or

relative of promoter/

director or employee

of

promoter/ director

Period

bdd-

range

Reason for not

being held in

the name of

the company

(1) ImmuvaMe Properties

Property , plant Sid equipment Building 130.89 Havmor Ice Cream l.imiied -\o 16 Years In name of erstwhile

name of the company

Property- plant and equipment Buildmg 27.23 Havmor Ice Cream Limited No 17 Years

IS8 12

<ii) Properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreenieni not liuly executed in favour of the Company
Ri^iofl<< Leasehold t .and 130,22 Havmor Ice Cream Limited \o 11 Yeats The company has

filed an application

for name change

Kighioft -^ Building 1.054.16 Havmor Ice Cream Limited No 4- 11 years In name of erstwhile

name of the company

1.184.38

\s at March 31.2022

Kcievani line

Item in Ibi

Balance sheet

Descripiion

of item of

property

Gross

carrying

value (INR in

Ukhs)

Title deeds helti

In the name of

Title deed holder is a

promoter, director or

relative of promoter/

director or employee

of

promoter/ liirector

Period

held-

range

Reason for ncu

being beld in

the name of

the company

(i> Immorabie Properties

IV-opcrty. plani and equipment Buidling 130.89 Havmor Ice Cream L.imited No 15 Years In nameofer^hitc

name of the company
INopcny. piani and equipment BuuUuig 27 23 Havmor Ice Cream Limited No 16 Yors

158.12

(11) Properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreement not duly eseculed In favour of the Company

Right of I « Leasehold I.and 130.22 Havmor Ice Cream Limited No 10 Years In name oferstwhile

name ofthe company
Right of 1 4 Building 2,104.54 Havmor Ice Cream Liiniicd No 3-9 years

Right ofl c Plant and Vlachinery 4.730.61 Havmor Icc Cream Limited No 5 Years

6.965,37

SO .Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III

I II Ni'prixeccings haM' been initialed on or arc pending against iheCmnpany for holding bcnami properly underlhe Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions ,\ct. 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(fnrmeriy the Bcnami I ransaciions (Prohibition) Act. l9g«(4S oi l 9881) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

III! Ilie { ongHny has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or finaflcial insiicuiion or government or anv government authontv during the vevended March 31, 2023 and March 3|,
2022

inn TheCongkiny docs not haw any investment in subsidiaries hence the disclosure clause is not applicable during the year ended March 31, 2023 and Match 31, 2022
IIV) HieConpany has not invested or traded in C rypto C urrency or Virtual ("urrency during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

(v) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement anwovod by the Competent .Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 ofthe Coinpanies Acl. 2013 during the year ended
M*ch3| 2023 and March 31, 2022

Ivil Dunng the vear ended March 3|. 2023 and March 31, 2022, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts in the course of
tax asscssmoits under the Income Tax Act, !%l isuch as. search or survey or «i> other relevant provisions ofthe Income Ta* Act, 1961)

iviil Dttrug the year ended March 31, 2023 and Mvch 31, 2022, the Company has not granted loans or advances in nature of loans, repayable on demand or without ̂ Kcifying any terms for
pcnodof r.rpaymcnt, to promoicrvdircctorVKMPvRelaied parties (as defined under the Companies Act. 2013)

I Mil I I here arc r,. charges or suiisfatlions of charges rwiuired to be regislcred with ihe Registrar of Coinpames dunng the year ended March .31, 202.3 and March .31. 2022.

(f
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50 Additional re?uiatorv information reauired bv Schedule III tcontinuedt

(ix) During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31. 2022, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or kind of funds) to any
other pcls^'ln(s) orenlily(ics), including foreign entities (Inicnnediaries) with the understanding (wlwther lecorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the Company (Ultimate
Benefkiaries) or

b) providr any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2023 aixl March 31, 2022, the Company has not received any fund from any petson(s) or entity! ics), iiKluding foreign entities (Funding Party)
whh the undcistaixling (w)iethcr recorded in writing or oi)ierwise) that the Conqmiy shall:

a) directly or indirectly leixl or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the Funding Party (Ultimale
Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guaiantee, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(X) Working lapital facilities from banks are secured by fust charge on hypothecation of stocks, book debts, other movables, both present and future and further secured by first charge by
way ofmongageonall immovable properties. The company had borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns of stalemenis ofcuireru assets filed
ate in ̂ recmenl whh tiK books of accounis.The undrawn working capiial facility from Banks based on approved facilities, were Rs 3,900 Lakhs as at 31 March. 2022 (Rs 3,900 Lakhs as
at 31 March 2022). During the cuireiU and previous year, the company has used the loan for the purpose for which it was obtained.

51 RelatioBship with Struck off Companies

Nnme of stmck off Company

Nature of

transactions with

Stnick-off

Comoanv

Balance outstanding

as on 31 March

2023

Balance

outstanding

as on 31

March 2022

Relationship

with

the Struck off

comDanv

.Agbro Fwds Fmcg Limited Sales . Customer

Creamy Quc \'entuers Pvt. Ltd. Sales . Customer

Firsigo Iruia Retail Private Limite Sales - - Customer

Gokulam < irand Hotel And Spa Bangalo
Sales

-
-

Customer

Ichiban TaPemono Food And Beverage
Sales

- -
CustoriKr

Oryzaa Fo^kLs India Pvt Ltd Sales . . Customer

Twamev Hospitality Pvt Sales - - Customn-

Squared Monitoring Information And Purchases - - Vendor

Buckets And Brooms Pvt Ltd Purchases - . Vendor

Seven Oaks Fngincering Pvt. Ltd. Purchases . . Vendor

Shan Holiday Inn Private Limited Purchases - . VeiKkir

Sakha Global Private Limited Purchases - - Vendor

Lcela Trace Links Private Limited Sales . . Customer

Vivania Hvitels And Resorts Private Sales . . Customer

Limited

Cosmopolitan Hotels Private Limited Sales . - Customer

.SadbHavana Ho^italhy Services Private Sales . - Customer

Limiled

Paradigm Motels Privaie Limited Sales . . CustomCT

Beyond Infotainmeffl Private Limited Purchases - - Vendor

Buckets And Brooms Private Limited Purchases
- - Vendor

52 Approval of fiiUDciai statements

The financial statemerus were approved for issue by the board of directors on September 26,2023.

K ma

naging Director

N:06693454

SigDiture to Note I to 52

In tenns ofour nr|>orl attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

FirmRcgistratHsn Number: 0I2754N/N500O16

V'iren Shah

Partner

MeiihKrship No. '>4652!

.Ahmedabad

Scptanber26.20. 3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Havmor Ice Cream Private Limited

CIN ; U15200GJ2006PTC0480I6

7\-fi
Jaenyun Kim

Whale Time Director

DIN: 10047983

'TrivetTu,
Hetid - Finance

Ahmedabad, September 26.2023

inam Jain

Comparty Secretary

ICSI Memb. No.: A37095
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2

2014

2016 
(15 

months 
Jan  2015 
- March 
2016)

2016-17 2017-18 2017-18* 2018-19* 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

OPERATING RESULTS:
GROSS INCOME  37,448  48,132  40,245  42,576  42,621  45,490  44,070  41,682  49,429  65,416 
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEF DEPN.,INTEREST & TAX  2,061  2,815  3,395  4,087  4,029  5,814  3,316  6,223  4,401  4,962 
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEF INTEREST & TAX  319  (919)  (845)  (7)  (65)  1,779  (915)  2,083  329  1,196 
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (PBT)  272  (2,351)  (2,675)  (1,534)  (1,662)  389  (1,763)  1,229  91  687 
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX (PAT)  131  (2,251)  (2,675)  (1,534)  (1,662)  306  (1,763)  1,004  1,150  (126)
DIVIDENDS  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
DIVIDEND TAX  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
ADJUSTMENTS FOR OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  -    -    -    -    31.42  (4.57)  (39.55)  44.76  31.69  19.20 

RETAINED PROFITS  131  (2,251)  (2,675)  (1,534)  (1,631)  302  (1,802)  1,049  1,182  (106)
SOURCES AND APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
SOURCES OF FUNDS:
SHARE CAPITAL  956  1,086  1,086  1,086  1,086  1,086  1,086  1,086  1,086  1,410 
RESERVES AND SURPLUS  44,881  49,106  46,431  44,897  44,797  45,099  43,297  44,346  45,528  62,618 
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS'FUNDS  45,837  50,192  47,517  45,983  45,884  46,185  44,383  45,432  46,614  64,029 
BORROWINGS  12,666  30,945  25,935  20,380  20,380  12,451  16,265  9,531  8,292  5,611 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY  111  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
FUNDS EMPLOYED  58,614  81,137  73,452  66,363  66,264  58,636  60,649  54,963  54,906  69,640 
CASH CREDIT  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
GROSS FIXED ASSETS  
(includes Investment Property)  55,388  93,863  92,950  93,096  72,224  72,432  73,137  73,245  74,238  74,482 

DEPRECIATION  13,998  17,717  20,866  24,932  4,080  8,109  12,324  16,446  19,938  23,539 
NET FIXED ASSETS  41,390  76,146  72,084  68,164  68,163  64,336  60,814  56,799  54,300  50,943 
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS  7,425  151  6  2  2  2  604  1,391  62  2,079 
 INVESTMENTS  0.26  0.26  0.26  0.26  0.26  0.26  5.00  5.00  5  5 
DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,109  417 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
GROSS CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS  15,580  18,022  16,000  13,778  13,299  13,480  13,447  12,832  15,930  35,306 

CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS  5,781  13,181  14,638  15,580  15,201  19,183  14,221  16,064  15,789  18,963 
NET CURRENT ASSETS  9,799  4,841  1,362  (1,802)  (1,902)  (5,703)  (774)  (3,232)  142  16,343 
DEFERRED REVENUE EXPENDITURE  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
DEBIT BALANCE IN P & L  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
NET ASSETS EMPLOYED  58,614  81,137  73,452  66,364  66,264  58,636  60,649  54,963  54,511  69,371 
RATIOS:
ROCE (%)  0.61  (1.31)  (1.09)  (0.01)  (0.10)  2.85  (1.53)  0.03  0.01  1.92 
PBDIT TO GROSS INCOME(%)  5.50  5.85  8.44  9.60  9.45  12.78  7.50  14.93  8.90  7.58 
PAT ON SHAREHOLDERS'FUNDS(%)  0.29  (4.48)  (5.63)  (3.33)  3.62  0.66  (3.97)  2.21  2.47  (0.20)
EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE(Rs)  1.37  (20.72)  (24.62)  (14.12)  (15.30)  2.82  (16.22)  9.25  10.59  (0.99)
DIVIDEND PER EQUITY SHARE(Rs)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
NET WORTH PER EQUITY SHARE(Rs)  479.47  462.01  437.39  423.27  422.35  425.13  408.54  418.20  429.08  504.85 
DEBT: EQUITY RATIO  0.28  0.62  0.55  0.44  0.44  0.27  0.37  0.35  0.24  0.09 

@ 	includes merger of Lotte Foods India Private Ltd (subsidiary of Lotte confectionery Co. Ltd, Korea)
*	 Company has switched over from erstwhile IGAAP to IndAS from F.Y 2018-19. Accordingly Figures have been arrived after considering the effect of Ind As for the 

F.Y 2018-19. Further to enhance comparability F.Y 2017-18 Figures have been restated with Ind AS adjustments.
.
.
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 68th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company (AGM) will be held on Friday, the 
29th September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. [Indian Standard Time 
(IST)] through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual 
Means to transact the following businesses:
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
1.	 To consider and adopt the Audited financial statements 

of the Company for the year financial year ended 31st 
March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Kyungwoon 
Cho ( DIN: 09048060 ) who retires by rotation and is 
eligible for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
3.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 

without modification(s) the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution: 

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 
and subject to the approval of shareholders, the 
remuneration payable to Mr.Kyungwoon Cho,  
(DIN - 09048060), Chairman cum Executive Director 
be and is hereby revised as follows with effect from 
1st February, 2023 to 7th March 2024.

(a)	Salary
i.	 Rs.55,000 per month as basic salary 
ii.	 Rs.7,52,650 per month towards allowances such 

as personal allowance and medical allowance.  
(b) Benefits 

i.	 Rent free furnished accommodation expenses 
subject to a maximum of Rs.40,00,000 per annum 
and if required with an increase upto 15% p.a. 

ii.	 Rs.3,36,000 per annum towards maintenance of 
car, fuel and driver’s salary.

iii.	 Medical reimbursements subject to a maximum of 
Rs.85,000 in aggregate per annum and Medical 
Insurance premium as per company’s policy. 

iv.	 Rs.2,00,000 per annum in aggregate towards club 

LOTTE INDIA CORPORATION LIMITED 
Regd Office : No.4/111, Mount Poonamallee Road, Manapakkam, Chennai 600 089.
Phone No. 044-4545 8888; FAX: 044-4545 8800; e-mail: compsecy@lotteindia.com

Corporate Identity Number: U15419TN1954PLC001987; Website: www.lotteindia.com
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membership / subscription fee. 
v.	 Reimbursement of grocery expenses, school fees on 

actuals and cost of repairs, maintenance and utilities 
(eg. gas, electricity and water charges), and repairs 
for the said housing accommodation on actual.

vi.	 Leave travel concession expenses on actual for 
one trip from India to Korea and return for him and 
his family subject to a maximum of Rs. 7,00,000 in 
aggregate per annum.

(c) Gratutity and Contribution to Provident fund shall be 
payable as per applicable Acts. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.Kyungwoon Cho 
shall be governed by all service conditions of the 
Company as applicable to Senior Management 
personnel and directors.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no 
profits or inadequacy of profits, Mr.Kyungwoon Cho 
shall be entitled to the above remuneration as the 
minimum remuneration subject to the approvals, if 
any, required. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.Kyungwoon Cho is 
entitled to annual increment as may be fixed by the 
Board from time to time on the recommendation of 
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee subject 
to applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and that the terms and conditions of the aforesaid 
remuneration payable to Mr.Kyungwoon Cho be 
varied / altered/revised within the said overall limit 
allowed under Companies Act, 2013, in such manner 
as may be deemed fit by the Board of Directors during 
aforesaid period. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 
do all acts, deeds and things and execute all such 
documents as may be required to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.

4.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution: 

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
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the rules made there under including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof and subject 
to the approval of shareholders, the remuneration 
payable to Mr.Milan Wahi (DIN: 05242884), Managing 
Director be and is hereby revised as follows with 
effect from 1st January, 2023 to 09.10.2025.

(a) Salary 
i.	 Rs.4,84,250 per month as basic salary. 
ii.	 Rs.5,30,621 per month towards allowances such 

as House rent  allowance, special allowance and 
leave travel allowance. 

(b)	Benefits 
i.	 Rs.49,550 per month towards Maintenance of 

car, fuel, driver’s salary, telephone and mobile 
charges. 

ii.	 Performance incentive subject to a maximum of 
Rs.14,48,658 per annum as per Company’ policy. 

iii.	 Medical insurance and other benefits as applicable 
to the senior management personnel of the 
company, will be provided in accordance with the 
rules and regulations of the company 

iv.	 Rs.2,00,000 per annum in aggregate towards 
Club membership subscription fee. 

(c)	Gratutity and Contribution to Provident fund shall 
be payable as per applicable Acts. Superannuation 
fund payment shall be in accordance with Company’s 
policy in force. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.Milan Wahi shall be 
governed by all service conditions of the Company 
as applicable to Senior Management personnel and 
directors.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no 
profits or inadequacy of profits, Mr.Milan Wahi shall 
be entitled to the above remuneration as the minimum 
remuneration subject to the approvals, if any, required. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.Milan Wahi is 
entitled to annual increment as may be fixed by the 
Board from time to time on the recommendation of 
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee subject 
to applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and that the terms and conditions of the aforesaid 
remuneration payable to Mr.Milan Wahi be varied / 
altered/revised within the said overall limit allowed 
under Companies Act, 2013, in such manner as 
may be deemed fit by the Board of Directors during 
aforesaid period. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 

of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 
do all acts, deeds and things and execute all such 
documents as may be required to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution. 

5.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution: 

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules made there under including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof and subject to the approval of shareholders, 
the remuneration payable to Mr.Jeongkwan Heo, 
(DIN: 09715459) Whole Time Director be and is hereby 
revised as follows with effect from 1st February, 2023 
to 29th August, 2025. 

(a)	Salary 
i)	 Rs.55,000 per month as basic salary. 
ii)	 Rs. 4,07,274 per month towards allowances. 

(b) Benefits 
iii)	 Rent free furnished accommodation expenses 

subject to a maximum of Rs.25,00,000 per annum 
and if required with an increase upto 15% p.a.

iv)	 Rs.475,000 per annum towards Maintenance of 
car, fuel, driver’s salary. 

v)	 Medical reimbursement subject to a maximum of 
Rs.85,000  in aggregate per annum and Medical 
insurance premium as per company’s policy. 

vi)	 Rs.2,00,000 per annum in aggregate towards 
Club Membership / subscription fee. 

vii)	Reimbursement of grocery expenses, school fees 
on actuals and cost of repairs, maintenance and 
utilities (eg. gas, electricity and water charges), 
and repairs for the said housing accommodation 
on actual.

viii)	Leave travel concession expenses on actual for 
one trip from India to Korea and return for him and 
his family subject to a maximum of Rs. 3,50,000 in 
aggregate per annum.

ix)	 Gratutity and Contribution to Provident fund shall 
be payable as per applicable Acts. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.Jeongkwan Heo 
shall be governed by all service conditions of the 
Company as applicable to Senior Management 
personnel and directors.      

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of no 
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profits or inadequacy of profits, Mr.Jeongkwan Heo 
shall be entitled to the above remuneration as the 
minimum remuneration subject to the approvals, if 
any, required. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.Jeongkwan Heo is 
entitled to annual increment as may be fixed by the 
Board from time to time on the recommendation of 
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee subject 
to applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 
and that the terms and conditions of the aforesaid 
remuneration payable to Mr.Jeongkwan Heo be 
varied / altered/revised within the said overall limit 
allowed under Companies Act, 2013, in such manner 
as may be deemed fit by the Board of Directors during 
aforesaid period. 

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 
do all acts, deeds and things and execute all such 
documents as may be required to give effect to the 
aforesaid resolution.

6.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as 
a Special Resolution:

	 RESOLVED THAT the allowance amount of 
Rs.2,50,000 paid to Mr.Jeongkwan Heo (DIN. 
09715459) during the period from 30.08.2022 to 
31.03.2023 over and above the limit of Rs. 15,31,403 
approved by the Shareholders at their Annual 
General Meeting held on 29.09.2022 be and is hereby 
approved.

By Order of the Board
For Lotte India Corporation Limited

Chennai 	 T.G. Karthikeyan 
Date: August 29, 2023	 Company Secretary

Notes:
1.	 In compliance with the MCA Circulars, Notice of the 

AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent 
through electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. 
For those Members who have not registered their email 
ids with the Company / Depositories, physical copy of 
Notice of AGM and Annual Report 2022-23 is being 
sent. The aforesaid notice along with Annual Report 
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at  
www.lotteindia.com . 

2.	 The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of item Nos.3 

to 6 and statement pursuant to the provisions of Part-II 
of Section –II (iv) of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 
are annexed.

3.	 Since this AGM is through video conferencing, 
appointment of Proxy is not applicable and hence proxy 
form and attendance slip are not attached to this Annual 
Report.

4.	 Members, who are having shares in physical form are 
requested to intimate change in their addresses, if any, 
immediately to the Company at its Head Office / RTA 
quoting their folio number, certificate number. 

5.	 Members, who are having shares in Demat form are 
requested to intimate change in their addresses, if any, 
immediately to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their Demat Account. 

6.	 Book closure: The Register of Members and 
ShareTransfer books of the Company shall remain 
closed from 23.09.2023 to 29.09.2023 (both days 
inclusive). 

7.	 As per the green initiative taken by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the shareholders are advised to 
register their e-mail address with the Company by 
sending an email to “compsecy@lotteindia.com”, in 
respect of shares held in physical form and with the 
concerned Depository Participant in respect of shares 
held in Demat form to enable the Company to serve 
documents in electronic form. 

8.	 Since dematerialization of shares is mandatory for 
transfer of their holdings, Members who are holding 
shares in physical form are advised to dematerialise 
their holdings at the earliest. 

9.	 In compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility, for 
all the Shareholders of the Company. For this purpose, 
the Company had entered into an agreement with CDSL 
for facilitating e-voting to enable the Shareholders to 
cast their votes electronically. 

10.	The Company has appointed Ms.R.Sucharithra, 
Company Secretary in Practice (CP No.6284), as 
Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in a 
transparent manner. 

11.	Members who did not cast their vote through remote 
e-voting during the e-voting period shall be allowed to 
cast their vote thru e-voting at the  AGM. 

12.	The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion 
of voting at the Anuual General Meeting, first count the 
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes 
cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 
two witnesses not in the employment of the company 
and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the 
meeting, a consolidated Scrutiniser’s report of the total 
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of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 
restriction on account of first come first served basis.
The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Since this AGM is through video conferencing, the facility 
to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members 
is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of 
Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representatives of the members such as the President 
of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can 
attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM and cast their votes 
through e-voting. 
The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.lotteindia.
com . 
Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through 
Laptops / IPads for better experience. Further shareholders 
will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a 
good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation 
in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE 
E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:
The e-Voting period begins on 26.09.2023 at 9.00 a.m. 
and ends on 28.09.2023 at 5.00 p.m. During this period 
shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form as on 22.09.2023 
(the cut-off / record date) may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.
Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will 
be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the AGM. . 
Step 1 : 	Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 

system in case of individual    shareholders holding 
shares in demat mode. 

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode 
CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Notes (Contd.)

votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman 
or a person authorised by him who shall countersign the 
same. The Chairman or a person authorised by him shall 
declare the result of the voting forthwith. The results 
declared along with the Scrutiniser’s report shall be 
placed on the Company’s website www.lotteindia.com..

Instructions for e-voting and joining virtual meetings.  
In view of the continuing COVID-19 global pandemic, the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Circular No.20/2020 
dated May 05, 2020 read with Circular No.14/2020 dated 
April 08, 2020 read with Circular No.17/2020 dated April 
13, 2020 read with Circular No.02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021 read with Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 
2021 and Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and 
Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28/12/2022 allows conducting 
of Annual General Meeting of the Company through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 
without the physical presence of the members for the 
meeting at a common venue. In terms of the said Circulars 
and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be 
held through VC / OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and 
participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM only. 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and MCA 
Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 
2020, January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 05, 
2022 and December 28, 2022 the Company shall provide 
the facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of 
the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, 
the Company has entered into an agreement with Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating 
voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-voting 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date 
of the AGM through VC or OAVM will be provided by CDSL.
The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available 
where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned elsewhere 
for Remote e-voting. 
The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM  mode 
15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will 
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% 
or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons 
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Notes (Contd.)

Type of shareholders  Login Method
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 
Depository

1)	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/
myeasi/home/login or visit  www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi.

2)	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3)	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.
cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4)	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 
Depository

1)	 If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2)	 If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://
eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at https://eservices.
nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3)	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their Depository 
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able 
to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30    

Step 2:	 Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode.

1)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual 
holding in Demat form.

2)	 The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com..

3)	 Click on “Shareholders” module.

 	 Now enter your User ID 

a.	 For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c.	 Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

	 (OR)  Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at https://www.
cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/
EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

4)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting 
of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

6)	 If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•	 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 

requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.
Dividend Bank details 
(or)
Date of Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

Notes (Contd.)
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(i)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on 
“SUBMIT” tab.

(ii)	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then 
directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now 
reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in 
the new password field. Kindly note that this password 
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not 
to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(iii)	 For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

(iv)	 Click on the EVSN for the relevant for LOTTE INDIA 
CORPORATION LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

(v)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION 
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution.

(vi)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details.

(vii)	After selecting the resolution, you have decided to 
vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote.

(viii)	Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(ix)	 You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on 
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(x)	 If a demat account holder has forgotten the login 
password, then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter 
the details as prompted by the system.

(xi)	 There is also an optional provision to upload BR/
POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to 
scrutinizer for verification.

(xii)	Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders 
and Custodians for remote evoting.
•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing 
the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

•	 After receiving the login details a Compliance 
User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to 
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

•	 The list of accounts linked in the login will be 
mapped automatically & can be delink in case of 
any wrong mapping.

•	 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board 
Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, 
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

•	 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are 
required mandatory to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address 
viz; compsecy@lotteindia.com (designated email 
address by company)   , if they have voted from 
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL 
e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING 
THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
1.	 The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the 

day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for e-voting.

2.	 The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be 
available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed 
after successful login as per the instructions mentioned 
above for e-voting.

3.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting 
will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will 
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.	 Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting 
through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.	 Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera 
and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.
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6.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 
to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection 
to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 
3 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at (company email id). The shareholders who do not 
wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may 
send their queries in advance 3 days prior to meeting 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). 
These queries will be replied to by the company suitably 
by email. 

8.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves 
as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/
ask questions during the meeting.

9.	 Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-Voting system available during the 
AGM.

10.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the 
e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting 
through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility 
of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE 
EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. 	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary 
details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
Company/RTA email id.

2. 	 For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id 
& mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP) 

3. 	 For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your 
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & 
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

	 If you have any queries or issues regarding attending 
AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you 
can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

	 All grievances connected with the facility for voting by 
electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel 
(East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800 22 55 
33.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Profile of Mr.Kyungwoon Cho, Chairman cum Executive 
Director 

Mr. Kyungwoon Cho (DIN.9048060) is a Post graduate 
(MBA) in International Business from Korea 
University and having about 21 years of rich 
experience in Sales, Marketing and Finance. He 
joined in Lotte Group in 2001 and served in various 
capacities at its Headquarters at Korea and as well 
as at Lotte Guylian, Belgium. Before his appointment 
in Lotte India, he was working with Lotte HQ as 
Vice President of Global Strategic Division. He is 
the Chairman of Havmor Ice Cream P.Ltd. He is a 
member of Audit Committee, CSR Committee and 
Remuneration & Nomination Committee.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

The documents mentioned in Explanatory 
statement are available for inspection at the Head 
office of the Company at 4/169, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, 
Kandanchavadi, Chennai – 600 096 from Monday to 
Friday (except on holidays) from 10.30 A.M to 4 .30 
P.M till the previous day before the AGM.

Item 3:

Considering the performance of Mr. Kyungwoon 
Cho (DIN - 09048060), Chairman cum Executive 
Director and based on the recommendation of 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee, at 
its meeting held on 25th July, 2023, the Board of 
Directors at their meeting held on same date, 
revised the remuneration of Mr. Kyungwoon Cho 
with retrospective effect from 1st February, 2023 
to 7th March 2024, subject to the approval of 
shareholders. Mr. Kyungwoon Cho (DIN.9048060) 
is a Post graduate (MBA) in International Business 
from Korea University and having about 21 years 
of rich experience in Sales, Marketing and Finance. 
He joined in Lotte Group in 2001 and served in 
various capacities at its Headquarters at Korea 
and as well as at Lotte Guylian, Belgium. Before 
his appointment in Lotte India, he was working 
with Lotte HQ as Vice President of Global Strategic 
Division. He is a member of Audit Committee, 

CSR Committee and Remuneration & Nomination 
Committee. He is the Chairman of Havmor Ice 
Cream P.Ltd. His rich experience in the areas of 
sales, marketing and finance will help us to improve 
the overall performance of the Company. He does 
not hold any shares in the Company. 

None of the Directors (other than Mr. Kyungwoon 
Cho), Key managerial personnel and relatives 
of them is interested or concerned in the above 
resolution. The Board of Directors recommend the 
passing of the above resolutions.

Item 4

Considering the performance of Mr. Milan Wahi,  
(DIN. 05242884) Managing Director and based 
on the recommendation of Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee, at its meeting held on  
25th July, 2023, the Board of Directors at their meeting 
held on same date, revised the remuneration 
of Mr.Milan Wahi with retrospective effect from 
1st January, 2023 to 9th October 2025 subject 
to the approval of shareholders.  Mr.Milan Wahi  
(DIN. 05242884) is a post graduate in Science 
with PG Diploma and has about 30 years of rich 
experience in the fields of Marketing and sales and 
worked as senior management personnel in various 
reputed Companies such as Cavin Kare, VST 
Industries, Whirlpool India, Lotte India Corporation 
Ltd, JK Dairy and Kenstar etc. He is a member of 
CSR Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee. His vast experience will help us to 
improve the overall performance of the Company. 
He does not hold any shares in the Company. 

None of the Directors (other than Mr.Milan Wahi), 
Key managerial personnel and relatives of them is 
interested or concerned in the above resolution. The 
Board of Directors recommend the passing of the 
above resolutions.

Item 5:

Considering the performance of Mr.Jeongkwan Heo, 
(DIN. 09715459) Whole Time Director & CFO and 
based on the recommendation of Remuneration and 
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Nomination Committee, at its meeting held on 25th 
July, 2023, the Board of Directors at their meeting 
held on same date, revised the remuneration of 
Mr.Jeongkwan Heo with retrospective effect from 
1st February, 2023 to 29th August, 2025 subject to 
the approval of shareholders.  

Mr.Jeongkwan Heo is a Graduate in Accounting 
from Dongguk University, Seoul and has about 
12 years of experience in the field of Finance 
and Accounts. Prior to his appointment at Lotte 
India,  Mr.Jeongkwan Heo was working with Lotte 
Confectionery Co.Ltd, Korea as Manager (Treasury). 
His association with the Company will help us to 
improve the performance of the Company. He does 
not hold any shares in the Company. 

None of the Directors (other than Mr.Jeongkwan 
Heo), Key Managerial Personnel and relatives 
of them is interested or concerned in the above 
resolution. The Board of Directors recommend the 
passing of the above resolutions.

Item 6:

The Company had paid the allowance amount of Rs. 
2,50,000 to Mr.Jeongkwan Heo during the period 
from 30.08.2022 to 31.03.2023, which is in excess 
of other allowance limit of Rs. 15,31,403 approved 
by the shareholders at their Annual General Meeting 
held on 29.09.2022. In view of the above, the 
approval of shareholders is required. He does not 
hold any shares in the Company. 

None of the Directors (other than Mr.Jeongkwan 
Heo), Key Managerial Personnel and relatives 
of them is interested or concerned in the above 
resolution. The Board of Directors recommend the 
passing of the above resolutions

.
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The following information pertaining to Mr. Kyungwoon Cho is furnished pursuant to the provisions of Part – II of Section – II 
(Iv) of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Information Particulars

Nature of Industry Confectionery

Date or expected date of commencement 
of commercial production

The Company is in existence since 1954 (The name of the Company has since 
been changed from Parrys Confectionery Limited to Lotte India Corporation 
Limited)

In case of new companies, expected date 
of commencement of activities as per 
Project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus

Not applicable

Financial performance based on given 
indicators

As per the Audited Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31.03. 2023, the 
Sales achieved was Rs.65,724 lakhs and loss after tax was Rs.125.54 lakhs.

Foreign investments or collaborators, if 
any

98.90 % of the paid up capital of the Company is held by M/s Lotte 
Confectionery Co., Ltd (Presently known as Lotte Wellfood Co., Ltd) Republic 
of Korea (Lotte) with approvals from FIPB / RBI.

Information about the appointee
Background details Mr. Kyungwoon Cho (DIN.9048060) is a Post graduate (MBA) in International 

Business from Korea University and having about 21 years of rich experience 
in Sales, Marketing and Finance. He joined in Lotte Group in 2001 and served 
in various capacities at its Headquarters at Korea and as well as at Lotte 
Guylian, Belgium. Before his appointment in Lotte India, he was working with 
Lotte HQ as Vice President of Global Strategic Division. He is a member 
of Audit Committee, CSR Committee and Remuneration & Nomination 
Committee. He is the Chairman of Havmor Ice Cream P.Ltd.

Past remuneration Mr. Kyungwoon Cho was previously drawing a remuneration of Rs.149 lakhs 
as CTC per annum.

Recognition or awards He has received awards in recognition of his service from his earlier employer.
Job Profile and Suitability Mr. Kyungwoon Cho (DIN.9048060) is a Post graduate (MBA) in International 

Business from Korea University and having about 21 years of rich experience 
in Sales, Marketing and Finance. He joined in Lotte Group in 2001 and served 
in various capacities at its Headquarters at Korea and as well as at Lotte 
Guylian, Belgium. Before his appointment in Lotte India, he was working with 
Lotte HQ as Vice President of Global Strategic Division. He is a member 
of Audit Committee, CSR Committee and Remuneration & Nomination 
Committee. He is the Chairman of Havmor Ice Cream P.Ltd. His association 
with the Company will help us to improve the performance of the Company.

Remuneration proposed The terms of the remuneration proposed are detailed in the Special resolution
Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the company 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details should 
be w.r.t. the country of his origin.

The Confectionery industry perse has few companies which are listed and 
many comparable companies are in private limited category like Perfetti Van 
Melle India P. Ltd.,
Parle Products Pvt. Ltd. etc. and information relating to the remuneration 
profile of the Whole Time Director appointed under the Company law is not 
available.
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Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the Company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any.

There were no pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company. 
There are no relationships with the managerial personnel.

Other Information

Reasons of loss or inadequacy of profits i)	 the cost of few raw materials and packing materials have gone up 
significantly when compared to last year as an impact of inflation and 
also due to Ukraine-Russian war conditions. 

ii)	 The company is unable to pass on the above increase fully to the 
customers as the company deals mostly with MRP based product 
categories linked with coinage.

iii)	 The Company continues to invest in brand building by focusing 
on promotional activities and improving distribution by investing in 
manpower to counter the impact of increasing competition in the market.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement

i)	 Effective cost management and effective utilization of common 
resources.

ii)	 Increase in domestic as well as in export sales by focusing on distribution 
expansion. 

iii)	 Plan to expand the capacity of existing product category by investing in 
the production line.

iv)	 Focus on increasing the margin of major selling products and reducing 
50 paise product sale.  

v)	 Introduction of new products in the existing product category to increase 
the  sale and take advantage of the brand awareness. 

Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms

i)	 The company is focusing on higher distribution coverage thus improving 
the productivity of coverage per persons.  Introducing new products to 
enhance the range selling in the market. 

ii)	 Higher capacity utilization due to expansion of sale would reduce the 
cost per unit by bringing in economies of scale.

iii)	 Setting up of additional line for manufacturing Chocopie at Chennai 
factory, which will come into operation from September, 2023.

The following information pertaining to Mr.Milan Wahi is furnished pursuant to the provisions of Part – II of Section – II (Iv) of 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Information Particulars

Nature of Industry Confectionery

Date or expected date of commencement 
of commercial production

The Company is in existence since 1954 (The name of the Company has since 
been changed from Parrys Confectionery Limited to Lotte India Corporation 
Limited)

In case of new companies, expected date 
of commencement of activities as per 
Project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus

Not applicable

Financial performance based on given 
indicators

As per the Audited Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31.03. 2023, the 
Sales achieved was Rs.65,724 lakhs and loss after tax was Rs.125.54 lakhs.
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Foreign investments or collaborators, if 
any

98.90 % of the paid up capital of the Company is held by M/s Lotte 
Confectionery Co., Ltd. Republic of Korea (Lotte) with approvals from FIPB 
/ RBI.

Information about the appointee
Background details Mr. Milan Wahi (DIN.05242884) is a post graduate in Science with PG 

Diploma and has about 30 years of rich experience in the fields of Marketing 
and sales and worked as senior management personnel in various reputed 
Companies such as Cavin Kare, VST Industries, Whirlpool India, JK Dairy 
and Kenstar etc. He is a member of CSR Committee and Stakeholders 
relationship Committee.

Past remuneration Mr.Milan Wahi was previously drawing a remuneration of Rs.143  lakhs as 
CTC per annum. 

Recognition or awards He has received awards in recognition of his service from his earlier employer.
Job Profile and Suitability Mr. Milan Wahi is a post graduate in Science with PG Diploma and has about 

30 years of rich experience in the fields of Marketing and sales and worked 
as senior management personnel in various reputed Companies such as 
Cavin Kare, VST Industries, Whirlpool India, JK Dairy and Kenstar etc. He is 
a member of CSR Committee and Stakeholders relationship Committee. His 
association with the Company will help us to improve the performance of the 
Company. 

Remuneration proposed The terms of the remuneration proposed are detailed in the Special resolution.
Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the company 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details should 
be w.r.t. the country of his origin.

The Confectionery industry perse has few companies which are listed and 
many comparable companies are in private limited category like Perfetti Van 
Melle India P. Ltd.,

Parle Products Pvt. Ltd. etc. and information relating to the remuneration 
profile of the Whole Time Director appointed under the Company law is not 
available.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the Company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any.

There were no pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company. 
There are no relationships with the managerial personnel.

Other Information
Reasons of loss or inadequacy of profits i)	 the cost of few raw materials and packing materials have gone up 

significantly when compared to last year as an impact of inflation and 
also due to Ukraine-Russian war conditions 

ii)	 The company is unable to pass on the above increase fully to the 
customers as the company deals mostly with MRP based product 
categories linked with coinage.

iii)	 The Company continues to invest in brand building by focusing 
on promotional activities and improving distribution by investing in 
manpower to counter the impact of increasing competition in the market

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement

i)	 Effective cost management and effective utilization of common 
resources.

ii)	 Increase in domestic sales by focusing on distribution expansion. 
iii)	 Plan to expand the capacity of existing product category by investing in 

the production line.
iv)	 Focus on increasing the margin of major selling products and reducing 

50 paise product sale.  
v)	 Introduction of new products in the existing product category to increase 

the  sale and take advantage of the brand awareness. 
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Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms

i)	 The company is focusing on higher distribution coverage thus improving 
the productivity of coverage per persons.  Introducing new products to 
enhance the range selling in the market. 

ii)	 Higher capacity utilization due to expansion of sale would reduce the 
cost per unit by bringing in economies of scale.

iii)	 Setting up of additional line for manufacturing Chocopie at Chennai 
factory, which will come into operation from September 2023. 

The following information pertaining to Mr.Jeongkwan Heo is furnished pursuant to the provisions of Part – II of Section – II 
(Iv) of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Information Particulars

Nature of Industry Confectionery

Date or expected date of commencement 
of commercial production

The Company is in existence since 1954 (The name of the
Company has since been changed from Parrys Confectionery
Limited to Lotte India Corporation Limited)

In case of new companies, expected date 
of commencement of activities as per 
Project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus

Not applicable

Financial performance based on given 
indicators

As per the Audited Profit & Loss account for the year ended 31.03. 2023, the 
Sales achieved was Rs.65,724 lakhs and loss after tax was Rs.125.54 lakhs.

Foreign investments or collaborators, if 
any

98.90 % of the paid up capital of the Company is held by M/s Lotte 
Confectionery Co., Ltd. Republic of Korea (Lotte) with approvals from FIPB 
/ RBI.

Information about the appointee
Background details Mr.Jeongkwan Heo (DIN: 09715459) is a Graduate in Accounting from 

Dongguk University, Seoul and has about 12 years of experience in the 
field of Finance and Accounts. Prior to his appointment at Lotte India,  
Mr.Jeongkwan Heo was working with Lotte Confectionery Co.Ltd, Korea as 
Manager (Treasury).

Past remuneration Mr.Jeongkwan Heo was previously drawing a remuneration of Rs.42.47 lakhs 
as CTC per annum. 

Recognition or awards He has received awards in recognition of his service from his earlier employer.
Job Profile and Suitability Mr.Jeongkwan Heo (DIN: 09715459) is a Graduate in Accounting from 

Dongguk University, Seoul and has about 13 years of experience in the field of 
Finance and Accounts. Prior to his appointment at Lotte India,  Mr.Jeongkwan 
Heo was working with Lotte Confectionery Co.Ltd, Korea as Manager 
(Treasury). He is currently the Whole Time Director & CFO of the Company. 
His association with the Company will help us to improve the performance of 
the Company. 

Remuneration proposed The terms of the remuneration proposed are detailed in the Special resolution.
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Comparative remuneration profile with 
respect to industry, size of the company 
profile of the position and person (in case 
of expatriates the relevant details should 
be w.r.t. the country of his origin.

The Confectionery industry perse has few companies which are listed and 
many comparable companies are in private limited category like Perfetti Van 
Melle India P. Ltd.,

Parle Products Pvt. Ltd. etc. and information relating to the remuneration 
profile of the Whole Time Director appointed under the Company law is not 
available.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly 
with the Company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any.

There were no pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company. 
There are no relationships with the managerial personnel.

Other Information
Reasons of loss or inadequacy of profits i)	 the cost of few raw materials and packing materials have gone up 

significantly when compared to last year as an impact of inflation and 
also due to Ukraine-Russian war conditions 

ii)	 The company is unable to pass on the above increase fully to the 
customers as the company deals mostly with MRP based product 
categories linked with coinage.

iii)	 The Company continues to invest in brand building by focusing 
on promotional activities and improving distribution by investing in 
manpower to counter the impact of increasing competition in the market.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for 
improvement

i)	 Effective cost management and effective utilization of common 
resources.

ii)	 Increase in domestic sales by focusing on distribution expansion. 
iii)	 Plan to expand the capacity of existing product category by investing in 

the production line.
iv)	 Focus on increasing the margin of major selling products and reducing 

50 paise product sale.  
v)	 Introduction of new products in the existing product category to increase 

the  sale and take advantage of the brand awareness.  
Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms

i)	 The company is focusing on higher distribution coverage thus improving 
the productivity of coverage per persons.  Introducing new products to 
enhance the range selling in the market. 

ii)	 Higher capacity utilization due to expansion of sale would reduce the 
cost per unit by bringing in economies of scale.

iii)	 Setting up of additional line for manufacturing Chocopie at Chennai 
factory, which will come into operation from September 2023.
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 68th Annual Report of your company together with the audited financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023.
Financial Results			   Rs. In lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended  
31st March, 2023

For the year ended  
31st March, 2022

Gross Sales 65,724.06 49,653.63
Less  : Discounts & Schemes 5,808.64 4,207.70
Net sales 59,915.42 45,445.93
Add: Other Income 1,164.04 431.56
Total Income 61,079.46 45,877.49
Total Expenditure w/o Depn and Finance charges 56,117.95 41,476.88
Proft before dep in and finance 4,961.51 4,400.61
Less: Int Dep and finance charges 4,274.51 4,309.92
Profit /(loss) before tax 687.00 90.68
  less: Provision for tax

        - Current 120.03 50.00
         -  Deferred 692.51 -1,109.48

Profit /(loss) after tax -125.54 1,150.16
Add: Balance Brought forward from previous year - 4,739.84 -5,921.69
Profit /(loss) for the year -125.54 1,150.16
OCI 19.20 31.69
Balance loss transfered to Balance Sheet - 4,846.18 - 4,739.84

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2022-23

The Board of Directors has decided not to recommend any 
dividend for the year period ended 31st March, 2023.

Performance Highlights

For the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company has 
achieved gross sales of Rs. 65,724 lakhs as against Rs. 
49,654 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022.  During 
the year under review, the Company has incurred a Loss 
after tax of Rs.125.54 lakhs as against a Profit of Rs. 
1,150.16 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

During the year under review, the company has achieved 
highest ever sales. However, the cost of few raw materials 
and packing materials have gone up significantly when 
compared to last year as an impact of inflation and also due 
to Ukraine-Russian war conditions. On account of the various 
cost reduction measures adopted by the Company including 
product mix change, the company was able to reduce the 
impact and achieve Profit Before Tax of Rs. 687.00 Lakhs

Industry Trends

In the past year, inflation emerged as a significant force 
influencing consumer behavior and demand. People 
responded by adapting the quantities they purchased 
and giving precedence to essential items rather than non-
essential ones, all aimed at effectively managing their 
household finances. While individuals remained loyal to their 
preferred brands, they began emphasizing the importance 
of value. Throughout this period, our unwavering dedication 
remained fixed on providing exceptional products that 
perfectly balanced quality and cost.

We maintained our price points to guarantee consumer 
convenience, which, unfortunately, impacted our profit 
margins consistently over the course of the year.

Amidst strong double-digit growth in the Pie market, active 
efforts are underway to enhance and diversify the Choco 
Pie brand’s portfolio, capitalizing on this favourable trend. 
Impressively, our performance outpaced the growth of the 
Cream biscuit market.
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With growths back in Confectionary segment, we focused on 
our core brands Coffy Bite & Coconut Punch. Lollipops and 
Jellies being the high growth categories within confectionery, 
we launched range of Lollipops and Fruit Jellies in the price 
point of Rs. 5/- & Re. 1/- respectively. These New Products 
helped us to garner growths..

Outlook 

Markets are expected to continue the growth momentum 
and we are confident on riding on this growth wave. Few raw 
materials are still seeing upward trend, which could impact 
the margins.

This year we will commercialize our new Choco Pie line in 
Nemam factory. Additional capacity will help us to further 
drive the penetration of the Choco Pie category. Extensions 
into new flavours and availability across newer markets will 
drive our growths. Our aim would be to continue making 
Lotte a preferred brand among the consumers.

In the confectionary category, Coffy Bite expansion into the 
higher growing HBC segment will make the brand relevant 
to the younger urban target group.  We are optimistic of 
the growths we planned in the segment and enhance our 
market Shares. Jellies and Lollipops remain our new focus 
segments.

Internal Control System

Your Company has in place adequate systems of internal 
control commensurate with its size and the nature of 
its operations. These have been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance with regard to recording and 
providing reliable financial and operational information, 
complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding assets 
from unauthorized use or losses, executing transactions with 
proper authorization and ensuring compliance of internal 
policies. The Company has a well-defined delegation of 
power with authority limits for approving revenue as well as 
capital expenditure. Processes for formulating and reviewing 
annual and long term business plans have been laid down 
to ensure adequacy of the control system, adherence to the 
management instructions and legal compliances.

Extract of Annual Return

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, copy 
of Annual Return is posted on Company’s website and 
the same can be accessed at https://www.lotteindia.com/
investor-centre.html#annual-return.

Board Meetings

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were held. 
Details of number of meetings of Board of Directors and its 
committees thereof and attendance of the Directors in such 
meetings are provided under the Corporate Governance 
Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, your Directors, based on representations from the 
Operating Management, confirm that:

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) 	the directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 
of the company for that period;

(c) 	the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) 	the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis;

(e) 	the directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively.

(f) 	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

Declaration from Independent Directors

Mr. D.G.Rajan (DIN: 00303060) and Ms.Jeehye You 
(DIN:07817025), Independent Directors have given 
declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as 
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  (Contd.)
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Nomination & Remuneration Policy:

The Policy provides for appointment, remuneration and 
removal of Directors, KMP & Senior Management Personnel 
and criteria for the same.
1. 	 Appointment of Director, KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel: The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) shall identify and ascertain the 
qualification, expertise and experience of the persons 
being considered for appointment as a Director, KMP 
and Senior Management level and recommend the 
appointment to the Board. At the time of appointment 
of an Independent Director, the NRC shall ensure that 
the appointee shall meet with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and conditions stipulated in the 
Policy from time to time, for determining independence 
of a director. Further, the continuity of such Independent 
Director shall be on the basis of a yearly review 
process. While appointing, the company will have 
regard to diversity, qualification, skill, integrity, industry 
experience, expertise and other distinctions. In case 
of appointment of members of the Board, the term of 
appointment shall be in accordance with Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made thereunder. The Managing Director 
and Whole Time Director are authorised to identify and 
appoint suitable persons for the post of KMP and Senior 
Management personnel (other than members of board) 
for administrative convenience and if need be after 
consulting the NRC / Board for guidance.

2. 	 Evaluation: The Independent Directors shall carry out 
evaluation of performance of every Director including 
independent director. The evaluation process / criteria 
for the Board, its Committees, Individual Directors 
and the Independent Directors shall be broadly based 
on Knowledge to perform the role, time and level of 
participation, Performance of duties and Professional 
conduct and independence. The Board Board, its 
Committees, Individual Directors and the Independent 
Directors shall be asked to complete the evaluation 
forms and submit the same to the Chairman.

	 The evaluation of KMP and Senior Management 
personnel shall be in accordance with HR policies of the 
Company in force.

3. 	 Remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel:

a)	 Non-Executive Directors (Including Independent 
Directors): The sitting fee /  remuneration payable 
to directors shall be in accordance with Companies 
Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder for the 
time being in force. Review of remuneration of non-
executive directors shall be made by NRC and 
shall be recommended to the Board for approval, 
if required. An Independent Director shall not be 
entitled to any stock option of the Company.

b. Managing Director, Executive Director and Whole-
time director (including revisions & alterations) shall 
be in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules framed hereunder as well as the HR Policy 
of the Company. The remuneration is on the basis 
of the Company’s overall performance, individual’s 
contribution towards Company’s performance and 
trends in the industry in general and comprises 
of a fixed salary, allowances, reimbursements, 
perquisites and performance incentive. 

c. 	 Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
Personnel: Remuneration comprises of fixed 
salary, allowances, reimbursements, perquisites, 
performance incentive as per HR policy of the 
Company and is also subject to NRC / Board approval 
wherever required statutorily. The remuneration is 
related to the desired skill set, experience, expertise 
and long term relationships.

4. 	 Removal: Due to reasons for any disqualification 
mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, 
Rules and Regulations or amendments thereunder and 
/ or for any disciplinary reasons and subject to such 
applicable Acts, Rules and Regulations and the

	 Company’s prevailing HR policies, the Committee may 
recommend, to the Board, with reasons recorded in 
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management  
personnel. The Remuneration and Nomination policy 
approved by the Board of Directors is posted on the 
website of the Company viz., https://www.lotteindia.com/
pdf/REMUNERATION-AND-NOMINATION-POLICY.pdf 

Loans/Guarantee/Investments

The Company has no Inter-Corporate Loans/ Guarantees. 
Investments of the Company in the shares of other 
companies are provided under notes to Balance Sheet 
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  (Contd.)
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Related Party Transactions:
All the transactions of the Company with related parties are 
at arm’s length and have taken place in the ordinary course 
of business. No transaction entered with related parties was 
material. In view of the above, disclosures of related party 
transactions in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.
Deposits
The company has not accepted any deposits and as such, 
no amount towards principal or interest on same has been 
outstanding as on date.
Material Changes
There is no material change or commitments after closure of 
the accounting year till the date of this report.
Conservation of energy, technology absorption and 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo
(A)	 Conservation of energy
(i)	 The steps taken or impact on Conservation of Energy:

a) 	 Utilized wind power partially at Nemam & Nellikuppam 
factories and Head office.

b) 	 In view of the above, your Company was able to 
conserve energy cost and saved around Rs.1.15 
crores  during the year 2022-23.

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy :

(a)	 Your Company had already installed solar power 
plant (125 KW) at Rohtak factory.. 

b) 	 Generated 1.23 Lakhs units of Solar power at Rohtak 
factory, which resulted in cost saving of around Rs. 
7.99 lakhs. 

c) 	 Optimized the energy efficiency level of cooling 
tower at Rohtak by using the variable frequency drive 
and reducing the number of cooling tower operation 
according to the load. Units saved 31680 units, 
which resulted in cost saving of around Rs. 2.05 
lakhs/annum. 

d)	  Installed the time intervals for the stirrer motor for 
Chocolate tank at Rohtak factory. Units saved 85789 
Units, which resulted in cost saving of Rs. 5.57 lakhs. 

e) 	 Installed interlocking dust collector motors with flour 
blower operation at Rohtak factory saved 3240 units, 
which resulted in cost saving of Rs. 0.21 lakhs.

(iii)	the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment’s: Nil.

(B)  Technology absorption
(i) 	 the efforts made towards technology absorption;
	 Continued efforts of quality control/ quality assurance 

procedures to enhance and maintain quality.
(ii) 	the benefits derived like product improvement, cost 

reduction, product development or import substitution;
	 The above resulted in enhancement of quality and 

reduction in cost of manufacture.
(iii) 	in case of imported technology (imported during the last 

three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year)- Your Company has the advantage of availing 
advanced technology and constant upgradation of the 
same from its holding company viz., Lotte Confectionery 
Co.Ltd, Seoul, Korea .

Details of technology imported : Technology required for 
manufacturing basic raw materials
a)	 Year of import : 2015
b)	 Whether the technology been fully absorbed : Yes, fully 

absorbed
c) 	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 

taken place, and the reasons thereof : Not applicable
(iv)  the expenditure incurred on Research and development: 

Rs 55.68 lakhs
  	 Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 

(Rs.in lakhs)
Earnings 2208.36
Outgo 7446.73

Business Risk Management
The Company has developed and implemented the Risk 
Management Policy. The policy envisages identification of 
risk and procedures for assessment and minimisation of risk 
thereof. The Risk Management Policy of the Company is 
available at the Company’s website http://www.lotteindia.com

Corporate Social Responsibilty
Your Company has constituted a CSR committee of Board of 
Directors and has adopted a CSR Policy. The same is posted 
in the Company’s website https://www.lotteindia.com/pdf/
CSR-POLICY.pdf. The policy aims mainly for promotion of 
education, development of vocational skills among children 
women, health, rural developments etc.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  (Contd.)
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The obligation to spend towards CSR did not arise to your 
Company for the year 2022-23 as the limits as per section 
135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable. 
A report in prescribed format is attached herewith as  
Annexure 1. 

Directors
Mr.Jeongkwan Heo was appointed as Whole Time Director 
at the Board Meeting held on 30.08.2022 in the place of 
Mr. In Chul Yeo, who resigned from the post of Whole Time 
Director and from the Directorship of the Company with effect 
from on 29.03.2022. The appointment of Mr.Jeongkwan Heo 
as Whole Time Director was approved by Shareholders at 
the AGM held on 29.09.2022.
Mr.Milan Wahi was reappointed as Managing Director for 
a period of 3 years from 10th October, 2022 at the Board 
Meeting held on 30.08.2022 and approved by shareholders 
at the AGM held on 29.09.2022.
Mr.Kyungwoon Cho, Director will retire by rotation at this 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for 
reappointment.
Ms.Jeehye You was appointed as Independent Director at 
the Board Meeting held on 29.03.2022 for a period of 5 years 
and same was approved by shareholders at the AGM held 
on 29.09.2022.  

Key Managerial Personnel

The Company designated Mr.Kyungwoon Cho, Chairman 
cum Executive Director, Mr. Milan Wahi, Managing 
Director, Mr.Jeongkwan Heo, Chief Financial Officer and 
Mr.T.G.Karthikeyan, Company Secretary as Key Managerial 
Personnel. 

Statutory Auditors
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Chennai 
was appointed as Statutory auditors of the Company at 
the AGM held on 30th September, 2021 for a period of 5 
years to hold office from the conclusion of 66th  AGM till the 
conclusion of 71st  AGM.  

Secretarial Audit
The Secretarial Audit Report for the Year ended 31st March, 
2023 given by  Mrs R.Sucharithra, Company Secretary in 
Practice, is annexed to this report as Annexure 2.

Your Company has appointed Mrs.R.Sucharithra, Company 
Secretary in Practice, to do Secretarial Audit for the year 
2023-24  and provide the report thereon.

Internal Audit

Your company has appointed Grant Thornton Bharat LLP, 
Chennai as Internal Auditor for the year 2023-24.

Industrial Relations: 

During the year under review, the Industrial relations were 
remained cordial at all factories. However, a group of 
workmen of Nemam (Chennai) factory were on strike from 
20th April, 2023 to 14th July, 2023 on various demands. After 
many rounds of meetings with workmen and conciliation 
talks before statutory authorities at various levels, amicable 
settlement was reached on 14th July, 2023 and striking 
workmen resumed their duty from 15th July, 2023.  During 
the strike period, your Company managed to run the factory 
with available workers.

Share Capital

The Paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 
31st March, 2023 was Rs.1410.24 lakhs. The Company has 
neither issued any shares (other than the shares mentioned 
below) nor granted stock options or sweat equity.

As approved by shareholders on 28.08.2022 vide Postal 
ballot, the Company had allotted 3238595 equity shares 
of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.531 per share to Lotte 
Confectionery Co., Ltd., Korea  (Holding Company) on 
preferential basis against the investment made by holding 
company towards expansion of Nemam (Chennai) factory.

Change in name of Holding Company:

The name of holding Company viz., Lotte Confectionery 
Co., Ltd., Korea was changed to Lotte Wellfood Co., Ltd., 
with effect from 1st April, 2023 following the merger of Lotte 
Foods, Korea with Lotte Confectionery Co., Ltd., Korea.

Other disclosures:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the 
Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern 
status of the Company and its future operations.

Maintenance of cost records as specified by Central 
Government under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to your Company.

Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the 
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  (Contd.)

157



23

Acknowledgement

The Board wishes to place on record, its sincere 
appreciation for the co-operation and support received from 
the Customers, Bankers, Suppliers, Converters and the 
Shareholders. The Board also wishes to place on record 
the whole hearted co-operation given by employees, at all 
levels, during the year.

Cautionary Statement

Statement in the Directors’ report and Management 
Discussion & Analysis describing the objectives, expectations 
may be forward looking. Actual results may differ materially 
from those expressed in the statement. Important factors 
that could influence the Company’s operations include 
global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting 
selling prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, 
changes in government regulations, tax laws, economic 
developments within the country and other factors such as 
litigation and industrial relations. 

. 

On behalf of the Board
For Lotte India Corporation Limited

Chennai Kyungwoon Cho Milan Wahi Jeongkwan Heo D.G.Rajan
Date: August 29, 2023 Chairman cum ED      Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO Independent Director
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ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities  

for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2023

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
Lotte India believes that every citizen including the corporate citizen needs to shoulder some social responsibility for the 
progress and well being of the society. Towards this end, Lotte India shall strive to actively contribute to the social and 
economic development of the society in which we operate
2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
Directorship

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the year

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during the 

year
1 Mr. D.G.Rajan Chairman 

(Independent Director)
No meeting was held as 
the provisions of Section 
135(1) of Companies Act, 
2013 did not apply during 
the year 2022-23.

Not applicable

2 Mr. Kyungwoon Cho Member 
(Chairman of Board and 
Executive Director) 

3 Mr. Milan Wahi Member (Managing Director)
3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board 

are disclosed on the website of the company.
	 https://www.lotteindia.com/pdf/CSR-POLICY.pdf 
4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in 

pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.  – Not applicable
5	 (a)	 Average net profit / (Loss) of the Company as per sub-section 5 of Section 135: (Rs.195.87 lakhs)
	 (b)	 Two percent of average net profit / (Loss) of the Company as per the sub-section 5 of Section 135 (Rs.3.92 lakhs)
	 (c)	 Suprlus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Not applicable
	 (d)	 Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any	 :  Not applicable.
	 (e)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year [b+c-d] : Nil 
6	 (a)	 Amount spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project)
	 (b)	 Amount spent in Administrative overheads		  :  Not applicable
	 (c)	 Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable	 :  Not applicable
	 (d)	 Total amount spent for the financial year [a+b+c] 	 :  Not applicable

	 (e)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 	 :  Nil

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial Year. 

(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per sub-section (6) 

of section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to sub-section (5)  

of section 135.
Amount Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer.

Nil
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	 (b)	 Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(1) (2) (3)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135

Not applicable

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)]
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial 

Years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]

7.	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s)

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
sub- section (6) 

of section 135 (in 
Rs.)

Balance Amount 
in Unspent CSR 
Account under 
sub- section (6) 
of section 135 

(in Rs.)

Amount 
Spent 
in the 

Financial 
Year (in 

Rs)

Amount transferred to a 
Fund as specified under 

Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to sub- 
section (5) of section 

135, if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
Financial 

Years (in Rs)

Deficiency, 
if any

Amount 
(in Rs)

Date of 
Transfer

1 FY-1
Not applicable.2 FY-2

3 FY-3
8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent 

in the Financial Year:
	 No
	 If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 
spent in the Financial Year:

Sl. 
No.

Short particulars of the 
property or asset(s) 

[including complete address 
and location of the property]

Pincode of 
the property 
or asset(s)

Date of 
creation

Amount of 
CSR amount 

spent
Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 

the registered owner

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Registration 

Number,  
if applicable

Name Registered 
Address

NOT APPLICABLE
(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ 
Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)
9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed  to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub- 

section (5) of section 135.	 : Not applicable
On behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Chennai Milan Wahi D.G.Rajan

Date: August 29, 2023 Managing Director  
and Member of CSR Committee

Independent Director  
and Chairman of CSR Committee
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ANNEXURE 2 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To
The Members 
LOTTE INDIA CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U15419TN1954PLC001987 
No.4/111, Mount Poonamallee Road 
Manapakkam, Chennai- 600 089

My Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2022-2023 is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3.	 I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.	 Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company

Place : Chennai 	 S/d- 
Date :  29.08.2023	 Name of Company Secretary in practice : R Sucharithra

FCS No: 9734 
C P No: 6284 
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

LOTTE INDIA CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U15419TN1954PLC001987
No.4/111, Mount Poonamallee Road
Manapakkam, Chennai- 600 089 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by LOTTE INDIA CORPORATION LIMITED (hereinafter called the company).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31.03.2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Lotte India 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2023 according to the provisions of

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are 
not applicable since the company is not a Listed Company
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(vi)	 Since the Company is not a listed Company, the Listing Agreement is not applicable

(vii)	The management has identified and confirmed the following law as being specifically applicable to the Company. On 
the basis of the representations made by the respective plant heads, the Company has identified and complied with the 
various laws applicable to the Company inter-alia

.	 a.	 Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006

	 b.	 Factories Act, 1948

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India for Board Meetings and General Meetings.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines 
and Standards as mentioned above. The Managerial remuneration paid for the year ended 31.03.2023 is in excess of limits 
approved by shareholders to the extent of Rs.2.5 lakhs. The Company has proposed to obtain shareholders’ approval for the 
same in the ensuing Annual General meeting in order to comply with the requirements of Section 197 read with Schedule V 
to the Companies Act, 2013.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Woman independent director. 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in 
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions are carried out and properly recorded in the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules regulations 

All decisions were taken unanimously at the Board and Committee meetings and with requisite majority at the Annual General 
meeting. 

OBSERVATIONS:

The records, documents and licenses for compliances under various Acts pertaining to Factories at Nellikuppam, Nemam and 
Rohtak were verified.

The records pertaining to Safety, Health and Welfare measures followed by the Company and the laws applicable and the 
compliances were also verified.

I also observe that Books of accounts as required under section 128(1) of the Companies Act,2013 have been kept by the 
company. However, the back-up of such books of accounts and other papers maintained in electronic mode has not been 
maintained on servers physically located in India
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I further report that during the audit period–

1.	 The Company in its 67th annual General meeting held on September 29th 2022:

a)	 Approved the appointment of Ms.Jeehye You (DIN:07817025) for a term of 5 years from 29.03.2022 to 28.03.2027 
through special resolution.

b)	 Approved the appointment of Mr.Jeongkwan Heo (DIN:09715459) as Whole time Director for a term of 3 years 
from 30.08.2022 to 29.08.2025 through special resolution. The same is awaiting approval from The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Chennai.

c)	 Approval of the Club Subscription fee of Rs.1,17,803 paid to Mr.Milan Wahi, Managing Director of the company.

d)	 Approved the Re- appointment of Mr.Milan Wahi, (DIN:05242884) as Managing Director of the company for a 
period of 3 years from 10.10.2022 to 09.10.2025  

2.	 There was no Physically convened Extra-ordinary General Meeting convened during the period under review. However, 
Postal Ballot Meeting was convened on 28.08.2022 

3.	 The Company has issued 32,38,595 equity shares of Rs.541/- (Including a premium of Rs.531 per equity share) to 
M/s Lotte Confectionary Co Ltd, Seoul, Korea the holding Company as Preferential issue of shares on 28.08.2022 and 
allotted the same on 12.09.2022. Due compliances were met in this regard.

4.	 I Further report that, the company has not carried out 

(i)	 Redemption/buy-back of securities

(ii)	 Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.

(iii)	 Foreign Technical Collaborations

Place : Chennai 	 S/d- 
Date : 29.08.2023	 Name of Company Secretary in practice : R Sucharithra

FCS No: 9734 
C P No: 6284 

Peer Review Certificate No: 1026/2020

UDIN:   F009734E000885686
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Volundary Disclosures)

1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

	 Lotte India Corporation Limited (LICL) is committed to the highest standards of corporate governance in all its activities 
and processes. Corporate Governance refers to the manner in which a Company is directed, and laws and customs 
affecting that direction. It includes the manner in which a Company operates under the laws governing Companies, the 
bylaws established by the Company itself, and the structure of the Company. The corporate governance structure specifies 
the relationship, and the distribution of rights and responsibilities, among primarily three groups of participants viz. the 
Board of directors, managers and shareholders. It spells out the rules and procedures for making decisions on corporate 
affairs; it also provides the structure through which the Company objectives are set, as well as the means of attaining and 
monitoring the performance of those objectives. The fundamental concern of corporate governance is to ensure conditions 
whereby a Company’s directors and managers act in the interests of the Company and its various  stakeholders. The 
following is a report on the status and progress on major aspects of Corporate Governance.  

2.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a)	 Composition of the Board and Directorship held as on 31st March 2023:

Name of Directors Position Category
No.of

Directorship
held in other 
companies

No.of Board 
Committee

Memberships 
and 

Chairmanships 
held

in other 
companies

No.of shares 
held as on 
31.03.2023

Mr.Kyungwoon Cho Chairman Cum ED Executive Director 1 Nil Nil

Mr.Milan Wahi (#) Managing Director Executive Director Nil Nil Nil

Mr.Myeongrim Choi Director Non Executive 10 1 Nil

Mr. D.G.Rajan Independent Director Non Executive 9 13 Nil

Ms.Jeehye You Independent Director Non Executive 8 Nil Nil

Mr.Jeongkwan Heo Whole Time Director Executive Director Nil Nil Nil

(#) 	Mr.Milan Wahi was a designated partner of Lotte Data Communication R & D Center India LLP, which was dissolved by 
the order of NCLT w.e.f 09.12.2022.

	 (b) Attendance of each director at the Board Meetings and the last AGM

	 During the year ended 31st March, 2023, five Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 

	 12.07.2022, 30.08.2022, 12.09.2022, 30.12.2022 and 30.03.2023
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Name of Directors No.of Board Meetings attended Attendance at last AGM held on 
29.12.2022

Mr.Kyungwoon Cho 5 Yes
Mr.Milan Wahi 5 Yes
Mr.Myeongrim Choi 3 No
Mr.D.G.Rajan 5 Yes
Ms.Jeehye You 4 No

 Mr.Jeongkwan Heo 3 Yes

3.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE
(a)	 Constitution: Composition of the Audit Committee as on 31.03.2023: 
	 Mr.D.G.Rajan -  Non Executive Independent Director – Chairman
	 Mr.Kyungwoon Cho – Chairman cum ED – Member
	 Ms.Jeehye You - Non Executive Independent Director - Member
(b)	 Audit Committee – Meetings and attendance during the year ended 31.03.2023. Four Meetings were held on the following 

dates.
	 12.07.2022, 30.08.2022, 30.12.2022, 30.03.2023

Name of Directors Position No. of Audit committee meetings attended
Mr.D.G.Rajan Chairman 4
Mr.Kyungwoon Cho Member 4
Ms.Jeehye You Member 3

	 Non-Executive Chairman, Managing Director, Whole Time Director, Senior Management Personnel, Statutory Auditors 
and Internal Auditors are regularly invited to the meeting. Mr. T G Karthikeyan, Company Secretary acts as Secretary to 
the Committee. Mr. D G Rajan, Director is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and 
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has vast exposure in finance and accounts.

4	 REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS
 	 The Remuneration policy details are available in the Nomination and Remuneration policy mentioned in the Directors’ 

Report.
	 Constitution: Composition of the Remuneration & Nomination (R & N) Committee as on 31.03.2023:
	 Mr.D.G.Rajan, Non Executive Independent Director - Chairman
	 Mr.Kyungwoon Cho, Chairman cum ED – Member
	 Mr.Myeongrim Choi, Director – Member
	 Ms.Jeehye You, Non Executive Independent Director - Member

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)
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	 During the year period ended 31.03.2023, Two meetings were held on 12.07.2022 and 30.08.2022 
	 The attendance of each member of the Committee is given below :

Name of Director Position Attendance at Audit Committee Meeting
Mr.D.G.Rajan Chairman 2
Mr.Kyungwoon Cho Member 2 
Mr.Myeongrim Choi Member 1
Ms.Jeehye You Member 1

	 The details of sitting fee paid to Non-Executive Directors for the year 2022-23.

Name of the Director Sitting fees (Rs) Commission
Mr.D.G.Rajan 600000 Nil 
Ms.Jeehye You 450000 Nil 
Total 1050000

5.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

	 The Committee was mainly established to monitor investors’ grievances such as complaints on transfer of shares, 
nonreceipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, etc. and redressal thereof. The Board has delegated 
its powers, to approve transfer, issue and sign new share certificates in case of new issue / split / consolidation / lost / 
mutilated / rematerialisation etc, to Directors / Company Secretary.

	 No complaints of material nature were received during the year under review.

	 The Committee consists of Mr.D.G.Rajan as Chairman, Mr.Milan Wahi, as Member, Mr.Myeongrim Choi as Member. Mr. T 
G Karthikeyan, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

	 The Company has created separate e-mail id compsecy@lotteindia.com for grievance redressal. 

6.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

	 Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Board of Directors had formed a Committee by name Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee. The Committee consists of Mr.D.G.Rajan,  Independent Director as Chairman,  Mr. 
Kyungwoon Cho and Mr.Milan Wahi as members.

	 Details of Meetings held during the year ended 31.03.2023 : Nil

	 The obligation to spend amount towards CSR did not arise as the past three years average net profit is negative. 

7.	 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

	 Mr.D.G.Rajan (DIN: 00303060) and Ms.Jeehye You  (DIN: 07817025) had a Meeting on 30.12.2022 without the presence 
of other directors and evaluated the performance of Board, Directors and Chairman.
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8.	 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS (AGM) / EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS (EGM)
	 Details of the last four Annual General Meetings held are given below :

Date of Meeting Time of Meeting Venue of the Meeting
29.12.2022 10.30 A.M Video Conferencing
30.09.2021 10.30 A.M Video Conferencing
30.09.2020 11.30 A.M M.A.Chidambaram Hall, SICCI, Esplanade, Chennai – 

600108.30.12.2019 10.15 A.M

9.	 DISCLOSURES
i) 	 Related Party Transactions: There were no materially significant related party transactions with Directors/promoters/ 

management which had potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
ii) 	 Risk Management: The Board of Directors were presented the risk assessment and minimization of the same which is 

subject to periodical review.
iii) 	Code of Conduct: Code of Conduct for the Board members and Senior Management personnel has been adopted by 

the Board.
iv) 	The Company has Vigil Mechanism Policy and we affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit 

Committee (in respect of matters involving misconduct, if any).
v) 	 Disclosure under Section II of Part – II (iv) of Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended 31.03.2023.

Particulars Mr.Kyungwoon Cho Mr.Milan Wahi Mr.Jeongkwan Heo 
(@) 

Date of Birth 13.10.1974 30.01.1964 11.10.1984
Qualification Post Graduate in 

International Business
Post Graduate in Science 
with PG Diploma

Graduate in 
Accounting

Experience 21 years of 
experience in Sales & 
Marketing 

30 years of experience in 
Sales & Marketing

13 years of 
experience in 
Accounts & finance 

Salary last drawn
All elements of remuneration package such 
as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, 
pension etc

Rs.149 lakhs Rs.143 lakhs Rs.42.47 lakhs

Details of fixed component and performance 
linked incentives along with the performance 
criteria

Nil Rs.6.82 lakhs
(Based on Business 
Performance parameters)

Nil

Service Contracts Nil Nil Nil
Notice period 3 months 3 months 3 months
Severance fees Nil Nil Nil
Stock option details, if any, and whether the 
same has been issued at a discount as well 
as the period over which accrued and over 
which exercisable.

Nil Nil Nil

(@) Mr.Jeongkwan Heo was appointed as Whole Time Director w.e.f. 30.08.2022

On behalf of the Board
For Lotte India Corporation Limited

Chennai Kyungwoon Cho              Milan Wahi Jeongkwan Heo D.G.Rajan
August 29, 2022  Chairman cum ED      Managing Director WTD & CFO Independent Director
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION
To
The Members of Lotte India Corporation Limited
In relation to the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Year ended 31st March, 2023, we hereby certify 
that
1.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Year ended 31st March 2023 and that 

to the best of our knowledge and belief,  
•	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 

that might be misleading, and 
•	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
2.	 there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, which 

are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.
3. 	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the 
Audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 
that we have taken or propose to take to rectify the identified deficiencies and 

4. 	 We have informed the auditors and the audit committee that there are
•	 Significant changes in internal control during the year, if any.
• 	 Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements, if any and 
• 	 Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve management or an employee 

having a significant role in the Company’s Internal Control System over financial reporting. However, there was 
no such instance.

For Lotte India Corporation Limited
Chennai	 Jeongkwan Heo
Date: August 29, 2023	 Whole Time Director & CFO 

CONFIRMATION
To
The Members of Lotte India Corporation Limited
We hereby confirm that, for the Year ended 31st March, 2023
(i) 	 All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct 

framed by the Company.
(ii) 	 No instance of sexual harassment of women was reported to the Internal Complaints Committee constituted under the 

Sexual harassment of women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

For Lotte India Corporation Limited
Chennai	 Jeongkwan Heo
Date: August 29, 2023 	 Whole Time Director & CFO 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Registered Office : No. 4/111, Mount Poonamallee Road, Manapakkam, Chennai -600 089
2. Date of the forthcoming Annual 

General Meeting by VC / OAVM
: 29th  September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. 

3. Book Closure Dates : 23.09.2023 to 29.09.2023 (both days inclusive).
4. EVSN  : 230904062
5. E-voting Cut off Date : 22.09.2023
6. E-voting period : 26.09.2023 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 28.09.2023 at 5.00 p.m (both days inclusive). 

Procedures for e-voting are given in Notice calling Annual General Meeting.
7. Plant Location : 1.	 Nellikuppam (Cuddalore Dist.) Tamil Nadu

2.	 Nemam, Chennai, Tamil Nadu
3.	 Rohtak, Haryana

8. Share Capital : 141023630 equity shares of Rs.10 each. Out of this, 14028622 equity shares of 
Rs.10/- each (99.47%) equity shares have been dematerialized as on 31st March, 
2023

9.      Share Transfer System
	 The Company has appointed Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., as the Registrar and Transfer Agent (R&TA) of the Company for 

all aspects of investor servicing relating to shares.
	 The Board has delegated the power to approve the transfer to a committee of Directors and also to the Senior Executives of 

the Company, with limits.
	 Share transfers are completed within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of the documents, if the documents are in 

order in all respects.
	 No investor complaint is pending.
10.	 Address for Correspondence :

i)	 To contact R&TA for all matters 
relating to shares

: P Muralidharan, Asst.Manager (Shares)
Cameo Corporate Services Limited
‘Subramanian Building’, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai-600 002
Tel : 91-44-2846 0718; Fax: 91-44-2846 0129
e-mail: murali@cameoindia.com

ii)	 To the Company : T G Karthikeyan, Company Secretary
Lotte India Corporation Limited
4/169, Rajiv Gandhi Salai (OMR), Kandanchavadi, Chennai – 600096.
Tel: 91-44-4545 8888; Fax: 91-44-4545 8800

iii)  The designated Company’s E-mail 
Id for Investor Complaints is

: compsecy@lotteindia.com

iv) 	Compliance Officer : T G Karthikeyan, Company Secretary
v) 	 Company’s Website : www.lotteindia.com

11. 	 Depositories Connectivity
	 National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL)
	 Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL)
	 ISIN: INE185A01011
12.	 Dematerialization of shares
	 The Company has signed agreements with both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and with Central Depository 

Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to provide the facility of holding equity shares in dematerialized form. As on 31st March, 2023, 
14028622 equity shares constituting 99.47 % of the total paid up capital of the Company have been dematerialized.

13. 	 Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs etc.
	 The Company has not issued any GDR, ADR or any convertible instruments pending conversion or any other instrument likely 

to impact the equity share capital of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To The Members of Lotte India Corporation Limited

Report on the audit of the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) Financial Statements

Opinion
1.	 We have audited the accompanying financial 

statements of Lotte India Corporation Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2023, and total comprehensive loss (comprising 
of profit and other comprehensive loss), changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion
3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements” section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion

Other Information
4.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 

the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Director’s report, but 

does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

	 We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of management and those charged 
with governance for the financial statements
5.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

6.	 In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management 
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either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

	 Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements

7.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

8.	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

●	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

●	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

●	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

●	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

●	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

9.	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

10.	 We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
11.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.  

12.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that: 

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books, except 
that the backup of books of account and other books 
and papers maintained in electronic mode has not 
been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically 
located in India during the year. 

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account. 

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of 
the Act. 
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(f)	 With respect to the maintenance of accounts and 
other matters connected therewith, reference is made 
to our remarks in paragraph (b) above.

(g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.  

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to 
us

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 38 to the financial statements. 

ii.	 The Company was not required to create a provision 
as at March 31, 2023, under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, as it does not have any 
material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts. 
The Company did not have any derivative contracts 
as at March 31, 2023. 

iii.	There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 
31, 2023.

iv.	(a)	 The management has represented that, to the 
best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 40 (vii) to 
the financial statements);

	 (b)	 The management has represented that, to the 

best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 40 (vii)to the 
financial statements); and

	 (c)	 Based on such audit procedures that we 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement.

v.	 The Company has not declared or paid any dividend 
during the year.

vi.	As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for 
maintaining books of account in accounting software 
having a feature of recording audit trail of each and 
every transaction, creating an edit log of each change 
made in books of account along with the date when 
such changes were made and ensuring that the audit 
trail cannot be disabled, is applicable to the Company 
only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 
2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended), is currently not applicable

13.	 Except for the managerial remuneration aggregating 
to Rs. 2.5 lakhs, the managerial remuneration paid/ 
provided for by the Company is in accordance with the 
requisite approvals as mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. As stated 
in Note 34 to the financial statements, the Company 
has proposed to obtain shareholder’s approval in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting to comply with the 
requirements of Section 197 read with Schedule V to 
the Act

  For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants
					     Suresh S

Partner
Place: Chennai 	 Membership Number: 200928
Date: August 29, 2023 							       UDIN:23200928BGYHPR1862  
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Lotte India Corporation 
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.	 We have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements of Lotte India 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2023   in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

2.	 The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the 
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

4.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system with reference to financial statements 
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
financial statements

6.	 A company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
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regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements

7.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate 

Opinion
8.	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and such internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023 , based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note issued by ICAI

  For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants
					     Suresh S

Partner
Place: Chennai 	 Membership Number: 200928
Date: August 29, 2023							       UDIN:23200928BGYHPR1862  
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Lotte India Corporation 
Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

i. (a)	 (A)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, 
of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use  assets and Investment properties.

	 (B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.
(b)	 The Property, Plant and Equipment and investment property are physically verified by the Management according to a 

phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, 
Plant and Equipment and Investment property has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

(c)	 The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, are held in 
the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description 
of property

Gross 
carrying value 
(INR Lakhs)

Held in the name 
of 

Whether 
promoter, 
director or 
their relative or 
employee

Period held 
- indicate 
range, where 
appropriate

Reason for not being 
held in the name of 
the Company

Building 
measuring 
945.20 sq. ft. 
at Ahmedabad

10.50 Parry 
Confectionery 
Limited, erstwhile 
Company

No More than 10 
years

Title deeds are in the 
name of erstwhile 
company

(d) 	 The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets), investment 
properties and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based 
on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the 
aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
investment properties or intangible assets does not arise.  

 (e)   Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on (or) are pending 
against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 
(as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions    (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made 
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the 
details in its financial statements does not arise. 

ii.(a) 	 The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management 
is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The 
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in 
aggregate for each class of inventory.

	 (b)  	 During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, 
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with 
such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts. (Also refer Note 42(iii) to the financial 
statements) .

iii. 	 The company has not made any investments, granted secured/unsecured loans/ advances in nature of loans, or stood 
guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)
(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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iv. 	 The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties 
covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.  

v.		 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 
and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. 	The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 
of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance and goods and services tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including  sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess, and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also, 
refer note 39 to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to provident 
fund. 	

 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are 
no statutory dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, duty of customs, value added 
tax and goods and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of service 
tax and Excise duty as at March 31, 2023 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount in  
INR lakhs Period to which the amount relates

Forum where 
the dispute is 

pending

CENVAT CREDIT 
RULES, 2004

Excise Duty 348.46 Jan 2010 to Feb 2013 CESTAT

CENVAT CREDIT 
RULES, 2004

Service tax 392.01 January 2009 to January 2013 CESTAT

CENVAT CREDIT 
RULES, 2004

Service tax     3.95 Mar-13 CESTAT

CENVAT CREDIT 
RULES, 2004

Service tax     6.21 April 2013 to March 2014 CESTAT

		  * Excludes amount paid as deposit against dispute amounting to Rs. 14.5 lakhs.
viii.	According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are 

no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

ix. 	(a) 	According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during 
the year.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the 
Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

	 (c)	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the 
purposes for which they were obtained. 

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been 
used for long-term purposes by the Company.  
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	 (e)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 
did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.  

	 (f)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company 
did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.  

x. 	 (a)	 The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (b)	 The Company has made a preferential allotment of shares during the year, in compliance with the requirements of 
Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The funds raised have been used for the purpose for which funds were raised, 
except as described below :

Nature of 
securities

Purpose for which 
funds raised

Total Amount Raised 
/ Opening unutilized 
balance (in INR Lakhs)

Amount utilized for 
the other purpose 
(in INR Lakhs)

Un-utilized balance 
as at Balance sheet 
date (in INR Lakhs)

Remarks

Equity 
shares

Capital projects 
expansion (additional 
manufacturing facility)

17,520.80 - 11,287.91 NA

xi.	 (a)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the 
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.  

   	 (b)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a report 
under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (c)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, and 
as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the 
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xii.		 As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under clause 
As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under clause 
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.		 The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 
and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.	(a) 	In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

 	 (b) 	The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
xv.		  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. 

Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi.(a)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (b)  The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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	 (c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (d)  Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group does not have 
any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided 
by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

xvii. 	 The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year
xviii.  	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting under clause 

(xviii) is not applicable.
xix. 		 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note 40 

to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to 
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

  xx. 	 As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act.  
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

xxi.		 The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial Statements. 
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

  For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants

					     Suresh S
Partner

Place: Chennai 	 Membership Number: 200928
Date: August 29, 2023							       UDIN:23200928BGYHPR1862  
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)				  

Note  As at  
March 31, 2023 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3(a)  42,085.57  45,384.72 
Right-of-use Assets 3(b)  269.26  397.05 
Capital work-in-progress 3(c)  2,079.11  62.04 
Investment properties 3(d)  8,843.62  8,909.13 
Other Intangible assets 4  14.06  6.62 
Financial assets

(i) Investments 5(a)  5.00  5.00 
(ii) Other financial assets 5(b)  1,302.11  755.92 

Deferred tax assets (net) 6  416.97  1,109.48 
Income tax assets (net) 7 29.85  109.35 
Other non-current assets 8  4,363.22  249.33 

Total non-current assets  59,408.77  56,988.64 

Current assets

Inventories 9  7,713.52  6,490.63 
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 10  1,603.17  1,627.87 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11  15,514.38  500.40 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12  3,200.30  3,708.99 
(iv) Other financial assets 5(b)  302.21  341.86 

Other current assets 13  860.35  988.54 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  29,193.93  13,658.29 

TOTAL ASSETS  88,602.70  70,646.93 
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Note  As at  
March 31, 2023 

 As at  
March 31, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital 14(a)  1,410.24  1,086.38 
OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and surplus 14(b)  62,618.41  45,527.81 
Total equity  64,028.65  46,614.19 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15  5,611.31  8,292.11 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16  172.10  292.23 

Provisions 17  248.13  200.60 
Total non-current liabilities  6,031.54  8,784.94 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 15  3,370.89  3,111.92 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16  120.13  122.78 
(iii) Trade payables

(a)	 Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 18  44.95  26.67 
(b)	 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises 18  9,752.10  8,215.65 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 19  3,761.58  2,925.92 
Provisions 17  264.14  233.21 
Other current liabilities 20  1,228.72  611.65 
Total current liabilities  18,542.51  15,247.80 
Total liabilities  24,574.05  24,032.74 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  88,602.70  70,646.93 

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. . 				  
This is the Balance Sheet referred in our report of even date. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 	  
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016	 Lotte India Corporation Limited		
Chartered Accountants				 

Suresh S
Partner
Membership No. 200928

Kyungwoon Cho
Chairman cum ED
DIN : 09048060

Milan Wahi
Managing Director
DIN : 05242884

 

Jeongkwan Heo
Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN : 09715459

D.G. Rajan
Independent Director
DIN : 00303060

T.G. Karthikeyan
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR. lakhs, unless otherwise stated )				 

Note Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

REVENUE 
Revenue from operations 21  59,915.42  45,445.93 
Other income 22  1,164.04  431.56 

Total income  61,079.46  45,877.49 

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23  35,365.85  24,415.37 
Purchases of stock-in-trade  929.57  493.48 
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and 
finished goods

24  (1,530.02)  (1,038.45)

Employee benefits expense 25  4,738.91  4,177.48 
Finance costs 26  509.16  238.70 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27  3,765.35  4,071.23 
Other expenses 28  16,613.64  13,429.00 
Total expenses  60,392.46  45,786.81 

Profit before tax   687.00  90.68 
Income tax expense 29

Current tax  120.03  50.00 
Deferred tax  692.51  (1,109.48)

Total tax (credit) / expense  812.54  (1,059.48)

Profit for the year  (125.54)  1,150.16 
Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax)  19.20  31.69 

Other comprehensive income for the year  19.20  31.69 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  (106.34)  1,181.85 

Basic earnings per share (in INR) 41  (0.99)  10.59 
		
The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to our report of even date. 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 	  
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016	 Lotte India Corporation Limited		
Chartered Accountants				 
Suresh S
Partner
Membership No. 200928

Kyungwoon Cho
Chairman cum ED
DIN : 09048060

Milan Wahi
Managing Director
DIN : 05242884

 

Jeongkwan Heo
Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN : 09715459

D.G. Rajan
Independent Director
DIN : 00303060

T.G. Karthikeyan
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

A Equity share capital
Notes As at 

March 31, 
2023

As at 
March 31, 

2022

Balance at the beginning 14(a)  1,086.38  1,086.38 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors  -    -   
Restated balance at  the beginning of the  current reporting  period  1,086.38  1,086.38 
Changes in equity share capital during the current year  323.86  -   
Balance at the end  1,410.24  1,086.38 

B	 Other equity						   
	

Notes Reserves and surplus
TotalCapital 

reserve
Securities 
premium 

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2021  464.47  7,445.79  42,357.39  (5,921.69)  44,345.96 
Profit for the year 14(b)  -    -    -    1,150.16  1,150.16 
Other comprehensive income 14(b)  -    -    -    31.69  31.69 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    1,181.85  1,181.85 
Balance as at the end of March 31, 2022  464.47  7,445.79  42,357.39  (4,739.84)  45,527.81 
Premium on shares issued during the year  -   17,196.94  -   17,196.94
Profit for the year 14(b)  -    -    -    (125.54)  (125.54)
Other comprehensive income 14(b)  -    -    -    19.20  19.20 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    (106.34)  (106.34)
Balance as at the end of March 31, 2023  464.47 24,642.73  42,357.39  (4,846.18)  62,618.41 

	
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

This is the Statement of changes in Equity referred in our report of even date. 
  
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 	  
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016	 Lotte India Corporation Limited		
Chartered Accountants				 

Suresh S
Partner
Membership No. 200928

Kyungwoon Cho
Chairman cum ED
DIN : 09048060

Milan Wahi
Managing Director
DIN : 05242884

 

Jeongkwan Heo
Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN : 09715459

D.G. Rajan
Independent Director
DIN : 00303060

T.G. Karthikeyan
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023			 
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated )			 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2023

  Year ended 
 March 31, 2022

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax  687.00  90.68 
Adjustments for :

Finance costs  509.16  238.70 
Unwinding of interest on security deposit  -    (5.38)
Depreciation and amortisation expense  3,765.35  4,071.23 
Net (gain)/losses on derivative contracts  -    (329.61)
(Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  (1.81)  (84.21)
Interest on bank deposits  (755.25)  (83.79)
Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 
exchange differences

865.77  730.42 

Lease rentals  (297.05)  (202.37)
Sub-total (1)  4,773.17  4,425.67 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets  (479.01)  95.84 
(Increase)/Decrease in other current and non-current assets  141.69  (310.92)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  24.70  (382.26)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (1,222.89)  (2,231.85)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  1,554.73  2,566.40 
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities  771.39  392.18 
Increase/(Decrease) other current and non-current liabilities  617.07  198.34 
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions  59.26  2.43 
Sub-total (2)  1,466.94  330.16 

Cash generated from operations (1) + (2) = (3)  6,240.11  4,755.83 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)  40.53  38.29 
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A)  6,199.58  4,794.12 

B Cash flow from investing activities
Investment in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
(including capital work-in-progress)

 (6,441.18)  (583.92)

Proceeds for sale of property, plant and equipment  3.72  127.13 
Investment in deposits with banks with maturity of more than 3 
months

 508.69  289.99 

Interest received from bank deposits  733.10  103.53 
Income from investment property  297.05  202.37 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (B)  (4,898.62)  139.10 
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 Year ended 
 March 31, 2023

  Year ended 
 March 31, 2022

C Cash flow from financing activities 
Repayment of borrowing  (3,293.43)  (5,588.81)
Proceeds from borrowing  -    387.11 
Proceeds from fresh issue of equity shares  17,520.80  -   
Principal payments related to lease liabilities  (122.78)  (124.70)
Interest payments related to lease liabilities  (41.50)  (20.82)
Interest paid  (350.07)  (223.13)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (C)  13,713.02  (5,570.35)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
(A) + (B) + (C)

 15,013.98  (637.13)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the period  500.40  1,137.53 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period  15,514.38  500.40 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the Statement of Cash Flows 
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprises of the following:
Balances with banks 

- In current accounts  349.35  207.36 
- In cash credit account  233.05  177.61 
- In EEFC accounts  131.46  107.00 

Cash on hand  0.52  0.73 
Cheques on hand  -    5.39 
Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  14,800.00  2.31 
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows  15,514.38  500.40 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred in our report of even date. 
 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 	  
Firm Registration Number : 012754N/N500016	 Lotte India Corporation Limited		
Chartered Accountants		

Suresh S
Partner
Membership No. 200928

Kyungwoon Cho
Chairman cum ED
DIN : 09048060

Milan Wahi
Managing Director
DIN : 05242884

 

Jeongkwan Heo
Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN : 09715459

D.G. Rajan
Independent Director
DIN : 00303060

T.G. Karthikeyan
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: August 29, 2023
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Date: August 29, 2023
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1	 Corporate Information

1.1	 Brief description of the Company

	 Lotte India Corporation Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing and marketing of confectionery products. 
The parent company is Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea, which is one of the leading manufacturers of 
confectionery products. The Company has three manufacturing plants in India and manufactures/ distributes a wide range of 
confectionery products including Chocopie, Coffy Bite, Lacto King, Frutopie, Caramilk, Coconut Punch, Chewits and Spout 
Gums. With effect from April 01,2023, the name of the holding company changed from Lotte Confectionery Company to Lotte 
Wellfood Corporation Limited.

2	 Summary of significant accounting policies
	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These 

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.	

2	 Basis of preparation 
	 (i)	 Compliance with Ind AS
	 The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions 
of the Act.							     

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services rendered and the 
time between the commencement of services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained 
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.		

(ii)	 New and amended Standard adopted by the Company 
	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Amendment Rules, 2022, which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These amendments did 
not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future 
periods.

	 (iii) New amendments issued but not effective							     
	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’), which amend certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023.

	 The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income Taxes and Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The other 
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

	 These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future reporting periods and on 
foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 
12 as the company’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment.

	 (iv) Critical estimates and judgements							     

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date and 
reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of balance sheet. The 
estimates and the assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon the management’s evaluation	

	 The areas involving critical estimates and judgements:

	 (i) Measurement of deferred taxes (refer note 6)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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	 (ii) Estimation of defined benefit obligation (refer note 30)”	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.							     

	 (v) Historical cost convention							     

	 The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for certain assets and liabilities as stated in 
the respective policies, which have been measured at fair value.	

2.01	 Segment reporting
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker 

(CODM).

	 The board of directors of Lotte India Corporation Limited assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and 
makes strategic decisions. The board of directors have been identified as being the CODM. Refer note 35 for segment information 
presented. 

2.02	 Foreign currency translation
	 Functional and presentation currency:
	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

entity operates (functional currency), i.e., Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

	 Initial Recognition
	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

	 Subsequent recognition
	 As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are 

reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.

	 All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the closing exchange rates. Exchange 
differences arising out of actual payment/realization and from the year end restatement are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.	

2.03	 Property, plant and equipment							     

	 Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
	 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated 

useful lives or, in the case of certain leased furniture, fittings and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows: 	 	 	
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Asset Useful life As per Schedule II 
Building 28 years 30, 60 years
Plant and machinery 5-13 years 15 years 
Office equipments 5-10 years 5 years 
Furnitures and fittings 5 - 10 years 10 years 
Computers and other peripherals 3 - 5 years 3 years 
Vehicles 5 years 8 years 
Leasehold improvements 5 years or balance useful life, whichever is less

			 

	 The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the Management’s expert, in order to reflect 
the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual 
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Assets individually 
costing INR 5,000 and below are fully depreciated in the year of addition. 

	 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income/(expenses). 

2.04	 Intangible assets								      

	  Computer software  including internally developed software

 	 Computer software   are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. 
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled 
by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- 	 it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

- 	 Management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

- 	 there is an ability to use or sell the software

- 	 it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

- 	 adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are 
available, and

- 	 the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

2.05	 Investment properties								      

	 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the company, 
is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs 
and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property 
is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

	 Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (refer note 2.03). The 
useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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2.06	 Impairment of assets	 							     

.	 Assets (Property, plant and equipment, Investment property & Intangible assets) are tested for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows 
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed 
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

2.07	 Inventories 		  						    

	 Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and stock-in-trade is ascertained using 
the moving weighted average method and includes purchase cost, taxes and duties and all expenses incurred in bringing the 
inventory to its present location and condition, but excludes duties and taxes that are subsequently recoverable from revenue 
authorities. Cost of work-in-progress includes material cost and share of production overheads. The valuation of finished 
goods includes material cost and share of production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.	

2.08	 Revenue recognition								      

	 Sale of products								      

	 Revenue from sale of products comprises sale of goods after deduction of discounts, taxes and estimated returns. Revenue 
is recognised when control of the product is transferred to the customer and there are no unfulfilled performance obligations. 
Depending on the incoterm, control is transferred at the point of shipment or at the point of delivery. Payment for the sale is 
received as per agreed credit terms, which is short term in nature. Discounts are given in various forms, including, but not 
limited to rebates, price reductions and incentives. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the provision for discounts, 
using the most likely method. An estimate of the goods that will be returned is made, and a corresponding liability has been 
recognised for this amount. 								      

	 Interest Income								      

	 Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying 
value of a financial asset.	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

2.09	 Government grants								      

	 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and 
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate 
and presented within other income. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are recorded 
at a nominal amount and are presented by deducting the grant from the carrying amount of the assets. 

2.10	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term deposits with original maturities of 3 months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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2.11	 Trade receivables 								      

	 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade 
receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price unless they contain significant financing components, when 
they are recognised at the fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual 
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less loss 
allowance. 	

2.12	 Leases								      

	 As a lessee	 							     

	 “Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for 
use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration 
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative standalone prices. Assets and liabilities arising 
from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed 
payments (including in substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable. The lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in 
the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance 
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease tenure so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

	 Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

	 • 	 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

		  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less

		  any lease incentives received;

	 • 	 any initial direct costs; and

	 • 	 restoration costs.”	

	 Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line 
basis. Payments associated with short-term leases of property, plant and office equipment and all leases of low-value assets 
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 
months or less.								      

	 As a lessor								      

	 The Company has given on lease certain property, plant and equipment and investment property and such leases where the 
Company has substantially retained all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease income 
on such operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term which 
is representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the use of the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs 
are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. The respective 
leased assets are included in the Balance Sheet based on their nature.

2.13	 Income tax								      

	 “The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences 
and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the end of 
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the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

	 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised 
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

	 “Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances 
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable 
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Current 
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
respectively.

	 Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT’) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the 
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit 
can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as a deferred tax asset is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

2.14	 Investments and other financial assets								      

	 Classification								      

	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- 	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), 
and

- 	 those measured at amortised cost.

	 The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the cash flows.”	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For 
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in 
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

	 The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.	

	 Recognition 								      

	 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company commits 
to purchase or sale the financial asset.	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
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	 Measurement

	 At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.	

							     

	 “Debt instruments

	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the 
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt 
instruments:

a)	 Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is 
recognised directly in the profit or loss and presented in other income/(expenses). Impairment losses are presented as 
separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. 

b) 	 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment 
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When 
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity 
to profit or loss and recognised in other income/(expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is included 
in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other 
income/(expenses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit or loss. 

c) 	 Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit 
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other income/(expenses) in the period in which it arises. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

	 “Equity instruments

	 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised in other income/(expenses) in the statement of profit and loss. Dividends from such 
investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.”

	 Impairment of financial assets								      

	 “The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised 
cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk. Note 32 details how the Company determines whether there has been significant increase in credit risk.

	 For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

	 Derecognition of financial assets	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 A financial asset is derecognised only when
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- 	 the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- 	 retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay 
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

	 Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 
Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the 
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement 
in the financial asset.

2.15	 Derivatives and hedging activities

	 Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments. However, where derivatives 
do not meet the hedge accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted 
for at FVPL. They are presented as current assets or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent 
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the 
item being hedged.								      

	 The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are 
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other income/(expenses).

2.16	 Trade and other payables

	 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which 
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the period agreed with the vendors. Trade and other 
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are 
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.17	 Offsetting financial instruments 								      

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal 
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

2.18	 Provisions and contingent liabilities

	 “Provisions: Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably 
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

	 “Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by 
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to 
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

	 Provisions are measured at the present value of Management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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	 Contingent liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

2.19	 Employee benefits								      

	 “Short-term obligations: Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations: The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the 
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the 
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result 
of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

	 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to 
occur.

	 Bonus plans:								      

	 The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually 
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.	

	 Post-employment obligations:								      

	 i) Defined contribution plans	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 Provident Fund								      

	 The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The 
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as 
defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefits expense when they are due. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.	

	 Superannuation								      

	 Contribution towards superannuation fund administrated by the trustees and managed by Life Insurance Corporation (“LIC”) 
is made in accordance with the terms of employment contracts for eligible employees, where the Company has no further 
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Plans as the Company does not carry any further obligations, 
apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

	  ii) Defined benefit plans 								      

	 Gratuity								      

	 “The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company’s gratuity plan is funded and is 
administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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	 The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms 
of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit 
and loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings 
in the statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

 2.20 	Borrowings

	 “Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.  
Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another 
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or 
loss as other income/(expenses).

 2.21 	Borrowing costs

	 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
are incurred.	

2.22	 Earnings per share

	 “Basic earnings per share:
	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

.- 	 the profit attributable to owners of the Company

.- 	 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, equity shares issued during the 
year

.	 .Diluted earnings per share:

.	 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
.- 	 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
.- 	 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion 

of all dilutive potential equity shares.”

2.23	 Rounding of amounts								     

.	 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement 
of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. The numbers presented throughout the financial statements may not add up precisely 
to the totals and absolute figures.	.
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195



61

3(a)  Property, plant and equipment									      

Particulars
Gross carrying amount Depreciation

Net 
carrying 
amount 

As at  
April 1, 

2022
Additions Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2023

As at  
April 1, 

2022
For the year Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2023

As at  
March 31, 

2023
Land  9,031.67  -    -    9,031.67  -    -    -    -    9,031.67 
Buildings (Note i)  29,520.69  7.83  -    29,528.52  5,799.94  1,211.92  -    7,011.86  22,516.66 
Plant and Machinery
- Owned  25,637.12  154.26  38.21  25,753.17  13,303.58  2,304.66  36.30  15,571.94  10,181.23 
- Leased*  178.89  -    -    178.89  101.80  -    101.80  77.09 
Office Equipment
- Owned  87.26  -    -    87.26  26.59  -    -    26.59  60.67 
- Leased*  25.96  -    -    25.96  7.13  -    -    7.13  18.83 
Furniture and Fixtures
- Owned  307.86  109.37  417.23  231.26  43.94  -    275.20  142.03 
- Leased*  107.88  -    -    107.88  82.01  -    -    82.01  25.87 
Leasehold improvements  7.33  -    -    7.33  0.40  -    -    0.40  6.93 
Vehicles  61.95  61.95  29.18  8.18  37.36  24.59 
Total  64,966.61  271.46  38.21  65,199.86  19,581.89  3,568.70  36.30  23,114.29  42,085.57 

*Represents assets given on lease where the Company is a lessor

Note (i) Title deeds							     
(a)	  Immovable properties acquired (now merged) from the erstwile Parry Confectionery Limited (PCL) are not in the name of the 

Company.  

Particulars  Property location  Area (sq.ft)  Gross carrying 
amount 

 Net carry-
ing amount  Title deeds in the name of 

Building  Ahmedabad  945.20  10.50  1.55 Title deeds are in the name of erstwhile company 
Parrys Confectionery Limited.

Note (ii) 	Contractual obligations 
	 Refer to note 36 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Note  (iii)  Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible asset 
	 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both 

during the current or previous year.

4.	 Other Intangible assets 

Particulars
 Gross carrying amount  Amortisation  

 Net 
carrying 
amount  

As at  
April 1, 

2022
Additions Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2023

As at  
April 1,  

2022
For the  

year Deletions
As at  

March 31, 
2023

As at  
March 31, 

2023
Computer software  36.11  10.79  -    46.90  29.49  3.35  -    32.84  14.06 
Total  36.11  10.79  -    46.90  29.49  3.35  -    32.84  14.06 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

196



62

3(a)  Property, plant and equipment	

Particulars
Gross carrying amount Depreciation

Net 
carrying 
amount 

As at  
April 1, 

2021
Additions Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
April 1, 

2021
For the year Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2022
Land (Note i)  9,031.67  -    -    9,031.67  -    -    -    -    9,031.67 
Buildings  29,520.69  -    -    29,520.69  4,639.52  1,160.42  -    5,799.94  23,720.75 
Plant and Machinery
- Owned  24,044.49  1,639.57  46.94  25,637.12  10,622.42  2,689.03  7.87  13,303.58  12,333.54 
- Leased*  178.89  -    -    178.89  101.80  -    101.80  77.09 
Office Equipment
- Owned  87.26  -    -    87.26  26.59  -    -    26.59  60.67 
- Leased*  25.96  -    -    25.96  7.13  -    -    7.13  18.83 
Furniture and Fixtures
- Owned  297.92  10.16  0.22  307.86  202.30  28.96  -    231.26  76.60 
- Leased*  107.88  -    -    107.88  82.01  -    -    82.01  25.87 
Leasehold improvements  7.33  -    -    7.33  0.40  -    -    0.40  6.93 
Vehicles  46.38  30.14  14.57  61.95  33.75  7.07  11.64  29.18  32.77 
Total  63,348.47  1,679.87  61.73  64,966.61  15,715.91  3,885.48  19.51  19,581.89  45,384.72 

*Represents assets given on lease where the Company is a lessor

Note (i) Title deeds not in the name of the Company						    
(a)  Immovable properties acquired (now merged) from the erstwile Parry Confectionery Limited (PCL) and are not in the name of 

the Company

Particulars  Property location  Area (sq.ft)  Gross  
carrying amount 

 Net carrying 
amount  Title deeds in the name of 

Building  Ahmedabad  945 10.50  1.73 Title deeds are in the name of erstwhile company Parrys 
Confectionery Limited.

Note (ii) Contractual obligations 
	 Refer to note 36 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Note (iii)  Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible asset
	 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or 

both during the current or previous year.
4.	 Other Intangible assets 

Particulars
 Gross carrying amount  Amortisation  

 Net 
carrying 
amount  

As at  
April 1, 

2021
Additions Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
April 1, 

2021
For the year Deletions

As at  
March 31, 

2022

As at  
March 31, 

2022
Computer software  34.86  1.25  -    36.11  26.38  3.11  -    29.49  6.62 
Total  34.86  1.25  -    36.11  26.38  3.11  -    29.49  6.62 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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3(b)	 Right of Use Assets
 As at  

March 31, 2023 
 As at  

March 31, 2022 
Present Value of Lease Payments (Ind AS 116)
Opening Lease Assets (Buildings)  955.82  955.82 
Less: Accumalated Depreciation of Right of Use Assets  (686.56)  (558.77)
Net Carrying amount  269.26  397.05 

1. 	 Addition to the right-of-use assets during the year: Nil (March 31, 2022 : INR 331.54)

2. 	 The total cash outflow for leases for the year: INR 164.28 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 145.52)

3.	 Extension and termination options:

	 Extension and termination options are included in the above leases across the Company. These are used to maximise operational 
flexbility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options 
held are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor.

4. 	 The Company has not incurred any expenses relating to low-value assets during the current year. There are no expenses 
relating to variable lease payments.

5. 	 The lease period ranges from 2 to 7 years over which the right to use asset is depreciated on a straight line basis..

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Depreciation of Right of use Assets  127.79  117.13 
Interest expense (inlcuded in finance cost)  41.50  20.82 
Expenses relating to short term leases  235.03  315.71 

As a lessor
The Company has given certain assets – building and plant and machinery on operating leases. These lease arrangements range 
for a period between 5 and 7 years and include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for 
further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses.	

3(c) Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
Particulars As at  March 31, 2023 As at  March 31, 2022 
Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)  2,079.11  62.04 

a) Capital work in progress movement Amount
Balance at March 31, 2021  1,390.95 
Additions/Adjustments during the year  352.21 
Capitalised during the year  1,681.12 
Balance at March 31, 2022  62.04 
Additions/Adjustments during the year  2,288.53 
Capitalised during the year  271.46
Balance at March 31, 2023  2,079.11 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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b) Ageing Schedule of Capital Work in Progress.
As at March 31, 2023  Less than 1 year  1-2 years  More than 2 years  Total 
Projects in progress  2,079.11  -    -    2,079.11 
As at March 31, 2022  Less than 1 year  1-2 years  More than 2 years  Total 
Projects in progress  62.04  -    -    62.04 

Of the above there are no projects where the cost has exceeded the estimated cost as per original plan.

3(d) Investment Properties As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022 

Cost
Land  7,770.53  7,770.53 
Building  1,465.11  1,466.85 
Less: Deletions during the year  -    (1.74)
Gross carrying amount (a)  9,235.64  9,235.64 
Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation  326.51  262.04 
Less: Deletion during the year  1.04 
Add: Depreciation  65.51  65.51 
Closing accumulated depreciation (b)  392.02  326.51 
Net carrying amount (a)-(b)  8,843.62  8,909.13 
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties
Rental income (Refer Note 22)  297.05  202.37 
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income  42.65  30.57 
Direct operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income  12.11  6.13 
Fair value of investment properties 16,145.79  15,482.09 

Estimation of fair value
For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company obtained independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence 
of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company 
considers information from a variety of sources including:
1. 	 Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, 

adjusted to reflect those differences,
2. 	 Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
3. 	 Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from 

an analysis of market evidence.
The fair values of investment properties have been determined by Value Assessors & Surveyors (P) Limited, who is a registered 
valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017. The main inputs used are the rental 
growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transactions and industry data. All 
resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3.	
Leasing arrangements
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with rentals receivable monthly. Lease income from operating 
leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight–line basis over the lease term.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment properties are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Within 1 year  244.53  282.00 
Between 1 and 2 years  155.66  208.62 
Between 2 and 3 years  144.02  148.42 
Between 3 and 4 years  78.42  136.20 
Between 4 and 5 years  -    25.65 
More than 5 years  -    -   

5 (a) Non-current investments 
Investments in equity instruments - unquoted carried at FVTPL
50,000 (March 31, 2022 : 50,000) equity shares of Aadhav Green Power Private 
Ltd., of INR 10 each, fully paid up

 5.00  5.00 

Total non-current investments  5.00  5.00 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof  -    -   
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  5.00  5.00 
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments  -    -   

5(b) Other financial assets
Non-current
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months (includes earmarked balance 
of INR 17.55 lakhs; 31.03.2022 - Rs. 12.05 lakhs)

 617.55  12.05 

Security deposits  131.41  150.75 

Other receivables  553.15  593.12 

Total other financial assets - non-current  1,302.11  755.92 

Current
Interest accrued on deposits with banks  99.04  76.89 
Advances to employees  29.79  33.64 
Security deposits  173.38  231.33 
Total other financial assets - current  302.21  341.86 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022

6 Deferred tax assets (Net)
(i) Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  45.42  45.42 
Expenses allowed on payment basis  404.83  351.25 
Lease liability  97.56  138.55 
Carry forward losses / Unabsorbed Depreciation  4,443.35  5,452.88 
(ii) Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets  (89.89)  (132.55)
Difference between book and tax written down value of depreciable fixed assets  (4,484.30)  (4,746.07)
Deferred tax assets (Net)  416.97  1,109.48 
‘The company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses. The company  has concluded that the 
deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business plans 
and budgets for the company.	

7 Income tax assets (Net)
-  Advance income tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision for income tax) 

INR 1,608.92 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 1,488.89 lakhs)
29.85  109.35 

Total Income tax assets (Net)  29.85  109.35 

8 Other non-current assets
Capital advances  4,330.14  202.75 
Advances other than capital advances:

- Sales tax paid under protest  11.00  24.50 
- Prepaid expenses  22.08  22.08 

Total other non-current assets  4,363.22  249.33 

9 Inventories
Raw materials (includes packing material)  2,498.82  2,904.58 
Work-in-progress  123.99  98.18 
Finished goods  4,536.74  3,149.76 
Stock-in-trade  221.45  104.22 
Stores, spares and consumables  332.52  233.89 
Total inventories  7,713.52  6,490.63 
Provision of Inventory 82.63  90.48 
Cost of inventories (including cost of stock-in-trade purchased and write down of 
inventories) recognised as an expense 

34,971.79 24,051.40

Goods-in-transit
Raw materials  0.04  0.04 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022 

10 Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
-Related parties  214.04  313.76 
-Others  1,389.13  1,314.11 

 1,603.17  1,627.87 
Trade receivables – credit impaired
-Others  136.07  136.07 

 136.07  136.07 
Less: Loss allowance for credit impaired 

- Others  (136.07)  (136.07)
 (136.07)  (136.07)

Total trade receivables  1,603.17  1,627.87 

The trade receivables of the Company do not contain a significant financing component and accordingly, the Company has adopted 
the simplified approach under Ind AS 109 for recognition of impairment of losses on trade receivables. 

Ageing of Trade Receivables  

Year ended March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
6 months

6 months - 
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

(i)	 Undisputed Trade receivables
– considered good 1428.99  138.06 34.11    -    -  - 1,601.15 
– credit impaired  136.07  136.07 

(ii)	 Disputed Trade receivables
– considered good  -    -    -    -    2.02  -    2.02 

Total 1428.99  138.06 34.11   -  2.02  136.07 1,739.24 

Year ended March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
6 months

6 months - 
1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years Total

(i)	 Undisputed Trade receivables
– considered good  1,485.30  105.53  9.97  18.97  0.58  5.50 1,625.85 
– credit impaired  136.07  136.07 

(ii)	 Disputed Trade receivables
– considered good  -    -    -    -    2.02  -    -   

Total 1,485.30  105.53  9.97  18.97  2.60  141.57 1,763.94 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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As at  
March 31, 2023 

As at  
March 31, 2022 

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- In current accounts  349.35  207.36 

- In cash credit account  233.05  177.61 

- In EEFC accounts  131.46  107.00 

Cash on hand  0.52  0.73 

Cheques on hand  -    5.39 

Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  14,800.00  2.31 

Total cash and cash equivalents  15,514.38  500.40 

‘There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.

12 Other bank balances 

Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months [includes 
earmarked balance of Rs. 0.30 lakhs; March 31, 2022: 8.99 lakhs)]

 3,200.30  3,708.99 

Total other bank balances  3,200.30  3,708.99 

13 Other current assets
Advances to suppliers  394.46  467.41 
Balances with government authorities  148.67  242.91 
Prepaid expenses  317.22  278.22 
Total other current assets  860.35  988.54 

14(a)	 Equity share capital						    
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount

Authorised
Equity shares of INR 10 each  37,00,00,000  37,000.00  37,00,00,000  37,000.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of INR 10 each  1,41,02,363  1,410.24  1,08,63,768  1,086.38 
(i) Reconciliation of equity share capital
Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,08,63,768  1,086.38  1,08,63,768  1,086.38 
Add: Shares issued during the year  32,38,595  323.86  -    -   
Balance as at the end of the year  1,41,02,363  1,410.24  1,08,63,768  1,086.38 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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 (ii) Movements in issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital

 Number of shares  Equity share capital  
(par value)  

As at March 31, 2021  1,08,63,768  1,086.38 
Increase during the year  -    -   
As at March 31, 2022  1,08,63,768  1,086.38 
Increase during the period  32,38,595  323.86 
As at March 31, 2023  1,41,02,363  1,410.24 

(iii) Shares held by promoters - Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of Shares held by promoters  1,39,47,035  1,07,08,440 
% of total shares held 98.90% 98.57%
% Change during the year 0.33%  -   

(iv) Terms and rights attached to equity shares						    

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share.  Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held.  The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders 
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their 
shareholding.
(v) Shares of the Company held by holding company 						    

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea  1,39,47,035  1,07,08,440 

			 
(vi) Details of shareholders holding more than 5%  shares in the Company

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of 

shares % of holding Number of 
shares % of holding 

Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea  1,39,47,035 98.90%  1,07,08,440 98.57%

14(b) Reserves and surplus

  As at  
March 31, 2023  

  As at  
March 31, 2022  

Securities premium  24,642.73  7,445.79 
General reserve  42,357.39  42,357.39 
Retained earnings  (4,846.18)  (4,739.84)
Capital reserve  464.47  464.47 
Total reserves and surplus  62,618.41  45,527.81 
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  As at  
March 31, 2023  

  As at  
March 31, 2022  

Reserves and surplus

i) Securities premium 

Balance as at the beginning of the year  7,445.79  7,445.79 

Premium on shares issued during the year  17,196.94  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  24,642.73  7,445.79 

ii) General reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year (refer note below)  42,357.39  42,357.39 

Balance as at the end of the year  42,357.39  42,357.39 

(iii) Retained earnings  
(Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss)

Balance as at the beginning of the year  (4,739.84)  (5,921.69)

Net profit for the year  (125.54)  1,150.16 

Items of other comprehensive income directly recognised in  
retained earnings

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax)  19.20  31.69 

Balance as at the end of the year  (4,846.18)  (4,739.84)

iv) Capital reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year  464.47  464.47 

Balance as at the end of the year  464.47  464.47 

Nature and purpose of reserves:			 

Securities premium			 

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. During the year company issued additional equity shares of 32,38,595 shares of Rs. 10 each on 
preferential basis to Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea, at a premium of Rs. 531 per share pursuant to the 
provisions of section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently there is an increase of INR 17,196.94 in Securities 
Premium.		

Retained earnings/General reserves			 
Company’s cumulative earnings since its formation minus dividends.  These are available for distribution. Balance in general 
reserve includes INR 39,817.73 arising from merger of Lotte Foods India Private Limited with the Company in the year 
2010.		

Capital reserve			 
A gain arising on account of merger has been credited to capital reserve.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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  As at  
March 31, 2023 

  As at  
March 31, 2022  

15 Borrowings
Non-current
Unsecured loan  9,064.22  11,420.61 
Less: Current maturities  (3,370.89)  (3,111.92)
Less: Accrued interest on borrowings (refer note 19)  (82.02)  (16.58)
Total non-current borrowings  5,611.31  8,292.11 
Terms of repayment:
i) 	 USD 205 lakhs availed from Woori Bank in February 2020 is repayable in 20 unequal quarterly instalments starting from 

May 2020. Balance outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is USD 109.25 lakhs and the equivalent INR is 8,982.20 lakhs 
(March 31, 2022 is USD 150.30 lakhs and the equivalent INR is 11,420.61 lakhs).		

ii) 	 The aforesaid loans are guaranteed by the holding company, Lotte Confectionary Company Limited, South Korea.
iii) 	 Rate of interest is linked to Libor / SOFR + agreed spread p.a. Presently, the interest rate is 5.67%.

Current 
Unsecured
Current maturities of long-term debt  3,370.89  3,111.92 
Total current borrowings  3,370.89  3,111.92 
Terms of repayment:
i) 	 Rate of interest is linked to Libor / SOFR + agreed spread p.a. The interest rate ranges from 1.00% to 5.67%
Net debt reconciliation
Borrowings - Non-current 
Opening balance  11,420.61  15,869.74 
Cash flows relating to principal amounts  (3,287.18)  (5,168.24)
Adjustments for foreign currency translation  865.77  724.37 
Interest paid  (350.50)  (222.53)
Interest expense  415.51  217.27 
Balance as at the end of the year  9,064.22  11,420.61 
Borrowings - Current 
Opening balance  -    27.40 
Cash flows relating to principal amounts  -    (33.46)
Adjustments for foreign currency translation  -    6.06 
Interest paid  -    (0.60)
Interest expense  -    0.60 
Balance as at the end of the year  -    -   
Lease Liabilities 
Opening balance  415.01  208.18 
Additions  -    331.53 
Cash flows relating to lease payments  (164.28)  (145.52)
Interest expense  41.50  20.82 
Balance as at the end of the year  292.23  415.01 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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  As at  
March 31, 2023 

  As at  
March 31, 2022  

16 Lease Liabilities 
Current  120.13  122.78 
Non Current  172.10  292.23 

 292.23  415.01 
17 Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits: 

Provision for gratuity (refer note 30)  248.13  200.60 
Total provisions - Non-current  248.13  200.60 

Current
Provision for employee benefits: 

Provision for compensated absences (refer note 30)  264.14  233.21 
Total provisions - Current 264.14  233.21 

18 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors of micro and small enterprises  
(refer note below)

 44.95  26.67 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  8,450.51  7,211.10 
Total outstanding dues payable to related parties (Refer Note 34)  1,301.59  1,004.55 

Total trade payables  9,797.05  8,242.32 
The amount of principal and interest outstanding under Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is given below:

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

i)	 The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to 
suppliers registered under the MSMED
-  Principal  44.79  26.66 
-  Interest on principal amount unpaid as at the year end -  0.01 

ii)	 The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED along 
with the amount of payment made to suppliers beyond the appointed date 
during the year
- Principal  -    -   
- Interest  -    -   

iii)	 The amount of interest due and payable for principal paid during the year 
beyond the appointed date but without adding the interest specified under 
the MSMED
- Principal  31.34  0.96 
- Interest  0.15  0.01 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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  As at  
March 31, 2023 

  As at  
March 31, 2022  

iv)	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year  0.16  0.01 
v)	  Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers 

registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the 
year

 -    -   

vi)	 Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act

 0.01    -   

Ageing of Trade Payables

Year ended March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled / 
Accrued Not due less than 

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years Total

(i)	 Undisputed
- MSME  -   44.95  -    -    -    -    44.95 
- Others 2258.00 10.21 6,585.41  609.44 151.15  137.89 9,752.10 

(ii)	 Disputed
- MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
- Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total 2258.00 55.16 6,585.41  609.44 151.15  137.89 9.797.05 

Year ended March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled / 
Accrued Not due less than 

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years Total

(i)	 Undisputed
- MSME  -    26.67  -    -    -    -    26.67 
- Others  1,915.39  333.76 5,280.52 456.28  73.71  155.99 8,215.65 

(ii)	 Disputed
- MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
- Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  1,915.39 360.43 5,280.52 456.28  73.71  155.99 8,242.32

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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  As at  
March 31, 2023 

  As at  
March 31, 2022  

19 Other Financial liabilities 

Current 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings/security deposits  82.02  16.58 

Derivative/Forward contract payables carried at FVTPL  -    -   

Security deposits  211.29  201.78 

Amount payable to customers  2,663.51  2,033.02 

Employee benefits payable  803.93  672.04 

Capital creditors  0.83  2.00 

Book overdraft  -    0.50 

Total other financial liabilities - Current  3,761.58  2,925.92 

20 Other current liabilities

Advances from customers  740.49  253.24 

Statutory dues payable  488.23  358.41 

Total other current liabilities  1,228.72  611.65 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

 21 Revenue from operations 

Sale of products

Sale of confectionery products  59,845.35  45,367.05 

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales  70.07  78.88 

Total revenue from operations  59,915.42  45,445.93 

 21.1 Reconciliation of revenue with contract price
Contract price  65,724.06  49,653.63 
Adjustments :
Discounts given  5,500.37  3,982.77 
Damaged goods (Returns)  308.27  224.93 

Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss  59,915.42  45,445.93 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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21.2     Contract liabilites			 

Payments received in advance from customers (i.e, before transferring control of goods) is recognised as a contract liability. 
As and when the performance obligation is met, the same is recognized as revenue. Contract liabilites are represented by 
“Advance from customers” (refer note 20). The entire amount of contract liability in the beginning (i.e, the closing balance 
of previous period) was recognised as revenue in the current period. As the entity has applied the practical expedient under 
Para 121 of Ind AS 115 (i.e, the remaining performance obligations are part of contracts that have expected duration of less 
than a year), reconciliation of contract liablities which represent unsatisfied performance obligations is not given.   

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

22 Other income
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

- Interest income on deposits with banks  755.25  83.79 
- on others  13.13  -   

Unwinding of discount on security deposits  -    5.38 
Insurance claims  37.77  -   
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation exchange differences  -    -   
Lease rentals  297.05  202.37 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment and investment property (net)  1.81  84.21 
Miscellaneous income  59.03  55.81 
Total other income  1,164.04  431.56 

23 Cost of materials consumed
Opening inventory  2,904.58  1,747.29 
Add: Purchases  34,960.09  25,572.66 
Less: Raw material at the end of the year  2,498.82  2,904.58 
Total cost of materials consumed  35,365.85  24,415.37 

24 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods
Stock at the end of the year
Finished goods  4,536.74  3,149.76 
Work-in-progress  123.99  98.18 
Stock-in-trade (traded goods)  221.45  104.22 
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished goods  3,149.76  2,123.04 
Work-in-progress  98.18  64.92 
Stock-in-trade (traded goods)  104.22  125.75 
Total change in inventories  (1,530.02)  (1,038.45)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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Year ended 
March 31, 2023

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

25 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus  4,131.37  3,631.78 
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 31(ii))  227.11  217.81 
Gratuity (Refer note 31(iii))  68.03  70.07 
Staff welfare expenses  312.49  257.82 
Total employee benefits expense  4,738.91  4,177.48 

26 Finance costs
Interest expense

- on borrowings*  413.10  151.69 
- on MSME  0.15  0.01 
- on others  2.41  2.92 
- on Lease Liabilities  41.50  20.82 

Guarantee commission  52.00  63.26 
Total finance costs  509.16  238.70 
* includes interest expense/(income) incurred towards swap arrangements.  -    3.27 

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3a)  3,568.70  3,885.48 
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets (Refer note 3b)  127.79  117.13 
Depreciation of investment property (Refer note 3d)  65.51  65.51 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4)  3.35  3.11 
Total depreciation and amortisation expense  3,765.35  4,071.23 

28 Other expenses
Raw material conversion charges  875.59  647.73 
Consumption of stores and spare parts  206.39  181.00 
Repairs and maintenance     
- Buildings  15.04  23.11 
- Plant and machinery  1,355.59  921.08 
- Others  207.16  208.12 

Communication expenses  35.86  35.61 
Power and fuel  2,252.73  1,694.94 
Rent  235.03  315.71 
Rates and taxes  156.66  126.04 
Legal and professional fees  108.08  126.28 
Packing, dispatching and freight  5,139.81  3,983.14 
Clearing forwarding and other charges  184.24  214.44 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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Year ended 
March 31, 2023

 Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Travelling and conveyance  674.71  528.16 
Insurance  239.29  201.86 
Sales promotion  2,296.79  2,114.81 
Royalty  724.83  533.42 
Advertisement expenses  396.53  681.09 
Security charges  126.28  122.42 
Bank charges  7.99  10.86 
Payment to auditors  33.56  23.46 
Director fees  10.50  6.00 
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation exchange differences  886.04  198.30 
Net loss on derivative contracts*  -    174.25 
Miscellaneous expenses  444.94  357.17 
Total other expenses  16,613.64  13,429.00 

29(a) Details of payments to auditors  
Payment to auditors 
As auditor
Audit fee  18.00  10.00 
Tax audit and other services  14.00  13.00 
Reimbursement of expenses  1.56  0.46 
Total payments to auditors  33.56  23.46 

29 Income tax expense
(a) Income tax expense
 Current tax 
 Current tax on profits for the period/year  120.03  50.00 
Total current tax expense  120.03  50.00 
 Deferred tax 
 Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets  996.94  (695.79)
 (Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities  (304.43)  (413.69)
Total deferred tax expense  692.51  (1,109.48)
Total income tax expense  812.54  (1,059.48)
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by 

India’s tax rate:
 Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year    687.00  90.68 
 Tax at the rate of 33.384% (March 31, 2022: 33.384%)  229.35  30.27 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) 
 in calculating taxable income:
 Utilisation of unrecognised tax credit   (229.35)  (30.27)
 Tax paid under MAT for which deferred taxes is not created  120.03  50.00 
 Deferred taxes created on tax losses and temporary timing differences  
(refer note 6)  

 692.51  (1,109.48)

 Income tax expense  812.54  (1,059.48)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
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30	 Employee benefit obligations			 
 (i)    Other long-term employee benefit obligations - Compensated absences			 

	 The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for earned leave. The entire amount is presented as current, since 
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.  However, based 
on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require 
payment for such leave within the next 12 months.			 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Leave obligations not expected to be settled within the next 12 months  264.14  233.21 

(ii)   Post employment obligations - Defined contribution plans 			 
	 Provident fund			 
	 The Company has defined contribution plan - provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for 

employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident 
fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has 
no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards provident 
fund contribution plan is INR 193.74 (March 31, 2022: INR 184.22).

	 Superannuation fund			 
	 Contribution towards superannuation fund administrated by the trustees and managed by Life Insurance Corporation 

(“LIC”) is made in accordance with the terms of employment contracts for eligible employees, where the Company 
has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Plans as the Company does not carry 
any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. The expense recognised during the 
period towards superannuation fund is INR 33.37 (March 31, 2022: INR 33.59).		

(iii)  Post employment obligations - Gratuity 			 
	 The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees 

who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days 
salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes 
contributions to Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).		

          Post employment benefits - Defined benefit plan - Gratuity 			
 Present value  
of obligation 

Fair value of plan 
assets

Net amount

Opening balance as at April 1, 2021  414.67  (252.04)  162.63 
Current service cost  59.35  -    59.35 
Interest expense/(income)  24.91  (14.19)  10.72 
Total amount recognised in profit or loss  84.26  (14.19)  70.07 
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 
expense/(income)

 -    (4.36)  (4.36)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions  -    -    -   
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions  (13.58)  -    (13.58)
Experience (gains)/losses  (13.75)  (13.75)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  (27.33)  (4.36)  (31.69)
Employer contributions  (0.41)  (0.41)
Benefit payments  (74.47)  74.47  -   
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 Present value  
of obligation 

Fair value of plan 
assets

Net amount

Balances as at March 31, 2022  397.13  (196.53)  200.60 
Opening balance as at April 1, 2022  397.13  (196.53)  200.60 
Current service cost  54.03  -    54.03 
Interest expense/(income)  25.82  (11.82)  14.00 
Total amount recognised in profit or loss  79.85  (11.82)  68.03 
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 
expense/(income)

 -    (27.75)  (27.75)

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions  -    -    -   
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions  (7.38)  -    (7.38)
Experience (gains)/losses  15.93  15.93 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  8.55  (27.75)  (19.20)
Employer contributions  (1.30)  (1.30)
Benefit payments  (56.55)  56.55  -   
Balances as at March 31, 2023  428.98  (180.85)  248.13 

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plan is as follows:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Present value of funded obligations  428.98  397.13 
Fair value of plan assets  (180.85)  (196.53)
Deficit of funded plan  248.13  200.60 

(iv) 	 Post-employment benefits
	 Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions	 	 	 	
	 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:	 	 	 	

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate 7.20% 7.00%

Salary growth rate 7.00% 7.00%

Attrition rate 1.5% to 3% 1.5% to 3%

	 Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and 
experience. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take in to account, inflation, 
seniority, promotions and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market.	

(v) 	 Sensitivity analysis 

	 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

214



80

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption 

March 31, 2023
Increase in assumption

March 31, 2023
Decrease in assumption

March 31, 2023
Discount rate 1.00% (33.73) 39.29
Salary growth rate 1.00% 38.99 (34.10)

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in assumption 

March 31, 2022
Increase in assumption

March 31, 2022
Decrease in assumption

March 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.00% (30.53) 35.62
Salary growth rate 1.00% 35.28 (30.81)

	 The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the 
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been 
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

(vi) 	 Plan assets
	 The Company has plan assets by way of investment of funds in Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for funding 

the Company’s gratuity liability. The fair value of the plan assets is as follows:				 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Schemes of insurance - conventional products managed by LIC - Unquoted  (180.85)  (196.53)
Total  (180.85)  (196.53)

(vii)	 Risk exposure
	 Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed 

below:
	 Asset volatility: The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets 

under perform this yield, this will create a deficit.
	 Changes in bond yield: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an 

increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.
(viii)	 Defined benefit liability
	 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 10 years (31 March 2022 – 9 years).
	 The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

 Between 
1 - 2 years 

 Between 
2 - 5 years 

 Over 5 
years Total

March 31, 2023 62.94 146.07 331.96 540.97
March 31, 2022 72.17 132.56 272.33 477.06

	 The expected contribution to post employment benefit plan for the year ending March 31, 2023 is NIL  
(March 31, 2022: NIL)	  
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31        Fair value measurements					   

Financial instruments measured at Amortised cost
Note Hierarchy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial assets 
Security deposits 5(b) 3  304.79  382.08 
Advances to employees 5(b) 3  29.79  33.64 
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 5(b) 3  99.04  76.89 
Other receivables 5(b) 3  553.15  593.12 
Trade receivables 10 3  1,603.17  1,627.87 
Cash and cash equivalents 11  15,514.38  500.40 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5(b), 12  3,817.85  3,721.04 
Total financial assets  21,922.17  6,935.04 

Note Hierarchy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 15 3  9,064.22  11,420.61 
Security deposits 19 3  211.29  201.78 
Amount payable to customers 19 3  2,663.51  2,033.02 
Employee benefits payable 19 3  803.93  672.04 
Capital creditors 19 3  0.83  2.00 
Book overdraft 19 3  -    0.50 
Lease Liabilities 16 3  292.23  415.01 
Trade payables 18 3  9,797.05  8,242.32 
Total financial liabilities  22,833.06  22,987.28 
Financial instruments measured at FVPL

Note Hierarchy March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets 
Investment in equity shares  5(a) 3  5.00  5.00 
Total financial assets  5.00  5.00 

	 Fair value hierarchy						    
	 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 

that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost. To provide an indication about 
the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the 
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as follows:

	 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including 
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual 
funds are valued using the closing NAV.	

	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, 
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market 
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in 
level 3.

	 The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the 
reporting period. There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

	 The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other current financial 
liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

	 Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed	

	 There has been no significant change between the discounting rate used on the date of transaction and as at the end 
of the period for assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost. Hence, the carrying value is taken as fair value.  	

33	 Financial risk management					   

	 The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects 
on the financial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward 
contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging 
purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement
Credit risk 
(Refer Note A)

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, 
financial assets measured at amortised cost

Ageing analysis  
Credit ratings

Liquidity risk 
(Refer Note B)

Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts

Market risk - foreign exchange 
(Refer Note C)

Future commercial transactions, recognised financial 
assets and liabilities not denominated in Indian rupee 
(INR)

Cash flow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis

A.	 Credit risk	
	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligation. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to 
customers including outstanding receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.  

	 Credit risk management
a)	 Credit risk on deposits is mitigated by depositing the funds in reputed private sector banks.  

b) 	 Credit risk on unsecured deposits is managed based on Company’s established policy, procedures and controls. 
Outstanding deposits are regularly monitored and assessed for their recoverability.

	 The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. The Company periodically monitors the 
recoverability and credit risks of its other financials assets including security deposits and other receivables. 

	 Expected credit loss for financial assets other than trade receivables

	 There has been no significant increase in credit risk for financial assets other than trade receivables. Thus, no expected 
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credit losses have been recognised. 

	 Expected credit loss trade receivables - simplified approach

	 Customer credit risk is managed by the Company based on established policy, procedures and control relating to customer 
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on prior experience. Outstanding customer 
receivables are regularly monitored and assessed for its recoverability. Default is said to occur when the amount remains 
outstanding beyond the agreed credit period. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual 
basis for major clients. This is done by taking into account the financial position, past experience and other industry-wide 
factors. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment 
collectively. Of the trade receivable balance, INR 559.50 (March 31, 2022: 499.32) is due from a single customer.

	 Refer Note No. 10 for the ageing of trade receivables						    

	 Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Loss allowance on March 31, 2021  136.07 
Changes in loss allowance

- Provision made during the year  -   
- Written off  -   

Loss allowance on March 31, 2022  136.07 
Changes in loss allowance 

- Provision made during the year  -   
- Written off  -   

Loss allowance on March 31, 2023  136.07 

B.	 Liquidity risk					   

	 The Company manages its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any significant 
delay or stress. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity requirements on the basis of monthly and yearly 
projections. The Company’s principal source of liquidity are cash flows that are generated from operations and surplus 
cash is deposited in the banks which are liquidated based on working capital requirements. The amounts disclosed in 
the table are the maturity profile of contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial liabilities:	

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
As at March 31, 2023
Employee benefits payable  803.93  -    803.93 
Borrowings  3,797.72  5,885.13  9,682.85 
Security deposits  211.29  -    211.29 
Capital creditors  0.83  -    0.83 
Trade payables  9,797.05  -    9,797.05 
Amount payable to customers  2,663.51  -    2,663.51 
Lease liabilities  149.35  199.13  348.48
Total  17,423.68  6,084.26  23,507.94 
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Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
As at March 31, 2022
Employee benefits payable  672.04  -    672.04 
Borrowings  3,373.08  8,586.05  11,959.13 
Security deposits  201.78  -    201.78 
Capital creditors  2.00  -    2.00 
Book overdraft  0.50  -    0.50 
Trade payables  8,242.32  -    8,242.32 
Amount payable to customers  2,033.02  -    2,033.02 
Lease liabilities  164.29  348.48  512.76 
Total  14,689.03  8,934.53  23,623.55 

	 Financing arrangements

	 The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Expiring within one year  4,600.00  4,600.00 

	 The credit facility sanctioned by the banks are subject to renewal every year.				  
C. 	 Market risk - foreign currency risk						    
	 The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency 

transactions, primarily with respect to the USD, BDT,KES,ARW and AUD. Foreign exchange risk arises from future 
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s 
functional currency (INR).

	 With respect to balance loan, trade receivables and trade payables in foreign currency, the Company manages its risk 
through constant monitoring of foreign exchange rate fluctutations and natural hedge of payable and receivable.

Borrowings Trade payables Trade receivables Net exposure to foreign currency risk 
As at March 31, 2023
US Dollars  9,064.22  178.67  (214.04)  9,028.85 
KRW  -    67.35  -    67.35 
EUR  -    1.60  -    1.60 
KES  -    -    -   
AUD  -    -    -    -   
As at March 31, 2022
US Dollars  11,420.61  172.58  (420.77)  11,172.42 
KRW  -    13.89  -    13.89 
BDT  -    -    (5.72)  (5.72)
KES  -    (0.36)  (0.36)
AUD  -    -    (6.65)  (6.65)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)	
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated )

219



85

	 Sensitivity analysis	 				  
	 The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated 

financial instruments. 
Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
USD sensitivity
USD appreciates by 5% vs INR  (451.44)  (558.62)
USD depreciates by 5% vs INR  451.44  558.62 

KRW Sensitivity
KRW appreciates by 5% vs INR  (3.37)  (0.69)
KRW depreciates by 5% vs INR  3.37  0.69 

BDT Sensitivity
BDT appreciates by 5% vs INR  (0.08)  (0.29)
BDT depreciates by 5% vs INR  0.08  0.29 

KES Sensitivity
KES appreciates by 5% vs INR  -    0.02 
KES depreciates by 5% vs INR  -    (0.02)

AUD Sensitivity
AUD appreciates by 5% vs INR  -    0.33 
AUD depreciates by 5% vs INR  -    (0.33)

	 *Holding all other variables constant

D.	 Market Risk - Interest Rate

	 The Company’s interest rate risk arises from its long-term and short-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose 
the company to cash flow interest rate risk. 

	 (a) Interest rate risk exposure	
	 The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:	

As at  
March 31, 2023

As at  
March 31, 2022

Variable rate borrowings (incl. current maturities)	  8,982.20  11,404.03 

	 (b) Sensitivity

Impact on Profit after tax
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest rates - Increase by 100 base points *  (89.82)  (114.04)
Interest rates - Decrease by 100 base points *  89.82  114.04 

	 *Holding all other variables constant
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33	 Capital management

	 The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to					   

•	 safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

•	 maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

	 For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other 
reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Net debt includes all long and short-term borrowings 
(including current maturities of long-term borrowings and interest accrued) as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at   March 31, 2022
Net debt
Debt*  9,356.45  11,835.62 
Cash and cash equivalents  15,514.38  500.40 

 (6,157.93)  11,335.22 
Equity  64,028.65  46,614.19 
Net debt - equity ratio (percentage) -10% 24%

* The debt for the current year is including lease liabiltites.

34	 Related party transactions

a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship :
(i) Where control exists 

Ultimate Holding company Lotte Corporation Limited, South Korea
Holding Company Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea

(ii) Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Fellow subsidiaries Lotte Data Communication R&D India LLP

Lotte Engineering Construction India Private Limited
Havmor Icecream Private Limited
Lotte Fine Chemicals Co Limited, South Korea
Lotte Chemical India Private Limited

Key management personnel Mr. Milan Wahi, Managing Director 
Mr. Kyungwoon Cho, Chairman cum Executive Director 
Mr. D.G. Rajan, Non-Executive Independent Director 
Ms. Jeehye You, Non-Executive Independent Director (w.e.f. 29.03.2022)
Mr. Heo Jeongkwan, Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Officer (wef 30.08.2022)

Post-employment benefit plans Lotte India Corporation Limited Employees Gratuity Trust
Lotte India Corporation Limited Superannuation Trust

(iii) 	 Transactions with related parties
	 The following transactions occurred with related parties:
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Description  Year ended March 31, 2023  Year ended March 31, 2022 
 Holding  
company 

 Fellow  
Subsidiaries 

 Entities where 
significant 

influence exist 

 Holding  
company 

 Fellow  
Subsidiaries 

 Entities where 
significant 

influence exist 
Transactions during the period
Purchases of goods
Lotte Confectionary Company Limit-
ed, South Korea

 72.37  -    -    57.89  -    -   

Lotte Fine Chemicals Co Limited, 
South Korea

 -    97.66  -    -    70.36  -   

Sales
Lotte Confectionary Company Limit-
ed, South Korea

 2,165.59  -    -    2,078.74  -    -   

Lotte Chemical India Private Limited  -    -    -    -    1.67  -   
Havmor Icecream Pvt Ltd  -    -    33.08  -   
Receiving of Services
Rental income from Lotte Data Com-
munication R&D LLP

 -    0.57  -    -    1.52  -   

Royalty expenses
Lotte Confectionary Company Limit-
ed, South Korea

 724.83  -    -    533.42  -    -   

Software usage fee
Lotte Confectionary Company Limit-
ed, South Korea

 58.54  -    -    83.89  -    -   

Guarantee commission
Lotte Confectionary Company Limit-
ed, South Korea

 52.00  -    -    63.26  -    -   

Employee benefits
Lotte India Corporation Limited 
Employees Gratuity Trust

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Lotte India Corporation Limited 
Superannuation Trust

 33.37  -    -    33.59  -    -   

Clearing, Forwarding and Other Charges
Lotte Confectionary Company Limit-
ed, South Korea

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Remuneration to KMP  Year ended  
March 31, 2023

 Year ended  
March 31, 2022

- Mr. Milan Wahi  142.84  131.33 
- Mr. Kyungwoon Cho  149.25  128.75 
- Mr. Inchul Yeo  -    64.98 
- Mr. Jeongkwan Heo  42.47  -   
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Managerial remuneration above does not include gratuity and leave encashment benefit, since the same is computed actuar-
ially for all the employee and the amount attributable to the managerial person cannot be ascertained separately.

Sitting Fees paid to Independent Directors amounts to INR 10.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 6.00 lakhs).

During the year, the Company has paid remuneration to a management personnel in excess of the limits specified in the 
Scedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 by INR 2.50 Lakhs. The Company has proposed to obtain the shareholder’s approval 
to comply with the requirements of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act in the esuing Annual General Meeting.

Description
 As at March 31, 2023  As at March 31, 2022

 Holding  
company 

 Fellow  
subsidiaries 

 Holding  
company 

 Fellow  
subsidiaries 

Balances outstanding at the period/year end
Trade payables 
Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea  1,301.59  1,004.55 
Lotte Corporation Limited, South Korea  -    -   
Trade receivables

Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea  214.04  313.76 

Lotte Chemical India Private Limited  -    -    -    -   

Other receivables

Lotte Data Communication R&D India LLP  -    0.67 

Lotte Confectionery Company Limited, South Korea  -    -    -    -   

*(Refer note 30 for transactions with post-employment benefit plans)

35	 Segment reporting			 

	 (a) Description of segments			

	 The board of directors as chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company for the purpose of resource 
allocation and segment performance focuses on single business segment of manufacture and trading of confectionery 
and related products and hence, there is only one reportable business segment in terms of Ind AS 108: Operating 
Segment.	

	 (b) Segment revenue		

	 The Company is domiciled in India.	

Information about revenue from major geographies March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
India  55,872.54  40,552.38 
Others  4,042.88  4,893.55 

 59,915.42  45,445.93 

Information about revenue from major customers				  
During the year, there is no revenue from a single customer which is more than 10% of the Company’s total revenue. 
(c) All non-current assets of the Company are located in India.		  		
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37	 Commitments	

(a) Capital Commitments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed 7,487.59 63.58

(b) Export obligations			 

			   In respect of capital goods imported at concessional rate of duties and under Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme, 
as at the balance sheet date, the Company has NIL  export obligation (March 31, 2022 : INR 134.34). 

37			   Contingent liabilities

 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

Disputes relating to Service tax/ Excise duty/ VAT/ Income tax  765.14  766.27 
It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending 
resolution of the respective proceedings. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above 
contingent liabilities. There are employee and trade mark related litigations that are pending with various authorities. 
The financial impact of such matters will depend upon the outcome of the matter. The management does not expect 
any material liability in this regard. 
The Company evaluated the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment  in case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir 
And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No. 
C I/1(33)2019/ Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund 
Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of “basic wages” of the relevant 
employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Funds & 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.In the assessment of the Management the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a 
significant impact.

38	 CSR Expenditure			 
The obligation to spend amount towards CSR did not arise as the past three years average net profit is negative.

39	 Financial Ratios
Ratios FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 Variance % Reasons
(a) Current Ratio 1.57 0.89 76% Primarily attributable to increase in Cash and 

Cash Equivalent balances of Current Assets 
as compared to the previous year.

(b) 	Debt-Equity Ratio 0.14 0.24 -43% Primarily attributable repayment of borrowings.
(c) 	Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio
1.53 0.80 91% Primarily attributable to the increase in interest 

and principal repayments (including leases)
(d) 	Return on Equity Ratio 0.00 0.02 -115% Primarily attributable to decrease in Profit 

After Tax on a year on year basis.
(e) 	Inventory turnover ratio 5.63 4.44 -120% Primarily attributable to the higher inventory 

level as at March 31, 2023 to meet future 
demand

(f) 	 Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

15.64 7.51 108% Primarily attributable to decrease in Trade 
Receivables due to better collections.

(g) 	Trade payables 
turnover ratio

3.87 3.67 6% Primarily attributable to the increase in 
purchases incurred due to increase in 
operations during the current year.
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(h) 	Net capital turnover 
ratio

5.72 (27.75) -121% Primarily attributable to increase in current 
assets arising from increase in inventories 
increase in inventory in anticipation of future 
orders, and on account of increase in Cash & 
Cash Equivalents. Further there is a decrease 
in current liabilities attributable primarily due to 
the repayment of current borrowings.

(i) 	 Net profit ratio 0.00 0.03 -108% Primarily attributable to the decrease in profit, 
on account of Income Tax and Deferred Tax 
provisions.

(j) 	 Return on Capital 
employed

0.02 0.01 188% Primarily attributable to increase in profits

(k) 	Return on investment 0.04 0.02 80% Primarily attributable to the maturity of deposits 
at higher interest rates in the current year.

Ratios Numerator Denominator
(a) Current Ratio Current assets Current Liabilities
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Net profit after taxes + Non-cash 

operating expenses
Interest & Lease Payments + Principal 
Repayments

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes – Preference 
Dividend (if any)

Average Shareholder’s Equity

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold OR sales Average Inventory
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales Average Accounts Receivable
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchases Average Accounts Payable
(h) Net capital turnover ratio Total sales - sales return Working Capital
(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Total sales - sales return
(j) Return on Capital employed Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed
(k) Return on investment Interest (Finance Income) Bank Deposits

40	 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
	 i)	Transactions with struck off companies				  
	 The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

	 ii)  Details of benami property held				  
	 No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

	 iii) Borrowing secured against current assets				 
	 The Company has borrowing facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or 

statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

	 iv) Willful defaulter				 
	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 

government authority.

	 v) Compliance with number of layers of companies				  
	 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.	
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	 vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements				  
	 The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous 

financial year.

	 vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium				  
	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a.	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b.	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

	 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:
a.	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or	 	 	 	
b.	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

	 viii) Undisclosed Income				  
	 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

	 ix)  Details of crypto currency or virtual currency				  
	 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

41	 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit after tax (A)  (125.54)  1,150.16 
Number of equity shares of INR 10 each at the end of the period/year  1,41,02,363  1,08,63,768 
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each outstanding during 
the year (B)

 1,26,82,705  1,08,63,768 

Basic earnings per share - (in INR) (A/B)  (0.99)  10.59 
	 There is no dilution to the basic earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.

42	 Assets pledged as security	

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
(a) Charge on entire stocks and receivables, both present and future  9,316.69  8,118.50 

 9,316.69  8,118.50 

43	 Transfer pricing 
The independent review for assessing compliance with Transfer Pricing Rules issued by the Central Board of Direct 
Taxes under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ended March 31, 2023 is in progress. However, 
on the basis of self assessment of the operations during the year, the Management does not expect any significant 
deviation from the requirements of the aforesaid Transfer Pricing Rules.
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44	 Events after the reporting period
No significant event is to be reported between the closing date and that of the meeting of Board of Directors.	

45	 Approval of financial statements	
	 The financial statements were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and has been approved by the 

Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 29, 2023.							     
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